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Contact City of Casey 

03 9705 5200

NRS: 133 677 (for the deaf,  
hearing or speech impaired) 
TIS: 131 450 (Translating  and  
Interpreting Service)
caseycc@casey.vic.gov.au

casey.vic.gov.au

facebook.com/CityOfCasey 
@CityOfCasey

PO Box 1000
Narre Warren VIC 3805

Customer Service Centres

Cranbourne 
Customer Service Centre 
Cranbourne Park Shopping Centre, 
Shop 156, South Gippsland Highway, 
Cranbourne

Narre Warren  
Customer Service Centre, Main Office and 
Council Chamber 
Civic Centre, Magid Drive, Narre Warren*  
(off Princes Highway, near Fountain Gate 
Shopping Centre)

*Moving to Patrick-North East Drive, Narre 
Warren (as of 30 October 2017) 

Narre Warren South 
Customer Service Centre 
Amberly Park Shopping Centre, Shop 8, 
101 Seebeck Drive, Narre Warren South 
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Introduction 
Welcome to the  
Report of Operations 2016-17

Council is committed to transparent reporting 
and accountability to the community. The Report 
of Operations is the primary means of advising 
the community about Council’s operations and 
performance during the financial year. 

VISION 
2013-17

The vision for the City of 
Casey is ‘the city of choice to 
live, work and raise a family’. 
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Snapshot of Casey 
LOCATION 
The City of Casey is 410 square kilometres 
in area and located 35km south east of 
Melbourne’s central business district. 

CASEY’S SUBURBS  
Casey’s suburbs include Beaconsfield 
(part), Botanic Ridge, Berwick, Blind 
Bight, Cannons Creek, Clyde, Clyde 
North, Cranbourne, Cranbourne North, 
Cranbourne East, Cranbourne South, 
Cranbourne West, Devon Meadows, 
Doveton, Endeavour Hills, Eumemmerring, 
Five Ways, Hallam, Hampton Park, 
Harkaway, Junction Village, Lynbrook, 
Lyndhurst, Lysterfield South, Narre Warren, 
Narre Warren North, Narre Warren South, 
Pearcedale, Tooradin and Warneet.

HISTORY  
Located on the traditional land of the Bunurong and 
Wurundjeri people, the City of Casey was established 
in 1994 after most of the City of Berwick, much of the 
City of Cranbourne, and a small part of the City of Knox 
were amalgamated. The name ‘Casey’ was given to the 
municipality in recognition of the area’s links with Lord 
Richard Casey.

POPULATION

Casey’s population is approximately 314,000.  
By 2041, 2016 Census results forecast this to increase to more than 514,000, with the city’s 

current 96,222 households to increase to over 171,000.

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 5
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Message from the Mayor
The City of Casey is one of the fastest growing regions in Australia. About 
7,600 residents move here each year. Such remarkable growth is reflected 
in the positive response of Council. 
This year we responded to the challenges of 
managing growth through the continuation 
of an ambitious program of transformation 
and innovation. Throughout the year, Council 
worked closely with the community to 
develop the Council Plan 2017-21 and the 
bold, long term strategy, Council Vision C21 
– Creating a Great City. 

Council also engaged regularly with 
the community through a range of other 
initiatives, including Casey Next, Youth 
Panel, Children’s Panel and the city’s first 
Casey People’s Panel. Such activities 
helped align the new Council Plan with the 
needs and expectations of our residents. 
All Councillors were impressed by the 
community passion expressed by everyone 
who participated.

This year we saw a new cultural landmark 
for our city take shape. Bunjil Place is 
set to become the single largest piece of 
infrastructure ever built by the City of Casey. 

After a decade of planning and construction, 
the $125 million precinct is on schedule and 
on budget. We look forward to its official 
opening in the new financial year, as Bunjil 
Place becomes an enlivening arts and 
cultural destination for Casey.

The joint Regional Economic Development 
Strategy between Casey Council and 
Cardinia Shire Council was adopted by 
Council in December 2016. The strategy 
will allow both councils to support economic 
development in the Casey Cardinia region, 
including new investment and local jobs.  

This vital partnership with Cardinia 
Shire Council continued to position the 
Casey Cardinia Region as the place for 
business investment. It supported the 
growth of local businesses, developed 
employment pathways, and advocated for 
major infrastructure projects to generate 
investment and jobs.

City of Casey Mayor Cr Sam Aziz inside 
the Bunjil Place theatre in May 2017.



R
EP

O
R

T 
O

F 
O

PE
R

AT
IO

N
S

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 7

Council continued campaigning to the 
State and Federal Governments on behalf 
of residents to secure a fair allocation 
of funding for local infrastructure and 
services. Council’s advocacy initiatives 
helped enable the following outcomes for 
the community:
»  Commenced widening and upgrading 

the Monash Freeway to reduce 
congestion and improve safety and 
reliability.

»  Partnered with Public Transport Victoria 
to deliver new local bus routes from 
November 2016.

»  Confirmed the State Government 
commitment to increase police numbers 
in Casey.

»  Secured a second SES Unit in Casey, 
with funding for a unit in Cranbourne 
announced in the State Budget.

»  Maintained the Federal Government’s 
contribution to providing 15 hours of 
kindergarten by 2018.

»  Confirmed the State Government 
commitment to return school crossing 
funding to a 50:50 contribution.

Thank you to the Casey Leadership Team 
and staff for working so hard to deliver the 
city’s wide range of projects and services. 
All our work is underpinned by an involved 
community, and we are grateful to every 
individual who took the time to participate 
in Casey Next, the Peoples Panel and other 

engagement opportunities. I would like to 
thank those who gave feedback, raised 
a request, reported a hazard, reported 
a complaint or compliment, or raised a 
petition, along with community groups 
and organisations, business owners, and 
volunteers who contributed this year.

Thanks also to my fellow Councillors who 
served the Casey community over the last 
year and throughout their term. The year 
of achievements showcased in this report 
clearly shows what an exciting time it is to 
live, work and raise a family in Casey.

Cr Sam Aziz 
Mayor

Council’s advocacy program  
has delivered for residents with recent successes:

More bus 
routes

Increase 
police 

numbers

Second 
SES unit

Maintain 
kinder hours 
contribution

Upgrade 
Monash 
Freeway
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Message from the CEO
I am pleased to present this annual report as 
an overview of the City of Casey’s operations 
throughout the year.  
Council demonstrated how an efficient, 
customer-centric and future focused 
approach can deliver positive outcomes 
for the city, and prepare it well for growth. 
This year an array of projects contributed 
to community wellbeing, infrastructure 
development and service improvements.

A new Council took office during the year 
and set about supporting some of the 
most ambitious and intensive community 
engagement processes ever undertaken in 
Casey. Significant input and facilitation from 
leaders and staff enabled Council to develop 
a new long-term strategy, Council Vision C21 
– Creating a Great City, and a new Council 
Plan 2017-21 to pave the way for a secure, 
well planned future for Casey.

Growth continued at a faster pace, which 
resulted in a variation from Council’s budget 
forecasts of about 1.2 per cent – much 
higher than the usual 0.1-0.5 per cent. This 
generated a surplus of more than $5.5 million 
which was reinvested into priority projects 
to assist in responding to growth. Relatively 
affordable housing in a low interest rate 
environment induced greater development 
activity and higher than anticipated 
receipts from rates and developer fees. 

Nonetheless, we are mindful that more 
development will also increase pressure on 
services and infrastructure now and in coming 
years.

With growth forecast to push our population 
towards half a million by 2041, we continued 
to plan for the future using long-term service 
modelling and a 10-year financial plan that 
incorporates a comprehensive program of 
capital works.

In 2016-17, Council decided not to apply for 
a variation to the State Government imposed 
rate cap, despite the long-term financial 
challenges facing growth councils. This 
decision was based on our strong financial 
management and unexpected non-recurrent 
State Government grants but has deferred 
longer-term impacts of rate capping. Rate 
capping will require Council to make tough 
decisions to delay or reconsider delivering 
much-needed community infrastructure.

Work on Bunjil Place progressed on schedule 
and according to budget requirements, which 
puts Council on track to achieve its target of 
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making the precinct debt-free in eight years. 
Our effective planning and construction will 
soon enable Casey residents and visitors to 
experience this vibrant community space for 
generations to come.

Council continued to transform the way 
it does business and provides services, 
ensuring customers are our core focus. 
Our Customer Focus Strategy continued to 
inform our approach to the implementation 
of new initiatives, including a new Customer 
Service Charter and Complaint Handling 
Framework, a program to collect customer 
insights, and our increasing use of online 
community access channels. 

Our Digital Casey Strategy enabled 14 
transactions to be moved online to make 
service access easier and more immediate 
for customers. For example, applying for 
a Disabled Parking Permit and registering 
a pet can now be done via smart phone. 
We also introduced frameworks to support 
stronger governance, and more effective 
project planning and delivery.

Thanks to our partners, including 
government-based agencies, councils, 
community groups, schools and 
organisations that worked with Council 
through the year, and to Council staff for 
embracing better ways to put customers at 
the centre of all our operations.

Former Councillor Mick Morland tragically 
died in June 2017. A Councillor and Mayor 
at various times since 1992, Mick will 
be sadly missed by the community and 
Council, and our thoughts remain with his 
wife Kay and their family.

Mike Tyler   
Chief Executive Officer
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About the City of Casey 

BALLA BALLA WARD

FOUR OAKS WARD

RIVER GUM WARD

MAYFAIR WARD
EDRINGTON WARD

SPRINGFIELD WARD

Blind Bight, Botanic 
Ridge, Cannons Creek, 
Clyde, Clyde North, 
parts of Cranbourne 
and Cranbourne East, 
Cranbourne South, 
Devon Meadows, 
Junction Village, 
Pearcedale, Tooradin, 
Warneet

Most of Cranbourne, 
Cranbourne East, 
Cranbourne North, 
Cranbourne West 
and Lyndhurst

Doveton, 
Eumemmerring, 
Hallam, Hampton Park, 
Lynbrook

Endeavour Hills, 
Harkaway, Narre 

Warren North and part 
of Narre Warren

Berwick and 
Clyde North

Part of Cranbourne 
North, most of Narre 

Warren and Narre 
Warren South

Our Councillors as at 30 June 2017 
In October 2016 the City of Casey elected 11 Councillors to serve a four-year term. As a result of 
the election, the City of Casey returned seven Councillors and welcomed four new Councillors. 
All were sworn into office in November 2016.

Councillors are elected by residents to govern the city and work together to set Council’s 
strategic direction and to make decisions on behalf of the whole municipality. In making these 
decisions, Councillors consider the views of the community, and work closely with the Chief 
Executive Officer and Council officers.

In April 2017, Cr Steve Beardon resigned as Councillor and Cr Gary Rowe was elected in his 
place to represent the Mayfield Ward. 



R
EP

O
R

T 
O

F 
O

PE
R

AT
IO

N
S

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 11

The following Councillors served from 1 July 2016 to 22 October 2016:
Cr Louise Berkelmans (Springfield Ward)
Cr Rosalie Crestani (Four Oaks Ward)
Cr Sam Aziz (Mayor) (Springfield Ward)
Cr Susan Serey (Edrington Ward)
Cr Wayne Smith JP (Deputy Mayor) (River 
Gum Ward)
Cr Geoff Ablett (Balla Balla Ward)

Cr Rafal Kaplon (Four Oaks Ward)
Cr Mick Morland (Deputy Mayor) 
(Edrington Ward)
Cr Damien Rosario (River Gum Ward)
Cr Amanda Stapledon (Mayfield Ward)
Cr Gary Rowe (Mayfield Ward)

BALLA BALLA WARD 
Cr Geoff Ablett
Date elected: October 2016

EDRINGTON WARD 
Cr Timothy Jackson
Date elected: October 2016

Cr Susan Serey  
Deputy Mayor 
Date elected: October 2016

FOUR OAKS WARD 
Cr Rosalie Crestani
Date elected: October 2016

Cr Milla Gilic
Date elected: October 2016

MAYFIELD WARD 
Cr Amanda Stapledon
Date elected: October 2016

Cr Gary Rowe
Date elected: April 2017 

RIVER GUM WARD 
Cr Damien Rosario   
Deputy Mayor 
Date elected: October 2016

Cr Wayne Smith JP BJ 
Date elected: October 2016

SPRINGFIELD WARD 
Cr Sam Aziz 
Mayor 
Date elected: October 2016

Cr Rex Flannery 
Date elected: October 2016
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City of Casey is the second fastest 
growing municipality in Victoria

5,114 babies 
where born in 

2016-17

Casey has the largest  
population in Victoria

18% population 
was born in 
Afghanistan

27.7% familes are 
a couple with no 

childern

18,483  
businesses in 

Casey

65% own two or 
more cars

36.5% residents 
are aged  

0-24 years

10% population 
was born in  
Sri Lanka

46.7% of houses 
are owned with a 

mortgage

52.9% identify  
as Christian

13% population 
was born in 
Mauritius

55.7% familes 
are a couple with 

childern

163 languages are 
represented

1,619 Indigenous 
people

Sixth fastest-
growing 

municipality

31.1 % have  
non-English 
speaking 
backgrounds

194,674 workers 
across Casey 
and Cardinia

Median weekly wage 
for 35-44 years is $897
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Our City  
CITY PROFILE  
The City of Casey is one of the fastest 
growing regions in Australia. The following is 
an overview of how Casey is changing and 
what makes our community so vibrant and 
diverse.  
»  Sixth fastest-growing municipality in 

Australia from 2011 to 2016
»  A population of approximately 314,000
»  Largest population in Victoria and 

second fastest growing
»  5,114 babies born in 2016-17
»  A high birth rate contributes significant to 

population growth.  

CASEY’S LABOUR FORCE 
»  18,483 businesses based in Casey 
»  194,674 workers employed in diverse 

industries (including those in Cardinia) 

ABOUT CASEY RESIDENTS
»  55.7 per cent of families are a couple 

with children (third highest in Victoria)
»  27.7 per cent are a couple with no 

children (third lowest in Victoria)
»  46.7 per cent of houses are owned with a 

mortgage (second highest in Victoria)
»  $897 median weekly wage for people 

aged 35-44 years (Victorian average is 
$993)

»  17 per cent of residents earn less than 
$300 per week (Victorian average is 15 
per cent)

HOW OLD ARE CASEY RESIDENTS? 
»  Casey is experiencing growth in all age 

groups
»  36.5 per cent of residents aged 0-24 

years – the fourth highest in Victoria 

HOW DO CASEY RESIDENTS GET 
AROUND? 
»  65 per cent of Casey residents own two 

or more cars compared to 51 per cent for 
Greater Melbourne

HOW DIVERSE IS OUR COMMUNITY?
»  More than 163 languages are spoken 

represented in Casey, compared to  
150 recorded in the 2011 Census. 

»  Casey is top three for represented 
languages, behind Wyndham and 
Brimbank 

»  31.1 per cent of residents have 
 non-English speaking backgrounds

»  35.8 per cent of Casey residents speak a 
language other than English at home

»  18 per cent of residents were born in 
Afghanistan, 10 per cent in Sri Lanka,  
13 per cent in Mauritius and 10 per cent 
in Romania 

»  Countries of birth other than Australia in 
2016 included India (17,931 people), Sri 
Lanka (11,279 people), United Kingdom 
(10,728 people), Afghanistan (8,534 
people) and New Zealand (7,112 people)

»  Casey is home to 1,619 Indigenous 
people

IS CASEY RELIGIOUS?
»  52.9 per cent of the population identify as 

Christian
»  24.3 per cent identify as having no 

religion 

City of Casey – Proportion of Religions compared 
to other Victorian Councils
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For more information visit  
casey.vic.gov.au/demographics.



Planning Outcomes for Our City
This year marked the final implementation stage of the City of Casey’s 
four-year Council Plan 2013-17 to ensure Casey becomes a city of choice 
to live, work and raise a family. 
The delivery has transformed the City of Casey into a municipality that is highly customer-
focused, in line with the plan’s key directions on services, economy, planning, asset 
management and governance. 

Particularly important to transforming our approach to governance was the development and 
implementation of an Efficiency and Effectiveness Plan. In 2016-17, the final implementation 
stage of this plan generated an array of positives for the way Council will operate in future. The 
most significant outcome of both plans is that Council 
now has customers at the heart of all our operations.

Integral to this process of change was a commitment 
to become more innovative in the way we develop 
infrastructure and deliver services. 
From how we engage with 
customers to decisions relating 
to budgeting and operation. 
We harnessed technology and 
motivated our workforce to work in new ways, 
develop skills and capabilities, and support a culture of 
continuous improvement. All to meet the ongoing needs 
in the future of a 500,000-strong community. 
community.  

PAGE 14       City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       
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2016-17 Outcomes of The Efficiency and Effectiveness Plan 

Outcomes:
Council ran its biggest 
community engagement 
program, Casey Next. Sixty 

pop-up and formal consultation sessions 
reached almost half a million people. 
Over 3,600 people shared their ideas 
and expectations to inform the way 
Council plans, budgets and prioritises 
projects, and help develop a clear vision 
for the Council Plan 2017-21. 

Council hosted Casey’s first People’s 
Panel, where a representative cross-
section of the community came together. 
The Panel consisted of 54 people who 
were reflective of our 314,000 community 
members, and ranged in gender, cultural 
background, living arrangements and 
religious beliefs. Through a deliberative 
democratic process, 4 sessions were 
conducted in March 2017 to understand 
the intricacies of local government 
and provide recommendations on 
behalf of their community. Twenty-four 
recommendations were made by the 
People’s Panel. All were adopted by 
Council and implementation is underway.

A Children’s and Youth Panel also 
developed four key statements that  
are now included in the Council Plan 
2017-21. 

The Victorian Auditor General’s Office 
(VAGO) published a report in May 2017 
on Public Participation and Community 
Engagement in the Local Government 
Sector based on an audit of six Victorian 
councils. The recommendations 
contained within this report validated 
the direction of community engagement 
initiatives at the City of Casey, including 
the focus on deliberative and community-
led engagement. In addition, the 
establishment of the engagement 
experts team, their subsequent training 
and assistance in developing a suite 
of community engagement tools and 
processes aligns with the theme of the 
report regarding the need for councils 
to upskill staff so that they have the right 
tools to appropriately plan, deliver and 
evaluate engagement strategies as part 
of their projects.

Outcomes of the Efficiency and 
Effectiveness Plan were reported under 
four pillars: community focused services, 
good governance, sustainable finances and 
services and new ways of working 

PILLAR 1: COMMUNITY FOCUSED 
SERVICE

To better understand and manage the 
needs and aspirations of our rapidly growing 
population, the City of Casey undertook 
extensive community engagement to 
establish which services, programs and 
activities delivered by Council were most 
valued. This engagement was guided by a 
Customer Focus Strategy and a Community 
Engagement Strategy. 



PAGE 16       City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       

Outcomes:
Council listened and improved its transparency 
rate of closed Council reports from 23.41 per 
cent to 2.6 per cent.  

This also resulted in the commencement of live 
streaming of key decisions made by Council, including 
the address to Council from the People’s Panel and 
Council’s subsequent response. More than 7,000 
people were reached by live streaming a Council 
Meeting in 2016-17.

Outcomes:
Insights from the residents, visitors and business owners from Casey Next 
and recommendations from the Children’s, Youth and People’s Panel helped 
Council budget and prioritise key services and infrastructure projects. 

A Project Management Office and 10-year Capital Works Plan were developed to support 
more effective forwarding planning and works delivery, including a more proactive 
approach to State and Federal Government grant applications.

We introduced an improved procurement and contracts process to ensure the community 
gets the best outcomes at a competitive rate.  

Now Council can tell residents how much each service costs, and monitor savings 
and service levels. This process will prove essential for the organisation’s sustainable 
operation in a rate-capped environment. 

PILLAR 2: GOOD GOVERNANCE

To increase the community’s confidence in Council, a focus on good governance was 
established and incorporated within a Governance Charter, Decision Making Framework, Legal 
Services Review, Property Strategy, Corporate Planning; and a Reporting Framework. 

PILLAR 3: SUSTAINABLE FINANCIAL SERVICES

During 2016-17, Council introduced best practice Contracts and Procurement, a Project 
Management Framework and Rate Capping Strategy. As part of the Efficiency and 
Effectiveness Plan, other key Frameworks were developed including the Prioritised Budgeting 
Framework, Financial Reporting Structure, Cost Analysis of Services and a Debt Recovery 
Strategy. Each is designed to ensure an effective foundation for service delivery. 
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PILLAR 4: NEW WAYS OF WORKING

Council delivered more effective and flexible ways of working through a Continuous 
Improvement Program, Bunjil Place Operating Model, Digital Strategy, Workplace Strategy, 
Workforce Capability Strategy, Information Communication Technology Operation Model 
and better information management.

Outcomes:
To support a culture of continuous improvement throughout the organisation, 
learning and development programs were implemented to better align our 
work with community expectations. Council’s 150 front-line staff received 

accredited ‘complaints handing’ training to better deliver customer services. 

Council now has Engagement Experts across the organisation and new digital services 
help ensure seamless integration.

This efficiency will be further improved by the design of the new work environment at 
Bunjil Place, where staff will be more able to collaborate across departments, work 
smarter and build our capabilities to meet future challenges.



PAGE 18       City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       

Bunjil Place on Track for Completion  
After many years of planning and construction, the $125 million Bunjil 
Place development made significant progress during 2016-17 and is on 
track for completion in October 2017.
In addition to the City of Casey’s contribution 
of $115 million, Bunjil Place is being 
supported by $10 million from the Federal 
Government and $750,000 through the State 
Government Living Libraries Infrastructure 
program for the Library component.

The largest infrastructure project ever 
undertaken by the City of Casey, we are 
now very close to realising Council’s vision 
“to create an inviting central heart for the 

community that celebrates participation, 
belonging and civic pride”. 

When complete, Bunjil Place will be the 
destination of choice for entertainment, 
culture and connection in Melbourne’s south 
east. It will combine an unprecedented mix 
of arts, cultural and community facilities all 
in one central location, across an area of 
24,500m2 as well as an outdoor community 
plaza space of 5,000m2. 
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The precinct will also incorporate:

800 seat 
performing arts 

theatre

Modern 
gallery

Outdoor community plaza 
including big screen, playground, 
water features and war memorial

City of Casey 
customer service 
centre and office 

space

Multi-level library 
with meeting 
rooms and 

outdoor reading 
garden 

350-seat  
function centre

Flexible studio 
performance and 
exhibition space 

Café 
Interactive  
touch wall

Basement  
car park
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2016-17 Construction Highlights

LIBRARY 
»  Casey Cardinia Libraries Narre Warren 

branch’s new modern space set over three 
levels. 

»  Feature staircase connecting all levels.
»  Timber veneer applied, with all 6,000m2 

sourced from a single tree.
»  Library design features an amphitheatre, 

performance space, public computer 
zones, engaging children’s area and quiet 
study nooks.

GALLERY 
»  Spacious contemporary space with flexible 

design for diverse arts-related events.

THEATRE 
»  Bespoke acoustic wall panelling.
»  Features such as an orchestra pit, trap 

room and auditorium.

STUDIO 
»  Mechanical retractable seating to seat 

approximately 200 people installed.
»  Acoustic walls and the specialised floor 

making a flexible space for all kinds of 
performances, exhibitions and events 
installed.

»  Incorporating catwalk, electrical and 
audio-visual works.

FUNCTION CENTRE
»  Construction of a function centre with  

350 seats.
»  Latest audio-visual and presentation 

technology installed to cater for diverse 
events.

»  Significant work and material selection 
was conducted to ensure the 
contemporary space has appropriate 
acoustics for diverse events.

FOYER
»  Bunjil Place’s 

most prominent 
architectural 
element, the 
intricate timber grid 
shell, commenced 
installation. It was 
complex to construct and is a defining 
design feature of the precinct.

»  Timber veneer applied, with all 6,000m2 
sourced from a single tree.

CITY OF CASEY OFFICES
»  New City of Casey customer service centre 

developed so the public can interact with 
Council in a friendly and modern 
environment.

»  Office space for 700 staff to consolidate 
three Council offices into one.  

FACADE AND EXTERNAL LANDSCAPE
»  An iconic roof that depicts the eagle’s tail 

feather was constructed to enable the 
internal fit-out to commence.

»  Installed external elements of the facade 
including glass windows, roof steel and 
sheets.

»  Significant earthworks forming the 
foundation of the community plaza area.

Much planning and work has been involved 
in the years leading-up to the opening of 
Bunjil Place, which includes preparing to 
operate the precinct. 

Below: The progress of construction of Bunjil Place in the 
lead up to the opening of the facility in late October 2017.

Top: The intricate timber grid shell in the Bunjil Place foyer is 
a prominent architectural feature. Image credit: John Gollings.
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Guidebook and marketing
A guiding document, Bunjil Place: 
Enlivening and Enriching, was developed 
to show how the facility will operate in line 
with community requirements and Council’s 
vision for Casey to become Australia’s most 
livable city. 

Indigenous inspiration 
The striking architecture of the building 
itself and the name, Bunjil Place, were 
inspired by stories of Bunjil (also referred to 
as ‘Bundjil’) by our country’s first people.

There are elements that connect the City 
of Casey Bunjil story across our traditional 
owners the Boon wurrung, Bunurong and 
Wurundjeri peoples. Each tribal group has 
their own special relationship with and 
stories of Bunjil. 

The three stories of Bunjil will be shared 
both inside and outside the precinct 
using the interactive touch wall and video 
animations that will interpret the stories in 
an artistic and abstract way, that have been 
created together with the traditional land 
owners. 

When complete, Bunjil Place will enliven 
and enrich visitors through experiences 
that instill a sense of enjoyment, wonder, 
discovery and belonging. Significant 
work was undertaken to ensure that Bunjil 
Place offers a variety of events, shows, 
exhibitions, live performances and more to 
energise the precinct year-round.

This will extend beyond the facility to 
enliven the City of Casey and enrich the 
community through the wide range of 
benefits that arts, culture and entertainment 
provides.

For further details  
visit bunjilplace.com.au

Bunjil Place will 
enliven and enrich 

visitors through 
experiences that instill 
a sense of enjoyment, 
wonder, discovery and 

belonging.
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2016-17  
Outcomes of the  
Council Plan 2013-17
The annual report 2016-17 reports Council’s performance in relation to the Council Plan 2013-17,  
which sets out the city’s vision “to be the city of choice to live, work and raise a family” as well 
as key directions for Council.
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Key Direction 1 –  
Services for Casey’s Community 

A focus on enhancing the health, wellbeing and safety of our residents 
through the provision of high quality financially sustainable services and 
programs.
Over its four-year term, Council worked to foster community 
partnerships, promoted a safer community through education 
and regulation; and encouraged residents to be active and 
engaged in their community in artistic, cultural, sporting 
and leisure opportunities. 

2013-17 Achievements included:
»  Opening and facilitating programs and 

services from key facilities such as the 
$4.5 million Lynbrook Community Centre, 
$4.1 million Mayone-bulluk Family and 
Community Centre to help cater for the 
needs of our growing community.

»  Attracting major crowds at major events 
including Cranbourne GP Run, Australia 
Day events and great participation in the 
Winter Arts Festival.

»  Endorsing a three-year partnership 
agreement with the Melbourne Stars 
Twenty20 cricket team with a yearly 
Family Fun Day event providing the focal 
point of the partnership.

»  Opening 
the Narre 
Warren and 
Cranbourne 
Youth Information 
Centres and developing partnerships 
with agencies to deliver youth related 
services across Casey.

»  Signing the South East Metropolitan Sub 
Regional Accord to engage men in our 
community to advocate for the end of 
men’s violence against women and the 
end of attitudes which support violence.

»  Redesigning the most popular 
transactions to ensure they are easy for 
our customers to complete online, 
including Disabled Parking Permits, 
Asset Protection Permits, Pet and 
Kindergarten Registrations.

»  Implementing the Customer Focus 
Strategy to ensure we are leading a 
customer focused organisation.

»  Implementing the Diversity, Equity and 
Inclusion Policy through the development 
of a Strategy and Action Plan to ensure 
there is a whole of Council approach to 
planning and providing accessible, 
equitable and inclusive services.
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In 2016-17:
Council delivered a range of activities 
through the Municipal Public Health and 
Wellbeing Plan to improve the health and 
wellbeing of the community. This included 
developing a series of ‘Active Women’ 
videos to promote women’s involvement in 
sport in Casey, and undertaking a research 
project with Monash Health to understand 
what factors impact access to healthy food 
across Casey.

We achieved high ratings under the National 
Quality Standards for Family Day Care and 
Kindergarten services, which demonstrated 
Council’s commitment to delivering quality 
services for Casey families and children in 
this important stage of their life.

Council signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Greater 
Dandenong and Cardinia Shire Council 
to advocate for an A-League/W-League 
club in the region. This will help cater for 
the demand of this sport in the region, and 
promote active participation in this booming 
sport.

We revised the Arts Development Plan to 
incorporate the $125 million Bunjil Place 
precinct development.

Council also partnered with the National 
Motor Vehicle Theft Reduction Council and 
Victoria Police to run an education campaign 
to reduce motor vehicle theft in Casey.

We facilitated 2,075 graffiti removals and 
delivered graffiti education sessions to 3,618 
students from 48 local primary schools to 
support Council’s proactive and strategic 
response to graffiti prevention and removal.

More than 300 road and fire safety sessions 
to over 7,900 students at the Casey Safety 
Village in Cranbourne East helped children 
to learn about fire safety in a fun, controlled 
and safe environment.

Council continued its incentive program to 
increase Immunisation Card return rates for 
secondary schools, which has helped boost 
a return in consent cards by secondary 
school children from 74 per cent in 2014 to 
91 per cent in 2017.

We implemented changes to Council’s 
litter management processes to increase 
enforcement and education capacity, allow 
better response to dumped rubbish reports 
and improve compliance with our hard waste 
collection service.

Council also adopted the  
2016-22 Waste Management 
Strategy ‘Rethink Your 
Waste’ to make the 
most of opportunities 
like grants and benefit 
more from technological 
improvements.

Casey’s ‘Rethink Your Waste’ campaign 
was launched in August 2016
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»  Over 37,500 people participated at major 
events in 2016-17.

»  Processed 5,514 new dog and cat 
registrations. After the online process 
was introduced in October 47 per cent of 
4,405 new registrations were via the new 
digital registration process.

»  Distributed over 280 community grants, 
contributions and sponsorships to not-
for-profit community groups and 
organisations. This included support for 
44 community events, 39 programs for 
CALD communities, 67 health and 
well-being programs, 23 arts programs, 
12 environment activities, training for 186 
volunteers, 112 grants for equipment, 30 
services to support Casey’s 
disadvantaged community and funding 
to 233 different community groups. 

»  Recorded 41,140 contacts of young 
people with Youth Information centres. 

»  Delivered 179,700 hours of Domestic 
Assistance, Flexible Respite Care and 
Personal Care.

»  Provided approximately 5,803,829 
garbage services, 3,169,096 recycling 
services and 2,289,252 garden waste 
services.

»  Serviced 56,488 hard waste collections. 
After the online process was 
implemented in December 2016,  
43 per cent were booked online.

» Conducted 94 infant immunisation 
sessions.

» Registered 103 new food premises.
» Visited 1,800 food premises.
»  Supplied 1,679 sharps containers to 

residents.

2016-17 FAST FACTS

Collected 833 
stray dogs and 

133 cats

Received 2,350 
graffiti removal 

requests

Administered 
22,682 vaccines 

Loaned 1.83 
million library 

items

Recorded 
3.12 million 
attendances 

across eight key 
sport and leisure 

facilities 

Delivered 67,500 
meals through the 
Meals on Wheels 

program 

Welcomed  
494,153 visitors 

to Wilson Botanic 
Park Berwick  

Hosted  
1.91 million 

visitors to our 
major aquatic 

centres  
Casey RACE and  

Casey ARC
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Key Direction 2 –  
Developing Casey’s Economy 

A focus on attracting investment and business growth to 
increase local employment opportunities.
This was a key priority for our city. Over its four-year term, Council 
worked to support existing businesses, developed stronger networks 
within the local business community, attract new investment to the 
area and worked in partnership with industry and education providers 
to address skills shortage gaps and lifelong learning opportunities. 

Council is pleased 3,330 jobs were created in the past 12 months, 
but this just keeps pace with growth. Seven out of every ten people in 
the workforce who live in Casey currently leave the municipality to go to 
work every day. Council is committed to inversing this trend.
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570 people attended 
Casey Cardinia 

Business Breakfast 
events 

The Casey Cardinia 
Business Group now 

has 184 members  

3,330 jobs were created 
in the Casey Cardinia 

region

2013-17 Achievements included:
»  Launching the Casey Cardinia region 

investment attraction website and 
prospectus.

»  Opening the original Casey Cardinia 
Business Hub site and expanded The 
Hub into a second site to include the 
region’s first co-working space.

»  Sponsoring and presenting at trade 
shows and expos year on year to 
promote the Casey Cardinia Investment 
Attraction Partnership.

»  Hosting the annual City of Casey 
Business Awards, which recognised a 
range of high-performing local 
businesses.

»  Facilitating the quarterly Casey Cardinia 
Breakfast Series.

»  Enhancing partnerships with the local 
education and training sector to ensure 
young people have pathways to 
employment.

In 2016-17:
Council adopted the joint Regional 
Economic Development Strategy between 
Casey Council and Cardinia Shire Council 
in December 2016.

We created 81 new jobs through the Casey 
Cardinia Business Hub and expanded 
the Casey Cardinia Business Hub with the 
opening of a purpose-built new facility. 

Council held a Casey Cardinia Region 
Health and Community Services Industry 
Forum.

We sent a small Economic Partnership 
Delegation to China to build relationships 
and economic partnerships with Chinese 
local authorities, and adopted the Casey – 
China Engagement Strategy which involved 
establishing a ‘China Desk’ to support 
local businesses seeking advice on doing 
business with China. 

We launched the Innovation Fund, offering 
free loans to encourage innovation, 
creativity business variety for those looking 
to invest in Casey, and conducted 31 
workshops and training sessions for local 
businesses.

Council also ran two seasonal-based 
tourism marketing campaigns to attract 
residents and visitors to promote local 
sites, attractions and events.

2016-17 FAST FACTS

184

Opening of the expanded Casey Cardinia Business 
Hub in July 2016. 



PAGE 28       City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       

Key Direction 3 – Planning for Casey’s Community

A focus on environmentally responsible planning for the current and future 
growth of our diverse community, while preserving local heritage.
Over its four-year term, Council worked to strategically plan for future growth 
areas and existing communities while maintaining our heritage, drove 
awareness and involvement from the community in the preservation of 
the natural environment; and worked with external agencies to manage 
catchments, enhance waterways and our coastline.   

2013-17 Achievements included:
»  Adopting the Housing Strategy to guide 

the management of residential 
development in Casey. 

»  Adopting the Endeavour Hills Community 
Precinct Masterplan to revitalise the busy 
suburban hub. 

»  Adopting the Autumn Place Masterplan to 
guide the development and regeneration 
of the neighbourhood activity centre in 
Doveton over the next 20 years.

»  Implementing the Property Strategy which 
provides a framework to guide the 
acquisition, leasing, use, maintenance and 
disposal of Council-owned land.

»  Facilitating two community events to help 
plant 30,000 indigenous plants in Casey.

In 2016-17:
Council adopted 
the Fountain Gate 
– Narre Warren CBD 
Structure Plan which 
will transform the area into 
a retail, housing and civic 
hub over the next 20 years. 

We awarded 10 Sustainability Grants and 
five Environmental Support Grants to support 
local community groups, schools and 
friends’ groups. 

We reduced energy consumption as part 
of our commitment to being more efficient, 
and reduced greenhouse gas emissions 
produced through Council operations by 
4,785 tonnes of CO2eq per annum.

The total number of dwellings built was 
4,807. This included 498 multi units, 4,250 
dwellings with garages and 59 dwellings 
(without garages). 
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Determined  
1,053 planning 

applications at a median 
time of 122.25 days   

Certified 482 plans  
of subdivision resulting 

in the creation of  
6,663 lots 

Planted nearly  
6,458 semi-mature trees 

in streets and open 
space areas 

Granted 12 Biodiversity Incentive Scheme Grants to local 
landowners to improve the quality of native vegetation in Casey 

Installed 14 Bushland 
Reserve community 

information signs 
across the city 

Hosted eight major 
environmental events 

across Casey  

Gave away 10,000 
indigenous plants at 

the Annual Casey Plant 
Giveaway

2016-17 FAST FACTS
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Key Direction 4 – Building and Managing Casey’s Assets 

A focus on building and managing assets such as 
roads, drains, community facilities, parks, sports 
grounds and nature reserves.
Over its four-year term, Council delivered assets for the current 
and future needs of our growing community, maximised 
access and usage of assets, and maintained assets while 
being economically and environmentally sustainable.    

2013-17 Achievements included:
»  Unveiling the design of the $125 million 

Casey Cultural Precinct, now known as 
Bunjil Place.

»  Opening key facilities including the  
$4.5 million Lynbrook Community Centre, 
the $4.1 million Mayone-bulluk Family and 
Community Centre, Cranbourne West and 
the $3.4 million Selandra Family and 
Children’s Centre, Clyde North.

»  Opening Casey Aboriginal Gathering 
Place, Doveton.

»  Launching the 
Hallam Valley Trail, 
a 10km walking and riding trail linking from 
Hampton Park to Narre Warren.

»  Opening key sporting recreation facilities, 
including the $5.5 million Carlisle Park 
Reserve, Cranbourne North AFL / Cricket 
synthetic oval, netball courts, shared use 
pavilion and lighting and the $2 million 
Edwin Flack Synthetic Athletics Track, 
Berwick.
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Maintained 1460.73 km 
of sealed road, 182 km 
of unsealed road, and 

2,335 km of paths 

Maintained 86,000 
stormwater pits 

and 2,091 km 
of underground 

stormwater drainage 

Maintained over 2,189 
hectares of public open 
space including parks 

and reserves

In 2016-17:
Council worked on the construction of the 
$125 million Bunjil Place, Narre Warren, 
to near completion with official opening 
celebrations at the new facility planned for 
October 2017.

We completed an $18.2 million expansion 
of basketball and netball facilities at Casey 
Indoor Leisure Centre, now known as 
Casey Stadium in Cranbourne East.

Council commenced work on the new 
Integrated Community Centre and Town 
Square in Selandra Rise, Clyde North.

We completed 406 projects as part of the 
$146.5 million Capital Works Program.

We celebrated the opening of the first 
stage of the revitalised Endeavour Hills 
Community Precinct. 

Council completed more than $9.5 million 
of road resealing, road rehabilitation and 

new road construction works. This year, 
Council received its highest satisfaction 
rating to date for the condition of sealed 
local roads at 64%, in the annual 
Community Satisfaction Survey. This result 
was significantly higher than the average 
for Interface Councils at 59% and the 
Statewide average of 53%. 

We finalised Stage 3 of the Upgrading 
Street Lights project throughout the 
municipality in a move that reduced energy 
use, greenhouse gases and associated 
costs. The cost savings are in excess of 
$183,000 per annum and the cost will be 
paid back within eight years.

We received $12 million in grants with  
$7 million from the Growing Suburbs Fund, 
$4.1 million from the Children’s Facilities 
Capital Program, and $1 million from the 
Community Sports Infrastructure Fund.

2016-17 FAST FACTS
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Key Direction 5 –  
Achieving Best Practice in 
Governance at Casey 

A focus on efficiency, fairness and 
accountability in decision making, and 
ensuring our engagement with the community 
on key issues is timely and transparent. 
Over its four-year term, Council advocated for infrastructure and services such as road and 
transport issues, enhanced its governance processes, demonstrated financial responsibility; 
and strengthened relationships with other government agencies to maximise service and 
infrastructure opportunities. 

2013-17 Achievements included:
»  Transforming the process in which the 

organisation budgets to prioritise and 
improve the services customers and 
residents wanted and to achieve cost 
efficiencies.

»  Implementing a three-year efficiency and 
effectiveness program to ensure that 
available funds were delivering value to 
the community.

»  Delivering successful advocacy 
campaigns including Make Your Voice 
Count.

»  Adopting and implementing the Digital 
Casey Strategy and Workplace Strategy.

»  Implementing the Community Engagement 
Strategy feedback from the community, 
which drives our work and informs the 
services and facilities we provide.

»  Launching the Workplace Strategy to 
embed flexible working into the workplace

»  Implemented a Corporate Planning 
Framework providing a clear direction for 
Council’s strategic decision making.

»  Improving our transparency with more 
decisions made in open Council.

»  Implementing a new focus on community, 
collaboration and efficiency including 
releasing seven de-identified datasets to 

the community the Commonwealth 
Government’s open data platform  
data.gov.au so businesses across Casey 
can generate value and create new 
opportunities.

In 2016-17:
We undertook our largest and most robust 
community engagement initiatives – Casey 
Next and the Casey People’s Panel.

Council adopted its new long-term  
Vision for Casey’s future and Council Plan 
2017 – 2021. 

We completed the third and final year of 
the organisation’s Efficiency and Effective 
Program, and began a program of digital 
service transformation, starting with 14 key 
services.

We adopted a revised Councillor Code of 
Conduct and amended meeting practices 
to ensure decisions are made publicly, 
where possible. This included changes to 
the process for contractual reporting. The 
number of decisions made at meetings 
closed to the public reduced from 23.41 per 
cent in 2015-16 to 2.6 per cent in 2016-17. 
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Towards the end of 2016-17, Council adopted its new C21 Council Vision and Council 
Plan 2017-21, which sets out what Council is working towards over the next four 
years. More details are provided in the Moving Forward section of this report.

Recorded 14,904 
Facebook likes; 1,130 

Instagram followers and 
6,403 Twitter followers 
at the end of 2016-17

Handled 279,297 calls 
of which 80 per cent 
were managed at the 

first point of contact by 
Customer Service

Delivered 28 citizenship 
ceremonies to enable 
2,763 adults and 755 
children to become 

Australian citizens from 
127 countries.

Completed 50 formal community consultations 

2016-17 FAST FACTS
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Description of Operations  
The City of Casey is responsible for delivering 66 services. These range 
from family and children’s services, traffic regulation and open space to 
youth facilities, waste management and community buildings. They also 
include matters concerning business development, planning for appropriate 
development and ensuring accountability for Council’s budget.  
This broad range of community services 
and infrastructure for residents supports the 
wellbeing and prosperity of our community. 
Council’s vision, strategic objectives and 
strategies to further improve services and 
facilities are described in our Council Plan 
2013-2017 and the associated Budget 2016–
17, and are reported on in this document. 
For more information on Council services, 
see the Our Performance section of this 
report. 

The delivery of services, facilities, support 
and advocacy are measured by a series of 
service performance indicators and align 
with Council’s responsibilities under the 
Victorian and Australian legislations.

ECONOMIC FACTORS
No specific or extraordinary economic 
factors impacted Council’s performance 
during 2016-17. 

MAJOR CAPITAL WORKS  
In 2016-17, Council:
»  Continued the construction of the $125 

million Bunjil Place development, located 
in Narre Warren, which is nearing 
completion and scheduled to open in 
October 2017.

»  Completed an $18.2 million expansion of 
basketball and netball facilities at Casey 
Indoor Leisure Centre, Cranbourne East.

»  Completed more than $9.5 million of road 
resealing, road rehabilitation and new road 
construction works across Casey.

»  Constructed the $6.8 million Selandra Rise 
Integrated Community Centre, Clyde North 
which is set to open in late 2017.

»  Completed $1.8 million extension and 
improvement works at Bridgewater 
Kindergarten, Berwick.

»  Completed $1.48 million BMX Cycle Track 
and car park works at Casey Fields 
Cycling Precinct, Cranbourne East.

»  Designed the new $4.55 million Autumn 
Place Family and Community Centre, 
Doveton with construction to commence in 
early 2018.

»  Completed the $765,000 synthetic hockey 
pitch replacement at Edwin Flack Reserve, 
Berwick.

»  Completed $600,000 sports field renewal 
works at Sydney Pargeter Reserve, 
Endeavour Hills.

»  Undertook work to develop the new 
$440,000 City of Casey website providing 
the platform for transforming Council’s 
digital services to its customers.

»  Installed two new high efficiency 
condensing boilers substantially lowering 
operational and maintenance costs as part 
of the $430,000 Asset Management Plan 
works for Casey ARC, Narre Warren.

»  Completed $390,000 pavilion renewal 
works at Singleton Reserve, Endeavour 
Hills.

»  Completed $340,000 playground renewal 
works at Gunns Reserve, Hallam and 
Lawson Poole Reserve, Cranbourne.

»  Installed the $113,000 80kw solar panel 
system at Council’s Works Centre, Narre 
Warren reducing energy costs by more 
than $15,000 per year and greenhouse 
emissions by approximately 150 tonnes 
per year.
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Major Capital Works – 2016-17 Highlights 

BUNJIL PLACE – CASEY’S NEW 
VIBRANT ENTERTAINMENT PRECINCT 

After many years of planning and 
construction, the Bunjil Place 
redevelopment made significant 
progress towards its highly 

anticipated opening. 

The innovative $125 million multi-purpose 
facility will become the new creative heart 
for Casey. This vibrant entertainment 
precinct, located in Narre Warren, is set 
to become an enlivening destination, 
providing experiences that will instill a 
sense of enjoyment, wonder, discovery and 
belonging in visitors.  

SELANDRA COMMUNITY HUB AND 
SELANDRA SQUARE

The $6.8 million Selandra 
Community Hub and Selandra 
Square project will be home to 
community service organisations. 

A place for community groups to 
connect, it features an environmentally 
sustainable design and a direct interface 
with a new town square. The centre will 
replace the temporary facility, Selandra 
Community Place.

The project includes:
»  Two multi-purpose hall spaces.
»  Commercial kitchen.
»  Meeting, training and consulting rooms 

that can co-locate community service 
organisations.

»  Range of other multi-purpose spaces, 
such as art exhibition area, foyer and 
lounge.

»  Adult change room with change table 
and ceiling hoist.

»  External spaces including private 
courtyard.

The project also delivers an innovative and 
exciting digital public artwork in the square 
achieved through a partnership with RMIT. 
The artwork will respond to different types 
of touch and will express itself through 
light, vibration and sound.

The project is due for completion in 
October 2017. Further work will include the 
commissioning of services, internal painting 
and floor finishes, joinery / fit-out, and hard 
landscaping including paving and public 
art installation.

$125m

$6.34m
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ROAD CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM - 
CRAIG ROAD AND NORTH ROAD, DEVON 
MEADOWS

The road construction program 
provides improved traffic movement 
and safer driver conditions.

The $2.87 million road construction 
project at Craig Road (between North 
Road and Baxter-Tooradin Road), Devon 
Meadows was delivered in June 2017, and 
completes the major north-south transport 
link in the southern-end of the municipality. 
The projected economic impact of this was 
an increase of 17,489 jobs and an economic 
increase of $8.81 million.

The $2.33 million road reseal project at North 
Road (between Fisheries Road and South 
Gippsland Highway), Devon Meadows was 
finished in June 2017 to complete the major 
east-west link at the southern end of the 
municipality.

CASEY STADIUM

The $18.2 million expansion of the 
Casey Indoor Leisure Centre will 
improve the basketball and netball 

facilities at the centre, now known as 
Casey Stadium.

The expansion project included:
»  Five new courts, including a premiere 

show court
»  Spectator seating for 1,500 people.
»  Multi-purpose function room.
»  New foyer/entrance.
»  Upgraded and additional car parking.
»  Cafe / piazza.
»  New change rooms and toilets.

Stage 1 of the project was handed 
over in June 2017 with domestic 

and representative basketball 
and netball competition using 
the facility. Final work involved 
in the project will also include 
installation of audio-visual 
equipment, car parking, 
external painting and padded 
spectator seating. 

$2.87m

$18.5m

The $2.87 million road 
construction project at Craig 
Road Devon Meadows was 
delivered in June 2017, and 

completes the major north-south 
transport link in the southern-

end of the municipality.
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Council will commence the $4.73 million 
Stage 2 of the redevelopment in 2017-
18. This project will establish a regional 
gymnastics and multi-indoor sports 
facility. This includes a large purpose-built 
gymnastics space with viewing room, indoor 
cricket courts, including a show court and 
indoor cricket training lanes.  Construction is 
set to be completed in early 2018.

COMMITMENT TO REDUCING ENERGY 
CONSUMPTION AND SUSTAINABLY 
MANAGING FACILITIES

Council is reducing its energy consumption 
as part of its commitment to being more 
efficient and reducing the greenhouse 
gas emissions produced through Council 
operations by 4,785 tonnes of CO2 per 
annum.

Two projects completed in 2016-17 at 
Casey Aquatic and Recreation Centre 
(ARC), Narre Warren and Casey Works 
Centre Vesper Drive, Narre Warren will help 
reach this target. These included: 
»  Installation of high efficiency condensing 

boilers at Casey ARC. Benefits include:
- A rate of 98 per cent more efficiency 

than older-style furnace systems 
resulting in energy savings and less 
interruptions to operations. 

- Less wear and tear on boiler units and 
componentry.

»  Installation of the 80kw solar PV system 
at the Casey Works Centre. This is the 
largest solar power generation system on 
any Casey-owned building. Benefits 
include:  
- A reduction in energy costs by 

approximately $15,000 per annum. 
- A reduction in greenhouse gas 

emissions by approximately 150 tonnes 
per annum.

- A reduction in energy use by 75-80 per 
cent (includes LED lighting).  

- Two charge stations for electric 
vehicles with 100 per cent renewable 
energy generated onsite.

- Renewable energy will be free of cost 
once the system is paid off after six 
years.

Major change
During the year, the organisation was 
redesigned to leverage the benefits 
of Council’s focus on efficiency and 
effectiveness, and align the delivery of new 
services, such as those to be delivered at 
Bunjil Place, with existing services.  

A significant transformation journey was 
undertaken by Council. This was to realign 
the organisation to better reflect the 
new priorities needed to deliver for our 
community in a new way using different 
technologies. The redesign included an 
emphasis on customer focused service 
delivery, technology and business 
improvement roles to enable effective and 
efficient service delivery that meets the 
emerging needs of our growing community.  

Major achievements 
The following major policies were 
amended or adopted during 2016-17: 
»  Council Plan 2017-2021
»  C21 Vision
»  Annual Budget 2017-18
»  Advisory Committee Policy
»  Asset Service Levels and Financial 

Forecasts Policy
»  Casey South Agriculture Small Lot 

Excision Policy
»  Civic Functions Policy
»  Civic Honours Policy
»  Community Event Signage Policy
»  Community Facilities Access Policy
»  Community Gardens
»  Complaints Handling Framework
»  Councillor Access to Council 

Information Policy
»  Councillor Code of Conduct
»  Identification Verification Policy
»  Litter Policy
»  Major Plant Management Policy
»  Petitions Policy
»  Public Question Time Policy
»  Road Register
»  Road Management Plan
»  Special Charge Scheme Policy
»  Wall of Global Friendship Plaques 

Policy
»  Works to Council Assets by 

Community Groups
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Moving forward 
Challenges and future outlook

CHALLENGES 
»  Creating a well-connected city where you 

can get from place-to-place in a timely 
and affordable manner via public 
transport, private car, bikes and walking.

»  Ensuring a vibrant welcoming, respectful 
and inclusive community for all residents 
and visitors.

»  Continuing efficient proactive and reactive 
maintenance strategies in a rate capping 
environment. 

»  Increasing financial pressures on Council 
including escalating utility costs, rate 
capping and reduced grants from other 
levels of government. 

»  Protecting and enhancing Casey’s city 
living and country feel environment as the 
population and demand for services 
grows.

»  Designing and delivering services and 
infrastructure to ensure the growing 
community has local access to services 
and facilities.

»  Making Casey attractive to support 
investment by new and existing businesses 
to encourage local job creation in a 
challenging economic landscape.

»  Delivering multiple strategic and 
management plans to plan for the 
sustainable growth and development of 
the city. 

»  Facilitating job opportunities through 
planning for job precincts, and 
encouraging the State Government to 
facilitate their development

»  Working to address the increasing cost of 
landfill, declining landfill space combined 
with increasing waste production.
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»  Managing customer enquiries and 
conversion to an electronic environment 
during a high growth phase.

»  Delivering services and infrastructure to 
meet the needs of a rapidly growing 
population which is projected to grow to 
approximately 514,000 by 2041 while 
operating in a rate capping environment.

»  Preparing for the roll-out of the National 
Disability Insurance Scheme in Casey in 
2018.

»  The delay of the implementation of the 
Federal Government’s aged care reforms 
(Commonwealth Home Support Program) 
to 2020. 

»  Preparing for the implementation of the 
Victorian Government’s early childhood 
reform plan over the next two years. 

»  The discrepancy between the State 
Government’s commitment it would 
return to a 50:50 contribution for school 
crossings and its actual funding, 
resulting in a funding shortfall for Council 
in 2017/18.

»  Responding to safety concerns by 
community members including rising 
incidents of family violence and home 
invasion. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 
»  Operationalisation and official opening of 

Bunjil Place in October 2017.
»  Continuing delivery of the ICT Operating 

Model.

»  Developing and implement Casey’s 
Smart City Policy to support a productive, 
accessible and liveable city that attracts 
talent, encourages innovation and 
creates jobs and growth.

»  Designing new services and redesigning 
existing services so they are digital by 
default, based around customers’ life 
events.

»  Developing and implementing new 
Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing 
Plan 2017-21.

»  Advocating to the State and Federal 
Governments, statutory authorities and 
other sectors to fund Casey’s transport 
priorities.

»  Developing and implementing a China 
Engagement Strategy to encourage 
investment and promote the Casey 
Cardinia region and its opportunities.

»  Implementing the Rethink Your Waste 
Strategy 2016-22 to provide an efficient 
and effective waste management 
service.

»  Developing a services dashboard for the 
community to monitor Council 
performance.

»  Developing a Child, Youth and Family Plan. 
»  Providing new and improved connectivity 

to community facilities to enable Wi-Fi 
capability and video conferencing.

»  Delivering a new Council website to the 
community which is customer-focused 
and focused on improving the user 
experience. 

What’s in store for the future 

Rethink 
Your Waste 

Strategy

New and 
improved 

connectivity

Child, Youth 
and Family 

Plan

New 
Council 
website

Casey’s 
transport 
priorities
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THEME 2: IMPROVING TRANSPORT

EFFICIENT AND RELIABLE NETWORK
Provide and advocate for adequate 
road, rail and paths so all community 
members can travel easily and in a 
timely and comfortable manner. 

TRANSPORT CHOICE
Ensure that people can access jobs, 
services and facilities by public 
transport, cycling, walking and by 
private vehicle.  

ACCESSIBLE TRANSPORT
Consider all people, regardless of age, 
ability and income, in the provision
of transport infrastructure.  

THEME 1: CONNECTING AND 
SUPPORTING PEOPLE

CHOICE IN CASEY
Provide and facilitate a choice of 
facilities and services that reflect the 
diversity of Casey. 

SAFE CASEY 
Work with agencies and the community 
to ensure people can go about their 
lives without fear or risk of harm. 

INCLUSIVE COMMUNITY
Foster and uphold a multicultural, 
supportive, interactive and 
compassionate community. 

THEME 3: PROTECTING OUR ENVIRONMENT

BIODIVERSE ENVIRONMENT
Protect, conserve and enhance Casey’s biodiversity, recognising its  
fundamental importance in achieving a healthy environment and way of  
life for current and future generations. 

A NATURAL AND HEALTH ENVIRONMENT
Keep all open spaces, urban and natural environments, green and clean. 

SUSTAINABLE CASEY
Act at a local level to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to make  
Casey a sustainable city. 

Casey C21 – Creating a Great City
Council is working towards ‘Creating a Great City’ – capitalising 
on the achievements of the Council Plan 2013-2017 and 
maintaining our focus set out in the Casey C21 Long-Term Vision. 

Originally set out in 2002, this vision is clarified through the following themes: 
1. A city where everyone can work locally, travel conveniently, and access all the services 

they need.
2. A city with state-of-the-art facilities for the arts, education, sports and leisure.
3. A city where everyone belongs to a vibrant, safe and connected community, based on 

mutual respect and understanding.
4. A city where the built and natural environments are complementary, clean and enjoyable.
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Council Plan 2017-2021 and  
Year 1 Annual Action Plan
The new Council Vision, Council Plan 2017-21 
and Year 1 Annual Action Plan were adopted 
in June 2017 to provide the roadmap for 
the City of Casey to work towards creating 
Australia’s most liveable city. 

It represented the culmination of months of 
work and consultation with our community, 
staff and Councillors, and to date, our 
largest community engagement process 
through the People’s Panel and Casey Next.

The work resulted in a Plan and Vision that 
aligns with our residents’ priorities and 
aspirations for our city and will ensure that 
Council delivers what is most important to 
our community.

The Council Plan specifically outlines our 
eight Strategic Objectives, how the City of 
Casey will achieve these objectives and how 
progress will be measured.

Strategic Objective 1: A leader in applying 
technology and innovation

Strategic Objective 2: An inclusive, safe 
and connected community

Strategic Objective 3: A Council whose 
services and facilities are driven by 
community needs

Strategic Objective 4: The destination 
for arts, culture, sport and leisure that 
attracts visitors and brings communities 
together

Strategic Objective 5: A city that 
sustainably manages growth while 
protecting its diverse landscape

Strategic Objective 6: A thriving economy 
with local jobs, investment, and new 
industries

Strategic Objective 7: A city with an 
accessible and well-connected transport 
network

Strategic Objective 8: An efficient and 
effective, customer focused Council with 
sufficient resources to meet priorities

For further information visit  
www.ourfuture.vic.gov.au

THEME 4: ATTRACTING 
BUSINESS AND LOCAL JOBS

JOBS FOR A KNOWLEDGE 
ECONOMY 
Facilitate the creation of knowledge 
based jobs in Casey.  

A LEARNING CITY
Develop a culture which recognises 
the importance of learning and 
education as the key to future 
prosperity, and support equal 
opportunity for everyone.  

ENTREPRENEURIAL  
ENVIRONMENT 
Support entrepreneurship 
by creating an environment 
with sufficient resources and 
opportunities for individuals and 
businesses with ideas.

THEME 5: CREATING A SENSE OF 
PLACE

PLANNED COMMUNITIES 
Ensure all suburbs are proactively 
planned, including the physical 
infrastructure, the supporting 
services and community activities. 

A CASEY IDENTITY
Create a distinct image and identity 
for Casey and for Casey’s diverse 
range of communities and places. 

THRIVING AND ACTIVE CASEY
Build and program a diverse range 
of spaces for arts, culture, tourism, 
sports and leisure.
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Our people 
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

During the year, the organisation was redesigned to leverage the benefits of Council’s focus 
on efficiency and effectiveness, and align the delivery of new services, such as those to be 
delivered at Bunjil Place, with existing services.  

The redesign included an emphasis on customer focused service delivery, technology and 
business improvement roles to enable effective and efficient service delivery that meets the 
emerging needs of our growing community.

Council is the governing body that appoints a Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO has 
responsibility for the day to day management of operations in accordance with the strategic 
directions of the Council Plan. The CEO and four Strategic Directors form the Executive 
Management Team (EMT) and lead the organisation. Details of the CEO and Strategic Directors 
reporting directly to the CEO as at 30 June 2017 are set out below. 

CEO 
Mike Tyler

Director Bunjil Place 
Construction 

Steve Dalton

STRATEGIC 
DIRECTOR 

CUSTOMER FOCUS & 
INNOVATION
Sally Curtain

STRATEGIC 
DIRECTOR

COMMUNITY LIFE
Steve Coldham

STRATEGIC 
DIRECTOR

CORPORATE 
SERVICES

Sheena Frost

STRATEGIC 
DIRECTOR

CITY PLANNING & 
INFRASTRUCTURE

Peter Fitchett

Manager 
Communications 

Gerard Scholten

Manager  
Customer Service 

Mike Whittaker

Manager  
Digital & Data 
Chris O’Connor 

Manager  
Organisational 
Performance 

Caz McLean

Manager  
Service & Asset 

Planning 
Wayne Mack 

Manager  
People & Culture 

Fran Boyd

Manager  
Legal Support  

Rob Pedder 

Chief Financial  
Officer 

Andrew Davis

Manager  
Property & Procurement 

Gordon Shinnie

Manager  
Governance 

Holly De Kretser 

Manager  
Information Technology 

Len Gemelli

Manager  
City Planning  

Nicola Ward

Manager  
Statutory Planning  
& Building Services 

Duncan Turner

Manager  
City Design  

& Construction  
Trevor Griffin 

Manager  
City Presentation 

David Richardson 

Manager  
City Economy 
David Wilkinson

Manager  
Waste & Landfill 

Management 
Michael Jansen

 Manager  
Child, Youth &  

Family 
Virginia Lloyd

Manager Safer 
Communities 

Caroline Bell

Manager  
Connected 

Communities 
Jo Smale

Group Manager Active 
Communities 

James Rouse 

Manager Arts & Cultural 
Development 

Colette McMahon 

Manager  
Bunjil Place (Arts) 

Robin Batt 
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Council staff
A summary of the number of active Council staff categorised by division and gender as at 
30 June 2017 is set out below.

Employment  
Status Type Location Male 

FTE
Female 

FTE

Casual Employee Community Life 106 135
Casual Employee Total 106 135

Full-Time Employee CEO’s Office 4 2
City Planning and Infrastructure 155 67
Community Life 56 248
Corporate Services 33 38
Customer Focus and Innovation 34 55

Full-Time Employee Total 282 410

Part-Time Employee

 

City Planning and Infrastructure 1 38
Community Life 32 464
Corporate Services 3 12
Customer Focus and Innovation 3 34

Part-Time Employee Total 39 548

Grand Total 427 1093
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A summary of the number of Council staff categorised by employment classification and 
gender as at 30 June 2017 is set out below.

Classification Male 
FTE

Female 
FTE

Assistants  
(Certificate III)

2 33

Assistants (Diploma) 1 71

Band 1 106 126

Band 2 10 136

Band 3 43 7

Band 4 26 115

Band 5 60 168

Band 6 84 138

Band 7 26 50

Senior Officers  66 52

MCHN Team Leaders 0 3

Classification Male 
FTE

Female 
FTE

MCHN Year 1 0 4

MCHN Year 2 0 52

MCHYR2 0 3

Pre-School Field 
Officer

0 6

Teachers 0 2

Teachers 
Accomplished

2 39

Teachers Exemplary 0 12

Teachers Graduate 1 76

Grand Total 427 1093

Teachers Graduate 1 76

Grand Total 427 1093
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Staff Recognition
Our staff achievement program draws a clear link with Casey’s Trademark Behaviours and 
is used to reward and recognise staff. Categories for an award nomination include any 
occasion where an employee (below director level) shows outstanding performance or any 
achievement or initiative by an employee that can be directly related to Casey’s Trademark 
Behaviours. Recognised behaviours are show respect, listen and learn, think things through, 
take responsibility and be positive.  

Employees at any level and external customers can nominate staff for a Staff Achievement 
Award. Each division holds its own Staff Achievement Awards and one individual and one 
team from each Division are in the running for the yearly winner. These are forwarded to the 
Chief Executive Officer, who will then decide the overall individual and team winner for the 
year. Our winners for outstanding performance for 2016 were:

2016 TEAM OF THE YEAR – BRIAN DAVEY AND 
MANDY MUNRO
In October 2015, Casey delivered its largest community 
tree planting event. The Plant Your Roots multicultural 
tree planting day saw over 300 community volunteers 
come together, from all different faiths and cultural 
backgrounds, to assist in planting indigenous trees and 
shrubs. 

As the day was hot and the ground was dry and 
because of limitations applied on planting techniques, 
holes had to be dug by hand. Despite the challenge 
that the weather and hard ground presented, the 
volunteers persisted and planted approximately 6,000 
plants. 

Brian Davey, Natural Resource Officer and Mandy Munro, Biodiversity Conservation Officer, 
went on to apply clever and innovative thinking to implement a plan to plant the remaining 
14,000 plants over the five days which followed the tree planting community event. 

For their hard work and effort, Brian and Mandy were recognised as the 2016 Team of the 
Year at the City of Casey Staff Recognition Awards.  

2016 INDIVIDUAL OF THE YEAR – YING LAI 
Ying Lai, Technical Officer/Hydrogeologist - Landfill Management, 
was recognised as the City of Casey’s Individual of the Year at the 
2016 Staff Achievement Awards. 

Ying was recognised for successfully working with an (external) 
Environmental Auditor who agreed to a proposal to reduce 
groundwater monitoring around Stevensons Road Closed Landfill site. 
The monitoring reduced groundwater monitoring of wells from 255 
every year to 86, which resulted in a saving of more than $100,000 
per year.

In his work Ying analysed a tremendous amount of data, and compiled a range of maps 
and trend graphs, which supported the proposal to the Auditor. Ying was very detailed and 
thorough in his assessment, which resulted in the Environmental Auditor’s acceptance of the 
change. 
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Awards for the City of Casey and our staff in 2016-17 include: 

Belinda Sprake and Michele Scarlett
Subdivision Officers of the Year
2017 Winners Metropolitan Subdivision 
Consulting Land Surveyors Vic 

Selandra Rise Estate
UDIA Master Planned Development for 2016
Awards for Excellence Victorian Urban 
Development Institute of Australia

Bill Howitt, Team Leader – Planning 
Compliance
Professional development of and assistance 
to enforcement officers across the State.
Planning Enforcement Officers Association of 
Victoria
Enforcement Officer of the Year Award 2016 
State Conference - November 2016  

City of Casey ‘Plant Your Roots’ program. 
Public Land Manager 2016
The River Health Incentives Awards

Alarah Townhouses (Ava Terraces), 
Cranbourne West
Developed in consultation with Council 
through Wolfdene and SJB Architects
Residential Architecture – Multiple Housing
Australian Institute of Architects - Victorian 
Chapter Awards

Glenda McMillan
Women in Insurance Excellence Award 

Nino Occhietti
Fran Carey Road Safety Award for ‘Passion 
and Commitment to Road Safety’ 2016
Lisa Balaban
RL Handby award for Team Excellence and 
Innovation in Environmental Health

FINALISTS
Casey Cardinia Business Hub
Casey Council in partnership with Waterman 
Business Centres
Economic Development Australia Awards
Economic Development Initiatives Over 
15000 residents category

Caz McLean 
Outstanding leadership in implementing 
Casey’s Workplace Strategy
SACS leadership Award 

Digital Casey
LGPRO Award for Excellence
iAward Finalist in Government Category for 
Digital Services Program

Traineeship Program 
Host Employer of the Year – Runner up
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Other Staff Matters   

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
PROGRAM 
The organisation recognises and 
respects the importance of diversity 
and incorporates the principles of Equal 
Employment Opportunity (EEO) into 
recruitment practices. Employees are 
expected to undergo awareness training in 
EEO when they start. 

Our Corporate Learning program reviewed 
our recruitment training to ensure our hiring 
managers are equipped with the skills to 
interview based on job related criteria, and 
do not include interview questions that 
could be perceived as discriminatory.

All employees are given access to 
information on our intranet in relation to 
their rights and responsibilities regarding 
discrimination.

ENTERPRISE BARGAINING 
AGREEMENT  
Every three years Council negotiates an 
Enterprise Agreement with all employees. 
Over the past few months, Council met 
union and employee representatives 
to formulate a new agreement. Council 
employees are employed under the Casey 
City Council Enterprise Agreement 2013, 
which expires in 2017.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
In line with strategic priorities, Council 
provided a corporate learning program 
to support a range of staff development 
needs over the course of the financial year, 
including the Aspiring Leaders program. 
Fifteen staff graduate from this program in 
December 2016.  

The learning program incorporated New 
Ways’ training in support of activity-based 
working and the move to Bunjil Place, 
as well as a range of Feed Your Brain 
lunchtime sessions. A range of training 
programs were delivered including 
Complaints Handling, Community 
Engagement, training for Techxperts as 
part of the Digital Strategy, and introduction 
to Project Management.

Council continued to provide education 
assistance to staff undertaking relevant 
undergraduate and postgraduate studies, 
with 46 staff members currently studying 
with the support of the City of Casey. 

CULTURE SURVEYS 
Every two years, Council conducts a 
staff engagement survey to check with 
employees on the issues most important 
to them and how the organisation is 
performing. This year our engagement 
survey told us that 74 per cent of our 
employees are highly engaged with the 
organisation.

A proportion of employees were surveyed 
using a cultural inventory to better 
understand the levers and drivers of 
organisational culture in parallel with the 
staff engagement survey.

As a result, the organisation had the 
highest rate of respondents across both 
surveys than in any previous year. This 
included a 76 per cent response rate to 
the cultural inventory survey. This provided 
valuable information on the both the current 
organisational culture and the desired 
culture for the future.

The organisation will use these insights 
and information to develop its people, and 
leadership strategies and activities. 
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HEALTH AND SAFETY   

The City of Casey is striving to improve safety and health at the workplace. During 2016-17, 
Council committed to the Municipal Association Victoria’s application for self-insurance to 
support continuous improvement of Council health and safety management systems. 

With support from occupational health and safety representatives within its various workplaces, 
Council ensured hazards were identified and controlled measures introduced to reduce the 
likelihood of injuries to its employees. 

The following outlines Council’s activities and performance in relation to key health and safety 
objectives:

KEY INITIATIVES PERFORMANCE

Further develop and improve Council’s 
health and safety management system

On track to complete identified improvement 
actions by December 2017

Conduct departmental risk reviews 95% of risk review workshops completed 
within program schedule

Implement monthly workplace inspection 
program

100% of inspections completed in line with 
inspection program schedule within the 2016 
calendar year

Executive management participation in 
health and safety consultation forums

100% executive management attendance at 
Health and Safety Committee meetings

Develop health and well-being initiatives On track for planned deployment of 
initiatives by December 2017

Develop health and safety procedures for 
Bunjil Place facility

All procedures relating to emergency 
management, workstation ergonomics and 
manual handling at Bunjil placed have been 
developed in a draft stage

HEALTH PROMOTION

The City of Casey’s commitment to providing its staff with a healthy workplace is evident by the 
ongoing assistance and benefits available to staff. In 2016-17, these included:
»  Employee assistance program.
»  Provision of health and wellbeing programs including Quit programs and Mental Health in 

the Workplace.  
»  Providing almost 400 Influenza vaccinations. 
»  Negotiated membership rates at Casey ARC/RACE and lunch time group fitness classes. 
»  Registered participant of the 10,000 steps exercise competition.
»  Subsidised Social Club. 
»  Early Intervention Program – providing support to allow employees to remain at work if 

injured.
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Financial Summary  
Operating Position
Council achieved a surplus of  
$184 million in 2016-17. This surplus is 
slightly higher than the prior year surplus of 
$168 million, primarily due to decisions by 
the Commonwealth Government in relation 
to the timing of receipt of the Victorian 
Grants Commission grant by Council, with 
half the usual allocation received in 2015-
16, but 150 per cent of the usual allocation 
received in 2016-17.  

In line with the Comprehensive Income 
Statement in the Financial Report, the 
favorable surplus is due to a high level of contributed assets from new estates and 
subdivision ($57.6 million), developer contributions from Development Contribution Plans 
that are used to fund future approved projects ($53.1 million), capital grants for some 
Capital Works Projects ($18.5 million, including support from the State Government’s 
Growing Suburbs Fund). 

It is also due to increases in supplementary rates as a result of development of new blocks 
of land, housing and other development activity. The operating surplus for the year is used 
for current and future capital works projects, or to provide (through contributed assets) 
necessary community infrastructure.

Liquidity
Cash increased by $81 million from the 
previous year, mainly due to increases in 
reserves from developer contributions  
($50 million), capital works to be completed 
in 2016-17 ($6.6 million) and grants 
received in advance ($17 million), as well 
as higher trade payables and trust funds. 

The working capital ratio that determines 
Council’s ability to meet current 
commitments is calculated by measuring 
Council’s current assets as a percentage of 
current liabilities. Council’s outcome of 442 
per cent indicates a satisfactory financial position and exceeds the expected target band of 
120 per cent to 200 per cent, mainly as a result of investments held for Council’s reserves. 
These reserves include Developer and Statutory Reserves ($184 million), approved but 
incomplete Capital Works ($41 million) and grants received in advance ($21 million). They 
also include cash-backed liabilities such as Trusts and Deposits ($20 million), Creditors and 
Payables ($34 million), and Employee Entitlements ($24 million).
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Obligations
Council’s debt ratio is measured by 
comparing interest bearing loans and 
borrowings to rate revenue. At the end of the 
2016-17, this ratio was 25.2 per cent, which 
was within the expected target band of up to 
60 per cent, and below Council’s preferred 
maximum of 40 per cent. This increased 2016-
17 as planned loans for the construction of 
Bunjil Place were taken up, as will continue in 
2017-18. Council will then progressively repay 
this loan over the following long term financial 
plan period, before considering further 
borrowing for other major community projects.

Stability and Efficiency
Council revenues include rates, user fees, 
fines, grants and contributions. Despite 
this, Council’s rates concentration, which 
compares rate revenue to total revenue, was 
47 per cent for the 2016-17 year. This is near 
the middle of the expected target band of 
between 40-65 per cent. Council focused 
on broadening its revenue base in recent 
budgets. Average residential rates and charge 
per residential assessment of $1,694.47 
in 2016-17 compare favourably to similar 
councils in the outer metropolitan area.
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Where your rates went in 2016-17
For every $100 of rate revenue that it receives, Council delivers the 
following services: 

Council 
Operations 

$12.36

Waste and 
Recycling 

$15.52

Parks, Reserves 
and Sports Grounds 

$14.50
Maintain Roads and 

Drains $6.14
Community Interface and 

Engagement $2.41

Youth, Children’s 
and Family Services 

$4.33

Building 
Maintenance 

$2.40

Libraries $2.79

Street 
Lighting 

$2.13

Community 
Support and 
Development 
$3.09

Community Safety, 
Health and Local 

Laws $2.74

Planning and Building 
Inspection Services 

$2.20

Community Care/ 
Aged Services $3.00

Economic Development $0.65

New Plant and Equipment $1.05 Recreation $1.80

Environment $0.71

Arts and Events $1.02

Legislative Services $1.09

Building construction $11.01

Construction 
of Roads and 

Footpaths 
$9.06
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Our Performance 
Planning and Accountability Framework
The City of Casey is governed by the Local 
Government Act 1989 (the Act). Part 6 of 
the Act is associated with planning and 
accountability reports. In addition, the Local 
Government (Planning and Reporting) 
Regulations 2014 (the Regulations) prescribe 
further requirements.

To comply with the Act and the Regulations, 
Councils must prepare a Council Plan, a 
Strategic Resource Plan, a Budget (and 
where appropriate a Revised Budget) and 
an Annual Report (including a Report of 
Operations, Performance Statement and 
Financial Statements).

In addition to these statutory obligations, the 
City of Casey prepares a quarterly report to 
the community that highlights its progress 
against major initiatives and initiatives in the 
Annual Plan.

In 2016-17, Council utilised its Corporate 
Planning Framework to create the Council Plan 
2017-21, refreshed long-term Council Vision 
and other strategic corporate documents. 
The Corporate Planning Framework provides 
a strategic basis to guide decision making 
and policy setting whilst in turn improving 
accountability, transparency and reporting 
back to the community.  

Effective strategic corporate planning and 
reporting allows Council to demonstrate 
what the future of the City of Casey should 
look like while medium (Council Plan) to 
short-term (Annual Plan/Budget) planning tell 
Council how to get there in partnership with 
the community. 

All aspects of the framework contribute to 
succinct strategic decision-making and 
clarity regarding the municipalities’ priorities 
and long-term sustainable services.
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Council Plan 
The Annual Report 2016-17 reports Council’s performance against what the organisation 
said it would do in the Council Plan 2013-17. The Council Plan sets out the vision for the City 
of Casey, as well as the Key Directions for Council to follow each year.

Key Direction 1 – 
Services for Casey’s 
Community: 

A focus on enhancing the health, wellbeing 
and safety of our residents through 
the provision of high quality financially 
sustainable services and programs.

Key Direction 2 – 
Developing Casey’s 
Economy: 

A focus on attracting investment and 
business growth to increase local 
employment opportunities.

Key Direction 3 – 
Planning for Casey’s 
Community: 

A focus on environmentally responsible 
planning for the current and future growth 
of our diverse community, while preserving 
local heritage.

Key Direction 4 – 
Building and Managing 
Casey’s Assets: 

A focus on building and managing assets 
such as roads, drains, community facilities, 
parks, sports grounds and nature reserves.

Key Direction 5 – 
Achieving Best Practice 
in Governance at Casey: 

A focus on efficiency, fairness and 
accountability in decision making, and 
ensuring our engagement with the 
community on key issues is timely and 
transparent.

Performance 
Council’s performance for the 2016-17 year was reported against each Key Direction 
to demonstrate what Council accomplished. Each Key Direction includes the following 
performance measures:

ANNUAL PLAN INITIATIVES: 
Details of the achievements of 2016-17 
against major initiatives detailed in the 
Annual Budget 2016-17.

COUNCIL PLAN STRATEGIC 
INDICATORS: 
Progress results for the four-year Council 
Plan strategic indicators.

SERVICES: 
The services funded in the budget and 
provided to the community.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
PERFORMANCE REPORTING 
FRAMEWORK (LGPRF) RESULTS: 
The LGPRF results against prescribed 
services.
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Key Direction 1:  
Services for Casey’s 
Community 

Annual Plan Major Initiatives
The following statement reviews the year’s 
progress on major initiatives identified in the 
2016-17 Budget.   

DEVELOP YOUTH STRATEGY 2017-22
Various community consultations were 
undertaken with over 500 young people and 
over 120 parents and caregivers on topics 
including health and wellbeing, living in 
Casey and the future direction of Casey Youth 
Services. The final Child, Youth and Family 
Strategy will be completed in 2017-18.

DEVELOP COUNCIL’S DOMESTIC ANIMAL 
MANAGEMENT PLAN
During 2016-17, Council continued to 
implement its existing Domestic Animal 
Management Plan 2013-2016. This included:  
»  Collecting 1,196 dogs and 1,171 cats. 
»  Registering 5,514 new pets.
»  Seizing 71 dogs pending court outcomes.
»  Offering discounted registration fees for 

micro-chipped and de-sexed pets.

»  Conducting two cat de-sexing events in 
partnership with The Lost Dogs Home.

»  Publishing information about responsible 
pet ownership.   

CONSTRUCTION AND COMMISSIONING 
OF BUNJIL PLACE

Works on Bunjil Place are nearing 
completion with the installation of the iconic 
timber grid shell well underway and the 
internal fit out commencing.  

RENEW COUNCIL’S WASTE 
MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The 2016-2022 ‘Rethink Your Waste!’ Strategy 
was adopted by Council in September 
2016 and provides guidance on the waste, 
recycling and litter services currently 
being provided, and a foundation for the 
development of new services for the benefit of 
the Casey community beyond 2022.
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DELIVERING TRANSACTIONAL 
SERVICES THROUGH DIGITAL 
CHANNELS 
Council’s digital transformation program 
is underway with 14 priority transactional 
services implemented. These included 
new processes for an asset protection 
permit, a disabled parking permit, pet 
registration and hard rubbish collection. 
The community can expect to see more 
services transformed in the future, making 
it quicker and easier to access Council 
services. 

Council Plan Strategic Indicators
The following statement reviews the 
performance of Council against the Council 
Plan including results achieved in relation 
to the strategic indicators included in the 
plan. 

RECYCLING 
Council recycled 52.28 per cent of all 
waste collected from the three-bin system 
in 2016-17. This is a 0.88 per cent increase 
on the previous year.

The City of Casey provides a 
comprehensive waste education and bin 
inspection program, aimed at increasing 
awareness. This provides the community 
with the opportunity to recycle as much of 
their waste as possible and reduce their 
overall environmental impact. 

COMMUNITY SATISFACTION SURVEY
The overall performance was up one point 
on the 2016 results. Overall performance 
increased to 61, which is two points above 
the Victorian average.

Results of the survey showed community 
consultation at 55 points, which is equal 
to the Victorian average. Advocacy was 
58 points, which is four points above the 
Victorian average. Customer service was 
72 points, three points above the Victorian 
average. The condition of sealed local 
roads was rated at 64 – Councils highest 
score to date for this measure.

The overall Council Direction decreased 
two points on the 2016 results to 56 
points, however it is three points above the 
Victorian average.

LEVEL OF PARTICIPATION IN COUNCIL 
EVENTS SURVEY
In 2016-17, the City of Casey delivered 
37,500 major events, programs and 
activities with a focus on strengthening and 
connecting Casey’s community. 

COMMUNITY CONNECTEDNESS SURVEY
Council took part in the Community 
Satisfaction Survey in 2016-17. Council’s 
scores were well above the state average 
in six of the seven categories (community 
consultation was equal to the state 
average) and above all scores in every 
category against the outer metropolitan 
averages. The question relating to 
residents’ sense of belonging was not 
asked in 2016-17. 
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Services  
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in 2016-17 
Budget and community sectors that received the service. 

Department: Child, Youth & Family

Service Description of services provided

Early Years 
Community Support

Services to enhance the early learning outcomes and wellbeing of 
children aged 0-12 years and their families.

Family Day Care Quality childcare provided in the homes of registered Family Day Care 
educators, monitored and supported by Council staff.

Kindergarten Innovative and quality programs incorporating 15 hours of sessional 
four-year-old kindergarten, delivered through a cluster management 
model, currently consisting of 42 services that are managed by Council. 

Department: Connected Communities

Service Description of services provided

Community Transport Subsidised community transport through the hire of buses to eligible 
community groups.

Home and Community 
Care Services

Services to support older people, people with disabilities and their 
carers to live independently in their own homes.  These include 
home care, personal care, respite care and meals on wheels.  Home 
maintenance, gardening, heavy duty cleaning services are also 
provided. 

Community 
Strengthening 
Management

Provides strategic leadership in relation to the delivery of services 
and initiatives that support the development of social connection 
and strengthening the community. Develops and delivers the Casey 
Community Directory as the endorsed database of community group 
information and contact details.

Grants, Contributions 
and Subsidies

Manages grants, contributions and sponsorship programs that provide 
financial support to community groups and organisations to deliver 
activities, services and programs that benefit the Casey community.

Strengthening 
Communities

Accelerates social connectedness in Casey's new estates, organises 
events that celebrate Casey’s cultural diversity, increase community 
awareness of and participation in volunteering, recognise outstanding 
individuals and groups who contribute to supporting and strengthening 
community in Casey (Casey Australia Day Awards and Casey Volunteer 
Awards), and encourage all Casey residents to engage with their 
neighbours.

Support Diversity 
Access and Inclusion

Builds the capacity for the community to provide services, programs 
and environments which promote community inclusion, value diversity 
and enhance social cohesion. Works across Council to increase 
organisational competencies in relation to valuing diversity, inclusive 
policy and practice, accessible service provision and compliance.   
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Department: Safer Communities

Service Description of services provided

Animal Management Operation of animal pound services, registration and annual renewal 
of domestic animals, registration and compliance of domestic animal 
businesses.  Collection of lost and wandering animals, investigation of 
dog attacks and prosecution where required. Puppy farm prosecution, 
investigation of animal cruelty allegations, declarations of Dangerous 
and Restricted Breed dogs, and maintenance of associated registers. 

Community Safety Development and implementation of the Community Safety Strategy, 
administration of externally funded crime and injury prevention projects, 
support for Neighbourhood Watch and other safety related community 
groups, capacity building across Council staff, liaison with residents 
and Police to address local perceptions of safety.

Environmental Health Regulatory functions to reduce the risk of disease and nuisance 
impacting the health and wellbeing of the community. Investigation 
of resident complaints and disease outbreaks, regulation of food 
and health related businesses. Issuing of Improvement Notices and 
Prohibition Notices, prosecution of serious offences, assessment and 
approval of Septic Tank installations. Tobacco test purchasing by 
minors program, and water sampling of public pools and spas.

Fire Prevention Coordination and implementation of Casey Municipal Fire Management 
Plan, provision of annual fire prevention inspection program to ensure 
compliance on private property and issuing Fire Prevention Inspection.  
Notices and Infringements on non-compliant properties, annual 
designation and redesignation of Neighbourhood Safer Places and 
associated reporting to Country Fire Authority.

Graffiti Management Graffiti Management program comprises graffiti removal from all 
Council and privately owned qualifying assets at rate payer’s expense.  
Education programs provided to all Year 5 and Year 8 students at all 
schools and enforcement activity in partnership with Victoria Police.

Health Promotion Develop and support the implementation of the Municipal Public Health 
and Wellbeing Plan, and undertake projects outlined in the plan.

Immunisation 
Program

Provision of immunisation to children aged 0-4 and adolescent 
immunisations provided at schools within Casey. Administration 
of immunisation consent cards and administration of the National 
Immunisation Schedule.

Local Law 
Enforcement

Provision of compliance and enforcement activities to protect general 
amenity of the community including long grass complaints, pollution 
from building sites, illegal signage, footpath trading and dumping of 
litter.
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Parking Enforcement Enforcement of parking restrictions in Council-owned parking spaces, 
disabled parking bays in Council-owned spaces, private shopping 
centre car parks and road safety road rules throughout Casey. Provision 
of traffic management assistance during emergencies or major Council 
events. Provision of patrols around schools to monitor and enforce 
parking controls.  

Road Safety Aims to improve the safety of all road users and reduce the risk of road 
trauma by undertaking Council and externally funded programs and 
projects such as Older Driver Awareness, motorcycle driver education, 
L2P Learner Driver Mentor Program, and programs for culturally and 
linguistically diverse communities.

Safety Village Manage and maintain the Casey Safety Village, which comprises of the 
Casey Road Safety Education Centre and the CFA Learning Centre. 
The Casey Safety Village provides road and fire safety education 
programs to school aged children.

School Crossings Provision of school crossing services to primary and secondary schools 
across Casey, including administration and training. 

Department: Active Communities

Service Description of services provided

Arts and Events The Arts and Events team work to strengthen community engagement 
and encourage participation through interactive events and arts 
programs for a diverse range of residents to enjoy. This is achieved 
through delivering major Council events and arts programs for the local 
community as well as supporting and advising internal departments to 
undertake these activities in a safe and collaborative way.

Community Facilities Encourage healthy and vibrant communities and promote community 
connectedness and participation through the development, 
establishment and operation of high quality Council owned community 
facilities in partnership with local committees of management.

Leisure Facility 
Management

The Leisure Facilities Team is responsible for the management of 
Council’s Leisure Facilities. These are either contract management by 
external companies or by Council (in-house) management.

Sports Club Liaison Management of key partnerships including Melbourne Football Club, 
Melbourne Stars, Casey Scorpions, Casey South Melbourne Cricket 
Club, Vic Health Physical Activity branch, Vic Sport, Parks and Leisure 
Australia, Victoria University Institute for Sport, Exercise and Active 
Learning. Development of funding applications to peak bodies and 
development of the capital works program for sport and leisure 
facilities. 

Sports Development Consists of a number of units focused on providing high quality 
service to all areas of the Casey sporting community, including: 
community sport, disability sport and leisure and sports development. 
Considerable support is given to new and established clubs so that 
they can provide quality sporting experiences for residents. 
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Department: Customer Service

Service Description of services provided

Customer Service First point of contact for both telephone and face to face enquiries via 
three service centres.  

 

Department: City Planning

Service Description of services provided

Natural Resource 
Management

Provide engaging opportunities for Casey residents to participate 
in environmental activities and learn about and help protect their 
environment. Provide an opportunity for the views of members of the 
community to guide Council’s environmental and sustainability activities 
through the Conservation Advisory Committee.

Sustainability Deliver programs to improve and rehabilitate the environment, and 
engage with the community. Provide advice and support to Council 
and the community, developers and agencies on climate change, 
greenhouse gas emissions, integrated water management, energy and 
land use planning.

Department: Waste & Landfill Management

Service Description of services provided

Waste Management Provision of waste services to the community including residential 
garbage, recycling, garden waste, hard waste, litter bins and Berwick 
Village waste collection (commercial). All services include provision of 
bins (except hard waste), collection, transport, sorting and/or disposal, 
customer interface and education.

Department: Child, Youth & Family

Service Description of services provided

Family and 
Community Facilities

Coordinating community access to 31 spaces in Family and Community 
Centres, Maternal and Child Health centres and Youth Information 
Centres. 

Maternal and Child 
Health (MCH)

Provides a support service for children and their parents/carers from 
birth to school age. Activities and consultations focus on prevention, 
health promotion, early detection and intervention where necessary. 
Support programs include a new parents group, sleep and settling, 
parent information, and children’s activity groups. 

Youth Services Programs and services for young people aged 10-25 years including 
personal development and recreation programs, events, counselling, 
schools and information. Service delivery has a health and wellbeing 
focus. 
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Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) Results
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators 
and measures including explanation of material variations.

Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Aquatic Facilities

Service standard

Health inspections of aquatic 
facilities
[Number of authorised officer 
inspections of Council aquatic 
facilities / Number of Council 
aquatic facilities]

3.33 3.00 A slight decrease in health 
inspections was due to the 
closure of Casey ARC for 
significant pool refurbishment 
works.

Health and safety

Reportable safety incidents at 
aquatic facilities
[Number of WorkSafe reportable 
aquatic facility safety incidents]

4.00 9.00 Council continually reviews 
safety incidents to ensure the 
appropriate controls are in 
place.  Council is diligent in 
working with and reporting 
notifiable incidents to WorkSafe. 
None of the incidents reported 
were classified as major 
incidents.

Service cost

Cost of indoor aquatic facilities
[Direct cost of indoor aquatic 
facilities less income received 
/ Number of visits to indoor 
aquatic facilities]

-$0.37 -$0.25 Council generates 25 cents 
per visit to the indoor aquatic 
centres. The variation of 12 
cents from the previous year 
is due to 2015/16 reduced 
attendances and health club 
membership 

Service cost

Cost of outdoor aquatic facilities
[Direct cost of outdoor aquatic 
facilities less income received 
/ Number of visits to outdoor 
aquatic facilities]

$10.99 $7.84 The operational season was 
changed to reflect better 
attendances, with season 
opening in December 
(previously November) and 
alterations to the warm weather 
policy. This has created more 
efficient operations at the facility. 

Utilisation

Utilisation of aquatic facilities
[Number of visits to aquatic 
facilities / Municipal population]

6.60 6.40 The utilisation of aquatic facilities 
has only decreased slightly 
despite the closure of Casey 
ARC during significant pool 
refurbishment works.
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Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Animal Management

Timeliness

Time taken to action animal 
management request
[Number of days between receipt 
and first response action for all 
animal management requests / 
Number of animal management 
requests]

0.00 4.3 This indicator was not reported 
on previously due to the data 
being unavailable.  Council 
has since reviewed its Request 
Management System and has 
implemented process to capture 
the data.

Service standard

Animals reclaimed
[Number of animals reclaimed 
/ Number of animals collected] 
x100

46.12% 40.81% Large number of un-owned cats 
and dogs were surrendered to 
Council with no possibility of 
being reclaimed.

Service cost

Cost of animal management 
service
[Direct cost of the animal 
management service /  
Number of registered animals]

$44.99 $51.42 The increase in cost in 
attributable to a large number 
of animals seized as part of 
prosecution action resulting in 
long term housing at Council’s 
pound.

Health and safety

Animal management 
prosecutions
[Number of successful animal 
management prosecutions]

31.00 21.00 The movement between 2014-15 
and 2015-16 was a result of a 
change to the Domestic Animals 
Act 1994 relating to unregistered 
domestic animal businesses. 

The results for 2016-17 are 
comparable to 2014-15 but the 
reduction in 2016-17 was due 
to a lower number dog attacks 
because of Council’s effective 
management of the Animal 
Management Program.  All 
prosecutions were successful.
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Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Food Safety

Timeliness

Time taken to action food 
complaints
[Number of days between 
receipt and first response action 
for all food complaints / Number 
of food complaints]

1.26 1.60 This result demonstrates 
Council’s commitment to taking 
prompt action to remedy any 
food safety matters in a timely 
manner in order to protect the 
public health of the Casey 
community and visitors to the 
municipality from potential food 
borne illnesses.

Service standard

Food safety assessments
[Number of registered class 
1 food premises and class 2 
food premises that receive an 
annual food safety assessment 
in accordance with the  Food 
Act 1984 / Number of registered 
class 1 food premises and class 
2 food premises that require an 
annual food safety assessment 
in accordance with the  Food Act 
1984] x100

101% 117.19 % Increase in this result reflects 
a higher number of inspections 
undertaken, and also an 
increase in the number of 
registered food premises in 
Casey.

Service cost

Cost of food safety service
[Direct cost of the food safety 
service / Number of food 
premises registered or notified 
in accordance with the Food Act 
1984]

$504.93 $543.06 Increase in cost due to 
installation of additional 
computer software to improve 
and streamline on-line 
registration and renewal process 
for food businesses.

Health and safety

Critical and major non-
compliance outcome notifications
[Number of critical non-
compliance outcome notifications 
and major non-compliance 
notifications about a food 
premise followed up / Number of 
critical non-compliance outcome 
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a 
food premises] x 100

100.00% 100.00% All notifications about a food 
premises were followed up, as 
per legislative requirements.
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Service Performance 
Indicators

Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and Comments

Libraries

Utilisation

Library collection usage
[Number of library collection 
item loans / Number of 
library collection items]

5.82 6.93 This significant improvement in 
performance is representative of 
Casey Cardinia Library’s focus 
on creating relevant, dynamic 
collections which are well used by our 
community.

Resource standard

Standard of library 
collection
[Number of library collection 
items purchased in the last 
5 years / Number of library 
collection items] x100

59.47% 66.29% The improvement in over-all age 
of library collections is a result of 
shifting the focus from the provision 
of Reference collections, to those of 
more popular, dynamic and topical 
materials. The Narre Warren branch 
library in particular was historically 
focused on housing a large non-
fiction reference collection. The 
way our community searches for 
information has changed, with 
many searching online for reference 
information. Casey Cardinia Library is 
reducing the number of items held for 
more than 5 years to make room for 
new and high-demand collections.

Service cost

Cost of library service
[Direct cost of the library 
service / Number of visits]

$4.35 $4.55 The overall cost of service has 
changed due to increased service 
and supply costs. There has been 
a small decrease in the number 
physical visits to our library branches, 
however virtual visits which are 
not included in this metric have 
increased. This demonstrates change 
in the way that the community is 
using library services. The average 
cost per visit to Casey Cardinia 
Library remains at the low end of 
the expected range of $3-15 for this 
indicator.

Participation 

Active library members*
[Number of active library 
members / Municipal 
population] x100

10.31% 9.70% The movement between 2014-15 and 
2015-16 was due to a change in the 
way data was measured. The result 
for 2014-15 was based on a range 
of activities, and 2015-16 was strictly 
based on checkouts and renewals to 
measure active library members. 

*Due to changes in accessing data from the Swift databases, it is believed that the 2016 figure 
more accurately reflects the actual proportion of active library members.
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Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Maternal and Child Health (MCH)

Satisfaction

Participation in first  
MCH home visit
[Number of first MCH home visits 
/ Number of birth notifications 
received] x100

98.03% 99.10%

Service standard

Infant enrolments in the  
MCH service
[Number of infants enrolled in 
the MCH service (from birth 
notifications received) / Number 
of birth notifications received] 
x100

94.90% 94.70% 2016 reported figures should 
have been reported as 94.9 
per cent, resulting in a minimal 
change in comparison to 
previous years.

Service cost

Cost of the MCH service
[Cost of the MCH Service / Hours 
worked by MCH nurses]

$88.64 $91.42 2016 reported figures should 
have been: cost to Council 
$5,844,775 / nurse hours 65939 
= $88.64. Resulted in a minimal 
change to overall figure.

Participation 

Participation in the MCH service
[Number of children who attend 
the MCH service at least once 
(in the year) / Number of children 
enrolled in the MCH service] 
x100

74.54% 73.28%

Participation 

Participation in the MCH service 
by Aboriginal children
[Number of Aboriginal children 
who attend the MCH service at 
least once (in the year) / Number 
of Aboriginal children enrolled in 
the MCH service] x100

51.53% 59.12% This financial year the total 
number of new Aboriginal 
Families to the Maternal and 
Child Health Services was 54, 
up on 47 new from the previous 
financial year. In addition to 
new clients having a dedicated 
Maternal and Child Health nurse 
able to provide home visiting 
to Aboriginal families improved 
accessibility to the service.
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Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Waste Collection

Satisfaction

Kerbside bin collection requests
[Number of kerbside garbage 
and recycling bin collection 
requests / Number of kerbside 
bin collection households] x1,000

195.95 211.84

Service standard

Kerbside collection bins missed
[Number of kerbside garbage 
and recycling collection bins 
missed / Number of scheduled 
kerbside garbage and recycling 
collection bin lifts] x10,000

2.89 2.66 Improvement in data collection 
has allowed Council to separate 
green waste bins in 2017.

Service cost

Cost of kerbside garbage bin 
collection service
[Direct cost of the kerbside 
garbage bin collection service 
/ Number of kerbside garbage 
collection bins]

$103.55 $102.16

Service cost

Cost of kerbside recyclables 
collection service
[Direct cost of the kerbside 
recyclables bin collection service 
/ Number of kerbside recyclables 
collection bins]

$17.76 $16.54 

Waste diversion

Kerbside collection waste 
diverted from landfill
[Weight of recyclables and green 
organics collected from kerbside 
bins / Weight of garbage, 
recyclables and green organics 
collected from kerbside bins] 
x100

51.40% 52.28%
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Key Direction 2:  
Developing Casey’s 
Economy 

Annual Plan Major Initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress 
of Council in relation to major initiatives 
identified in the 2016-17 Budget for the year.  

ATTRACT AND ASSIST NEW AND 
VIRTUAL TENANTS TO THE CASEY 
CARDINIA BUSINESS HUB 
A total of 81 new jobs were created through 
the Casey Cardinia Business Hub. The 
Casey Cardinia Business Hub is increasing 
the number of co-working tenants and has 
95 per cent of its offices utilised.

HELP THE STATE GOVERNMENT 
DELIVER A NEW CASEY TECH SCHOOL 
TO STIMULATE INTERACTION BETWEEN 
THE SCHOOL SECTOR, TERTIARY 
EDUCATION AND INDUSTRY 
Planning for the school continued through 
the year with the architects selected, 
curriculum determined and principal 
appointed. Construction of the school is 
scheduled to commence in August 2017.

RELEASE DE-IDENTIFIED DATASETS TO 
THE COMMUNITY THROUGH AN ONLINE 
PLATFORM SO BUSINESSES CAN 
GENERATE VALUE AND CREATE NEW 
OPPORTUNITIES
On 6 September 2016 Council adopted our 
first open data policy. This policy mandates 
that Council’s datasets will be released to the 
community by default, with exceptions made 
for any datasets that contain sensitive or 
personal information. Council has released 
eight datasets through the Commonwealth 
Government’s open data platform data.
gov.au. Further datasets will be released 
progressively as they become available.

Council Plan Strategic Indicators
The following statement reviews performance 
against the Council Plan, including results 
achieved in relation to the plan’s strategic 
indicators. 

EFFECTIVENESS OF INVESTMENT 
ATTRACTION
»  Council had 570 attendees for the Casey 

Cardinia Breakfast series.
»  There were 81 jobs facilitated by Council 

over 12 months. 
»  36 business development activities were 

delivered.

QUALITY OF SUPPORT TO STRENGTHEN 
CURRENT BUSINESSES (SATISFACTION 
RATING FOR FORUMS/NETWORK 
OPPORTUNITIES AND NUMBER OF 
BUSINESSES PARTICIPATING IN 
COUNCIL PROGRAMS)
92.8 per cent of businesses were satisfied 
with the programs run by Council, against an 
annual target of 100 per cent.



R
EP

O
R

T 
O

F 
O

PE
R

AT
IO

N
S

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 67

Services 
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in 2016-17 
Budget and the community sectors that received them.

Department: City Economy

Service Description of services provided

Business Attraction Attracting new businesses to Casey region to create new employment 
opportunities for local residents.

Business 
Development

Provide support, guidance and advice to existing and new businesses 
through a series of programs aimed at growing business to generate 
new employment opportunities to local residents. 

Education, 
Employment and 
Skills Development

Develop link between education providers, training organisations 
and businesses to provide better pathways into employment for local 
people. 

 

Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) Results 
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance 
indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.

Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Economic Development

Service standard

Delivery of planned business 
development activities
[Number of business 
development activities delivered 
/ Number of planned business 
development activities] x 100

100.00% 100.00%

92.8% of businesses 
were satisfied with 
program run by Council

92.8% 
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Key Direction 3:  
Planning for  
Casey’s Community 

Annual Plan Major Initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified 
in the 2016-17 Budget.   

FINALISE THE CASEY HERITAGE 
STRATEGY AND GREEN WEDGE 
MANAGEMENT PLAN  

The draft Casey Heritage Strategy provides 
a framework for addressing the significant 
challenges of trying to protect and integrate 
the most valued parts of our heritage whilst 
meeting the needs of a rapidly changing 
environment. During the year, the Casey 
Heritage Strategy was endorsed by Council 
for public consultation.

The revised draft Western Port Green Wedge 
Management Plan is the strategic framework 
that will guide the planning of the southern 
primarily rural areas of the City of Casey and 
the Cardinia Shire over the next 20 years. 
During the year, the draft plan and summary 
document were completed.

COORDINATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
EDUCATION ACROSS COUNCIL AND 
COMMUNITY EVENTS 
Environmental engagement activities included 
the Sustainably Gardening Australia Master 
Gardener Workshops, World Environment Day 
Volunteer Recognition Event and Annual plant 
giveaway. Other activities were delivered via 
the Doveton Show and the Cannons Creek 
Festival. A Councillor recognition event was 
held with the Dolphin Research Institute ‘I 
Sea I Care’ ambassadors. A national tree day 
planting project at the Bayview site in Narre 
Warren resulted in the planting of 10,000 
indigenous plants.  
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Council Plan Strategic Indicators 
The following statement reviews performance against the Council Plan, including results 
achieved in relation to the plan’s strategic indicators. 

SATISFACTION WITH COUNCIL’S 
PLANNING SERVICES SURVEY
88.6 per cent of residents were reported as 
‘very satisfied’, ‘satisfied’ or ‘neutral’ when 
rating Council’s Planning Services, against 
a target of 75 per cent. 

DECISIONS CONSISTENT WITH 
PLANNING SCHEME (SUCCESSFUL 
DEFENSE AGAINST APPEALS)
Percentage of appeals where the decision 
is consistent with Council’s decision: on 
55.56 per cent of occasions Council’s 
decision against the applicant was upheld 
at VCAT.

Five out of nine decisions were upheld 
by VCAT. Casey continues to adopt a 
collaborative approach with applicants to 
settle disputes. Casey has reduced the 
number of VCAT appeals by 35 per cent 
compared to last year (14 appeals) despite 
significant increases in the number of 
applications, and remains lower than many 
other councils.

RESPONSIVENESS (TIMELY 
PROCESSING OF PLANNING 
APPLICATIONS)
50.88 per cent of planning applications 
were decided within the required 
timeframes.timeframes.

88.6% of residents were reported 
as ‘very satisfied’, ‘satisfied’ or 
‘neutral’, when rating Council’s 
Planning Services

88.6% 
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Services 
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in 2016-17 
Budget and the community sectors that received them.

Department: City Planning

Service Description of services provided

Planning Compliance Enforce the Planning and Environment Act 1987, the Casey Planning 
Scheme and any Section 173 Agreement, permits and relevant permit 
conditions affecting land use.  

Planning Scheme 
Implementation

Prepare planning strategies/policies and implement these into 
the planning scheme for statutory application.  Advocacy to State 
Government on liquor and gaming matters and statutory referrals on 
liquor, gaming and telecommunication proposals.  

Growth Area Planning Providing input into Strategic Planning and administering Statutory 
Planning processes in Growth Areas.

Transport Advocacy, 
Planning and 
Development

Develop and manage a strategic framework to assist in the monitoring 
and development of roads and public transport.  Liaise with VicRoads 
and advocate to State Government about addressing transport 
infrastructure.

Recreation Planning Responsible for planning that addresses current and future sport, 
recreation and open space needs. Development and implementation of 
the Open Space Strategy and the Leisure Facilities Development Plan. 
Other strategies complement these higher level strategic documents. 

Department: Statutory Planning & Building Services

Service Description of services provided

Statutory Planning Provide statutory planning advice and process and determine planning 
applications.

Subdivisions Administer the processing of subdivisions in accordance with the 
Subdivision Act including associated functions such as engineering 
approvals and street naming and numbering. 
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Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) Results 
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and 
measures including explanation of material variations.

Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Statutory Planning

Timeliness

Time taken to decide planning 
applications
[The median number of days 
between receipt of a planning 
application and a decision on the 
application]

86.25 122.25 Increase in time taken reflects 
increased planning complexity, 
activity levels and the 
collaborative approach adopted 
to resolving planning decisions 
with applicants to avoid them 
progressing to VCAT where 
possible.

Service standard

Planning applications decided 
within required time frames
[(Number of planning application 
decisions made within 60 days) 
+ (Number of VicSmart planning 
application decisions made 
within 10 days) / Number of 
planning application decisions 
made] x100

58.78% 50.88% From 1 July 2016, this indicator 
will be updated to include 
VicSmart planning applications 
which should be assessed within 
10 days. This may result in some 
variations year on year.  

Service cost

Cost of statutory planning service
[Direct cost of the statutory 
planning service / Number of 
planning applications received]

$2,344.15 $2,790.24 The increase in cost of service 
reflects increased planning 
complexity and activity levels.

Decision making 

Council planning decisions 
upheld at VCAT
[Number of VCAT decisions 
that did not set aside council’s 
decision in relation to a planning 
application / Number of VCAT 
decisions in relation to planning 
applications] x100

71.43% 55.56% Five out of nine decisions upheld 
by VCAT. Casey continues to 
adopt a collaborative approach 
with applicants to settle disputes. 
Casey has thereby reduced 
the number of VCAT appeals 
by 35 per cent compared to 
last year (14 appeals) despite 
significant increases in number 
of applications, and remains 
lower than many other equivalent 
councils.



The City of Casey supported Fund our Future, a 
campaign led by the National Growth Areas Alliance 

(NGAA) to seek a dedicated national infrastructure fund 
for fast-growing outer municipalities like Casey.
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Key Direction 4: 
Building and Managing 
Casey’s Assets 

Annual Plan Major Initiative
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives 
identified in the 2016-17 Budget.    

ACTIVELY PARTICIPATE IN THE 
NATIONAL GROWTH AREAS ALLIANCE 
FUND OUR FUTURES CAMPAIGN
The City of Casey supported Fund our 
Future, a campaign led by the National 
Growth Areas Alliance (NGAA) to seek 
a dedicated national infrastructure fund 
for fast-growing outer municipalities like 
Casey. The City of Casey promoted the 
national campaign locally, focusing on the 
completion of Thompsons Road.

Council sought a funding commitment to 
fully duplicate Thompsons Road, upgrade 
the intersection with Western Port Highway 
to a grade separated interchange, and 
extend and duplicate Thompsons Road 
from Berwick-Cranbourne Road to Cardinia 
Road.

During the campaign the Victorian 
Government announced the full duplication 
of the road. In the lead up to the election 
in June, Federal Labour Party committed 
$85 million for the grade separation of the 
roundabout at Western Port Highway, if 
elected.

The campaign concluded with the Federal 
election held on 2 July 2016. Council is 
continuing to advocate for the extension 
of the road to Officer South and a grade 
separation in-lieu of the planned signalised 
intersection at Western Port Highway. 

CONTINUE TO CONVERT COUNCIL 
STREET LIGHTING TO LED LUMINAIRES 
(ENERGY EFFICIENT STREET LIGHT 
CONVERSION PROGRAM – PHASE 
THREE)
The project to convert 2,800 street lights 
from 80W MV to LED luminaires was 
completed.  The total expenditure was 
$1.4 million for 2,800 lights. This saved 
899,242kWh/annum energy and reduced 
greenhouse gas emissions by 980 tCO2-e/
annum leading to cost savings of $183,607 
per annum. This will be paid back in 7.6 
years. 
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Council Plan Strategic Indicators
The following statement reviews performance against the Council Plan, including results 
achieved in relation to the plan’s strategic indicators. 

CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM 
DELIVERY (TIMELINESS AND BUDGET 
COMPLIANCE) 
The Capital Works Program outlines how 
Council provides and maintains important 
infrastructure for the benefit of the 
community.

The overall Capital Works Program 
expenditure is behind the planned budget 
with $146,447,629 spent of the annual 
budget. A number of projects will be 
completed after 30 June 2017.

RENEWAL AND MAINTENANCE 
EXPENDITURE (COMPARED WITH 
LIFECYCLE COSTING) 
The City of Casey spent $19,324,528 on The 
City of Casey spent $19,324,528 on renewals 
of assets in 2016-17, an amount equivalent 
to 54 per cent of the asset Depreciation 
amount. 

The City of Casey spent $34,019,283 on 
maintenance, operating and renewals of 
assets in 2016-17 an amount equivalent 
to 67 per cent of the asset Depreciation 
amount with the budgeted operating and 
maintenance cost.

DELIVERING TRANSPORT-RELATED 
COMPONENTS OF COUNCIL’S 
ADVOCACY PROGRAM 
Council committed to advocate on behalf 
of residents for the improvements, services 
and funds needed, where these are the 
responsibility of the State and Federal 
Governments or other third parties to ensure 
Casey’s community needs are supported.

Council developed an Advocacy Framework 
in December 2016 to create a planned and 
strategic approach to the way it advocates 
on important issues on behalf of the 
community. 

The framework will guide Council’s short 
and long-term advocacy activities and 
means Council is well placed to deliver 
future advocacy related campaigns that are 
community informed and evidence-based.   

COUNCIL’S GREENHOUSE GAS 
EMISSIONS 
Greenhouse gas emissions for Council 
operations are approximately 0.234 kg 
per resident per day. This is a 16 per cent 
reduction on the baseline in 2009-10, which is 
greater than the Stage 2 target of 15 per cent. 
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Services 
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in 2016-17 
Budget and the community sectors that receive them.

Department: Statutory Planning & Building Services

Service Description of services provided

Building Management 
Services

Performing reactive, programmed and scheduled maintenance 
services. Include the delivery of the building asset renewal program 
and Minor Capital Works program. Also supervises the contract for 
design and project management of the building Capital Works Program. 

Building Management 
Services 

Architectural design and project management of Council's buildings in 
Capital Works Program.

Building Surveying 
Services

Statutory building regulation and enforcement services as required 
by the Building Act 1993 and Building Regulations 2006 including 
Essential Safety Measures compliance. 

Building Assets 
Management

Development of strategic Asset Management Plan for all classes of 
Council building infrastructure. Provision of detailed financial and 
auditing framework to ensure accurate short and long-term planning for 
the whole-of-life cost of Council’s building assets. 

Department: Service & Asset Planning

Service Description of services provided

Capital Works Responsible for the Capital Works Program, nomination forms and 
business case template for Capital Works Program submissions, Capital 
Works signage protocol and Minor Capital Works. Also responsible for 
the coordination and development of the Minor Capital Works. 

Community Projects Coordinates the delivery of a range of Major and Minor Capital Works 
projects on an annual basis for the Community Services Division and 
local community groups that meet identified community need and which 
will continue to build sustainable opportunities for facility provision.

Asset Management Manage asset management systems, data and processes. Review and 
update the Asset Management Improvement Strategy and coordinate 
asset management practices across Council. Develop, manage and 
review Civil Infrastructure Asset Management Plan.

Department: City Design & Construction

Service Description of services provided

Design Management Design management to ensure that civil capital works are planned and 
delivered in accordance with current standards and specifications, and 
to meet future community needs.

Construction of 
Council’s roads, 
drains and paths

Supervision of subdivision construction and supervision of Council's 
civil Capital Works Projects such as new roads, paths, traffic control 
devices, drains, ovals, car parks, minor civil works. Also includes 
approval and works supervision of new vehicle crossovers, services 
and other works in road reserves that affect Council assets.
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Department: City Presentation

Service Description of services provided

Landscape Design 
and Construction

Design and planning of Casey’s public spaces. Landscape approvals 
for master plans and statutory planning applications. Development 
and implementation of Casey’s Landscape Policy, Casey’s Street 
Tree Strategies, and collector roads and local roads. Design and 
documentation of landscape Capital Works Program projects. 

Landscape Services Contract operational management for maintenance, replacement and 
improvement programs for playgrounds.  Contract manage grass 
cutting for major passive parks and high profile public precinct areas 
and manage in-house staff to maintain high quality garden beds and 
floral displays within these sites. Contract management of grass cutting, 
garden bed maintenance and landscaping works at kindergartens, 
community centres and Maternal and Child Health centres.  Coordinate 
and supervise minor and major Capital Works Program for garden bed 
refurbishment, fencing renewal, soft landscaping improvements and 
minor structures repairs/replacements. Manage the maintenance and 
refurbishment of Open Space public art.

Parks Services Manage the grass cutting and garden bed maintenance contracts 
for neighbourhood parks, traffic management devices, undeveloped 
reserves, rural roadsides, sportsgrounds and sportsground surrounds.  
Garden bed renewal in all neighbourhood parks. Manage all 
open space maintenance activities at Casey Fields, including turf 
management of sports fields. Coordinate the implementation of Minor 
Capital Works projects in recreations reserves.

Trees and Horticulture Maintenance of all Council owned trees including street, park, 
significant trees and trees in recreation reserves, bushland reserves 
and community facilities. Also responsible for Capital Works Program 
street and park tree planting. Manage all horticultural maintenance, 
landscape planning and planting at Wilson Botanic Park Berwick. 
Maintain natural bushland reserves. 

Stormwater 
Management

Strategically manage Council’s stormwater network to mitigate 
the impacts of stormwater runoff on the environment and Casey’s 
community. This is achieved through planning of development, asset 
management and monitoring of the performance of the stormwater 
system.

Maintain and Manage 
Council’s Fleet and 
plant

Maintenance and management of Council's fleet and plant including 
policy development, vehicle allocations, purchasing and disposal, in 
house servicing and modifications.

Maintenance of 
Council's roads, 
drains and paths

Maintenance of roads and roadside infrastructure including sealed 
and unsealed roads and car parks, urban and rural drainage systems, 
bridges and footpaths.

Traffic and Parking 
Management

Investigate traffic, parking and road safety operational issues identified 
by officer’s assessment and monitoring of the road network. Develop 
and enhance partnerships with VicRoads and other State Government 
agencies such as Public Transport Victoria, road safety programs 
and the engineering input to Council’s Road Safety Strategic Plan. 
Monitor the implementation of Traffic Management Schemes and the 
preparation of concept plans for roads. Traffic Engineering input to road 
safety, network operational and improvement programs. Provide advice 
on asset management focusing on public lighting infrastructure.

Street Lighting Management of public lighting servicing roads and Council car parks. 
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Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) Results
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and 
measures including explanation of material variations.

Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Roads

Satisfaction of use

Sealed local road requests
[Number of sealed local road requests / 
Kilometres of sealed local roads] x100

17.71 29.36 Variation reflects changes 
in the reporting system 
which has been updated 
to include all local sealed 
road requests.

Condition

Sealed local roads below the 
intervention level
[Number of kilometres of sealed local 
roads below the renewal intervention 
level set by Council / Kilometres of 
sealed local roads] x100

98.93% 98.96% 

Service cost

Cost of sealed local road reconstruction
[Direct cost of sealed local road 
reconstruction / Square metres of 
sealed local roads reconstructed]

$65.34 $90.58 The increase in 2017 
was due to a number of 
road projects requiring a 
significantly greater than 
usual amount of concrete, 
asphalt and drainage 
replacement works.

Service cost

Cost of sealed local road resealing
[Direct cost of sealed local road 
resealing / Square metres of sealed 
local roads resealed]

$17.86 $18.71

Satisfaction 

Satisfaction with sealed local roads
[Community satisfaction rating out of 
100 with how council has performed on 
the condition of sealed local roads]

61.00 64.00 

Department: Waste & Landfill Management

Service Description of services provided

Landfill Management Management of closed landfills and contaminated sites. Responsible 
for meeting legislative requirements for the sites particularly those 
prescribed by relevant Pollution Abatement Notices.



PAGE 78       City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       

Key Direction 5: 
Achieving Best Practice in 
Governance at Casey 

Annual Plan Major Initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress 
of Council in relation to major initiatives 
identified in the 2016-17 Budget.  

IMPLEMENT YEAR ONE OF THE NEW 
WAYS COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
STRATEGY
Council’s Community Engagement Strategy 
was adopted in September 2016. Principles 
of the strategy were piloted through the 
large-scale community engagement project, 
Casey Next, that generated community 
feedback directly used to inform the 
refreshed Council’s Vision, development 
of the Council Plan 2017-21 and year one 
budget to deliver it. 

Council’s first deliberative engagement 
process was delivered with the Casey 
People’s Panel and Youth Panel that 
saw community members reviewing and 
providing input into Council’s key strategic 
plans.

International Community Engagement 
Training (IAP2) was provided to 26 staff 
across the organisation to deliver projects 
in the Council Plan and support the 
organisation’s community engagement 
activities.

ADVOCATE FOR FUNDING TO FURTHER 
DEVELOP SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT 
OPTIONS FOR THE CITY OF CASEY 
(REVIEW AND IMPLEMENT THE CASEY 
TRANSPORT ADVOCACY CAMPAIGN)
Council advocated to Public Transport 
Victoria (PTV), and the State Government for 
better public transport and consultation with 
the community. This included advocating for 
infrastructure and improvements for better 
train and bus services. 

Council worked with the Victorian Planning 
Authority, VicRoads on the East West 
Connections across the city – Greaves 
Road Arterial Declaration, the Berwick 
Springs Roundabout and Glasscocks Road 
connection.  

Further work was undertaken on Developer 
Contributor Plan projects in the growth area 
with developers to ensure early delivery 
of transport infrastructure. Council worked 
closely with the Victorian Planning Authority 
on emerging Precinct Structure Plans and 
Developer Contributions.

Major precinct planning occurred including 
Berwick Health and Education Precinct, 
Cranbourne Town Centre and Fountain Gate, 
Narre Warren CBD. All progressed with state 
agencies responsible for the delivery of 
planned transport network connections.   

Council provided input to various State 
Departments regarding potential projects 
to be considered by the State Government 
to be delivered through Growth Areas 
Infrastructure Contribution funds.

Transport priorities for road, rail and bus 
were reflected in Council’s Advocacy 
Framework.  
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Council Plan Strategic Indicators
The following statement reviews the 
performance of Council against the Council 
Plan including results achieved in relation 
to the plan’s strategic indicators. 

BENCHMARKING RESULTS
In 2016-17, Council undertook two 
benchmarking exercises. Council 
benchmarked against the Local 
Government Performance Reporting 
Framework and took part in the Community 
Satisfaction Survey.

OPERATING BUDGET DELIVERY 
(VARIANCE)
1.85 percent under budget.

RATES (PER CAPITA)
$664.94 collected per head of population.     

OPERATING EXPENDITURE  
(PER ASSESSMENT)
$2166.54 spent on operating per 
assessment. 

$664.94  
collected 

per head of 
population

$664.94
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Services 
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in 2016-17 
Budget and the community sectors that received them.

Department: Communications

Service Description of services provided

Advocacy and 
Community 
Consultation

Coordinate Council’s Community Consultation Program and oversee the 
Casey Conversations website. Coordinate Council’s Advocacy Program 
and campaigns. 

Communication and 
Publications

Promote, educate and celebrate Council services, activities and 
achievements to the broader community. Help to improve access to 
Council services and participation in activities, enhance accountability 
and transparency, and promote a positive image of Council. Provide 
communication tools, such as media relations, website and intranet, 
social media, and publications. 

Department: Property & Procurement

Service Description of services provided

Contract Management Provide support to ensure that contract and quotation documents 
for works, goods and services are legally enforceable and maximise 
benefits for the City of Casey. Oversee the tendering and tender 
evaluation processes for requirements in excess of $150,000 in value. 
Ensure that all contractors for the provision of services or completion of 
works maintain appropriate insurances as per contractual requirements. 

Purchasing Analyse corporate expenditure to identify purchasing opportunities 
including standardisation, volume aggregation and participation in 
Municipal Purchasing Schemes. 

Department: Finance

Service Description of services provided

Accounting Services Manage Council’s Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable 
functions. 

Financial Accounting Develop Council’s Financial Statements and meet requirements for 
external statutory reporting: Government grant acquittal, Taxation 
– Goods and Services Tax and Fringe Benefits Tax, and cash flow 
management and investments. 

Management 
Accounting

Process and systems support for good financial management. 
Coordinate annual Budget process and management reporting to 
monitor the performance against budget of all areas of the Council’s 
operations. 

Payroll Service Provide payroll for Casey employees. 
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Department: Governance

Service Description of services provided

Civic Centre Support Responsible for the coordination of Civic Centre meeting spaces for 
Council and Community purposes. 

Council Governance Administration of all Council, General Purposes, Planning Committee 
meetings and Citizenship ceremonies.

Councillor Support Administrative support for Councillors. 

Risk Management Provide and promote risk management to the organisation, its 
employees and volunteers. Manage insurance portfolio on behalf of the 
organisation. 

Information 
Management

The administration and coordination of Council’s record management 
program, including responding to Freedom of Information requests and 
privacy.

Department: People & Culture

Service Description of services provided

Employee/ Industrial 
Relations

Provide ER/IR advice and support to supervisors and employees 
including research, develop and review HR policy and procedures, 
Administer Senior Officer contracts, Enterprise Agreement bargaining 
process, Award classifications, Consultancy/advice on HR issues, 
Conduct internal investigations.

Occupational Health 
and Safety

Ensure a safe and healthy workplace. 

Organisational 
Development

Implement best practice strategies to attract and retain high quality 
staff. 

Learning and 
Development

Develop programs, training and tools for staff to develop the skills 
needed to do their job, and build the capability and capacity of staff 
in general. Support a positive culture through promotion of Trademark 
Behaviours. 

Department: Information Technology

Service Description of services provided

Information 
Technology

Network management/administration and helpdesk, network data 
communications, application support and software management. 
Information technology security, back-up and disaster recovery. 
Graphical Information Systems. Department strategic planning, and 
capital budget, purchasing and installation. 

Department: Legal Support

Service Description of services provided

Legal Services To effectively manage legal risk and support Council in the achievement 
of its business objectives, whilst coordinating the delivery of 
enhancements to the efficiency of the legal services function in Casey.
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Department: Organisational Performance

Service Description of services provided

Continuous 
Improvement

Provide support to the organisation to achieve continuous performance 
improvement in the delivery of services and programs to the 
community. 

Business 
Improvement Planning

Support the organisation to undertake annual Business Planning.

New Ways Program Oversee the development and implementation of Council’s New Ways 
program. 

Performance 
Measurement and 
Reporting

Provide support to the organisation in the development and reporting 
of performance measurement results in line with corporate and State 
Government requirements. 

Department: Finance

Service Description of services provided

Rates and Valuations Maintain Council’s core property, name and address records. Conduct 
public open space valuations, valuations for insurance and financial 
reporting, for development contribution plans, rating and land tax 
purposes. Acquire and dispose of property. Lease and license 
property. Raise and collect rates. 

Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) Results
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance 
indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.

Service Performance Indicators Results 
2015-16

Results 
2016-17

Material Variations and 
Comments

Governance

Transparency

Council decisions made at 
meetings closed to the public
[Number of Council resolutions 
made at ordinary or special 
meetings of Council, or at 
meetings of a special committee 
consisting only of Councillors, 
closed to the public / Number 
of Council resolutions made at 
ordinary or special meetings 
of Council or at meetings of a 
special committee consisting 
only of Councillors] x100

23.41% 2.60% There was an increased 
emphasis on making 
decisions publicly to increase 
transparency. Council has 
amended meeting and reporting 
practices to ensure decisions 
are made publicly where 
possible, including awarding of 
contracts.
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Consultation and engagement

Satisfaction with community 
consultation and engagement
Community satisfaction rating 
out of 100 with how Council 
has performed on community 
consultation and engagement

56.00 55.00

Attendance

Councillor attendance at council 
meetings
[The sum of the number of 
Councillors who attended each 
ordinary and special Council 
meeting / (Number of ordinary 
and special Council meetings) × 
(Number of Councillors elected 
at the last Council general 
election)] x100

79.49% 96.62% In 2017, the Local Government 
Performance Reporting 
Framework was amended, 
changing the way Councillor 
attendance is counted. 
This change was applied 
retrospectively for 2016-17 and 
ensures Councillors are noted 
as attending a council meeting 
where they arrive late, are on an 
approved Leave of Absence or 
where a vacancy occurs due to 
resignation.

Service cost

Cost of governance
[Direct cost of the governance 
service / Number of Councillors 
elected at the last Council 
general election]

$56,326.82 $76,179.09 Costs of governance increased 
as a comprehensive Councillor 
induction program was 
implemented to support the 
new Council following elections 
in November. This included 
training, support and new 
equipment costs.

Satisfaction 

Satisfaction with council 
decisions
[Community satisfaction rating 
out of 100 with how council has 
performed in making decisions in 
the interest of the community]

58.00 57.00



Governance,  
management and  
other information 
Governance
The City of Casey is constituted under the Local Government Act 1989 to provide leadership for 
the good governance of the municipal district and the local community. Council has a number of 
roles including:
»  Taking into account the diverse needs of the local community in decision-making.
»  Providing leadership by establishing strategic objectives and monitoring achievements.
»  Ensuring that resources are managed in a responsible and accountable manner.
»  Advocating the interests of the local community to other communities and governments.
»  Fostering community cohesion and encouraging active participation in civic life.

Council is committed to effective and sustainable forms of democratic and corporate 
governance as the key to ensuring Council and its administration meet the community’s 
priorities. The community has many opportunities to provide input into Council’s decision-
making processes including community consultation, public forums such as ward meetings and 
the ability to make submissions to Special Committees of Council.

Council’s formal decision-making processes are conducted through Council meetings and 
Special Committees of Council. Council delegates the majority of its decision-making to Council 
staff. These delegations are exercised in accordance with adopted Council policies.
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MEETINGS OF COUNCIL
Council conducts open public meetings on 
the first and third Tuesday of each month. 
Members of the community are welcome 
to attend these meetings and observe from 
the gallery. Two Council meetings were 
live streamed. The first reached over 7,000 
people and the second over 5,500. 

Council meetings also provide the 
opportunity for community members to 
submit a question to the Council or make 
a submission. In 2016-17, Council held the 
following meetings:
»  23 ordinary Council meetings
»  6 Special Council meetings
»  10 Special Committee (Planning) 

meetings.

The following table provides a summary of 
Councillor attendance at Council meetings 
and Special Council meetings for the 2016-
17 financial year.
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Ablett 20 4 9 33
Aziz 20 6 8 34
Berkelmans 7 2 2 11
Beardon 7 3 3 13
Crestani 23 4 10 39
Flannery 15 3 4 22
Gilic 14 4 6 24
Jackson 14 4 6 24
Kaplon 8 2 1 11
Morland 6 2 3 11
Rosario 20 4 7 31
Rowe 12 2 4 18
Serey 22 5 9 36
Smith 21 5 9 35
Stapledon   22 6 10 38

Note: 
Councillors Flannery, Gilic and Jackson were 
elected in October 2016 and attended their 
first Council Meeting on 10 November 2016. 

Councillor Beardon was elected in October 
2016 and attended Council meetings 
commencing 10 November 2016 until his 
resignation effective 10 March 2017. 

Councillor Rowe took his Oath for Office 
on 11 April 2017 following the election 
countback for the seat of Mayfield.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES
The Local Government Act 1989 allows 
councils to establish one or more special 
committees consisting of:
»  Councillors.
»  Council staff.
»  Other persons.
»  Any combination of the above. 

Council has one Special Committee, the 
Planning Committee and is made up of 11 
Councillors.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The Act required Council to amend and 
adopt the Councillor Code of Conduct by 
resolution at a special council meeting held 
specifically to consider the reviewed Code 
of Conduct. On 14 February 2017 Council 
adopted a revised Councillor Code of 
Conduct that is designed to:
»  Specify the agreed standard of 

Councillor behaviour required for the 
ethical and professional performance of 
duties under the Act.

»  Foster good working relations between 
Councillors to enable them to work 
constructively together in the best 
interests of the local community.

»  Mandate Councillor conduct designed to 
build public confidence in the integrity of 
local government.

As well as setting out the Councillor 
Conduct Principles, the Code outlines:
»  Key definitions for Council, role of 

Councillors, role of the Mayor, functions 
of the Chief Executive Officer.
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»  Dispute and conflict resolution 
procedures.

»  Other conduct definitions under the Act, 
such as those relating to confidentiality. 

»  Improper direction or influence, conflict of 
interest.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councillors are elected by the residents 
and ratepayers to act in the best interests 
of the community. This is a position of trust 
that requires Councillors to act in the public 
interest. When a council delegates its 
powers to a Council officer or a committee, 
the committee or officer also needs to act in 
the public interest.

A conflict of interest occurs when a personal 
or private interest might compromise the 
ability to act in the public interest. A conflict 
of interest exists even if no improper act 
results from it.

Council has a comprehensive procedure in 
place to accommodate the disclosure of a 
conflict of interest. Declaration of a conflict 
of interest is a standard agenda item for all 
Council and Committee meetings.

While the procedures vary depending on the 
particular role and circumstances, in general 
they involve disclosing the relevant interests 
in a specific way and then stepping aside 
from the relevant decision-making process 
or from the exercise of the public duty. A 
register is maintained to record all disclosed 
conflict of interests. During 2016–17, 25 
conflicts of interest were declared at council 
and Special Committee meetings.

COUNCILLOR ALLOWANCES
In accordance with Section 74 of the 
Act, Councillors are entitled to receive an 
allowance while performing their duty as 
a Councillor. The Mayor is also entitled to 
receive a higher allowance.

The State Government sets the upper 
and lower limits for all allowances paid 
to Councillors and Mayors. Councils are 
divided into three categories based on the 
income and population of each council. In 
this instance, the City of Casey is recognised 
as a category two council.

The following table contains details of 
current allowances paid to the Mayor and 
Councillors during the year 2016-17.

Councillor Allowance $
Cr Ablett 30,624

Cr Aziz 98,727

Cr Berkelmans 7,147

Cr Beardon 11,593

Cr Crestani 30,624

Cr Flannery 23,476

Cr Gilic 23,476

Cr Jackson 23,476

Cr Kaplon 7,147

Cr Morland 7,997

Cr Rowe 17,061

Cr Rosario 30,624

Cr Serey 30,624

Cr Smith 30,624

Cr Stapledon 30,624

Ministerial determination under s.73B of 
the Local Government Act 1989 increased 
Councillor allowances by 2.5% per cent, 
effective 1 December 2016.
»  From July – November, monthly payments 

of $2,637.76, totaling $31,653.12 per 
annum.

»  From December – June, monthly payments 
of $2,703.70, totaling $32,444.40 per 
annum.

MAYORAL ALLOWANCE
»  From July – November, $8,425.39 monthly 

payments; $101,104.68 per annum. 
»  From December – June, $8,636 monthly 

payments; $103,632 per annum.
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COUNCILLOR EXPENSES  
In accordance with Section 75 of the Act, Council is required to reimburse a Councillor for 
expenses incurred while performing his or her duties as a Councillor. 

Council is also required to adopt and maintain a policy in relation to the reimbursement of 
expenses for Councillors. The policy provides guidance for the payment of reimbursements 
of expenses and the provision of resources, facilities and other support to the Mayor and 
Councillors to enable them to discharge their duties.  

2016-17 Councillor expenses ($)

Councillor Travel/Car Carer IT and 
Communications

Training and 
Education Total

Cr Ablett 0 0   3,263 310 3,573 

Cr Aziz 15,635 0   9,065   6,285 30,984 

Cr Beardon 0 0              825    1,496 2,321 

Cr Berkelmans 537 0        405 0     941 

Cr Crestani 5,749 0         2,974 0 8,723 

Cr Flannery 0 0     529 0    529 

Cr Gilic 0 0        679 0   679 

Cr Jackson 0 0         496 0    496 

Cr Kaplon 1,044 0         958  505 2,506 

Cr Morland 1,782 0     1,098       98 2,979 

Cr Rosario 0 0  792 0  792 

Cr Rowe 0 0 1,038 0 1,038 

Cr Serey 0 0   3,087 1,752 4,840 

Cr Smith 2,417 0    4,350 1,212 7,980 

Cr Stapledon   213 1,553 5,345 0 7,112 
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Management 

AUDIT AND ETHICS COMMITTEE    
The Audit and Ethics Committee’s role is 
to monitor, review and advise Council on 
the standard of its financial control, risk 
management and corporate governance. 
The Committee assists Council in carrying 
out its responsibilities for accountable 
financial management, good corporate 
governance, maintaining an effective system 
of internal control and risk management and 
fostering an ethical environment. 

The Audit and Ethics Committee consists 
of three independent members, Mr Homi 
Burjorjee (Chair), Mr Robert Bennett, Mr 
Vincent Philpott, and two Councillors. 
Independent members are appointed for a 
three-year term.  Retiring members shall be 
eligible to reapply for membership. The Chair 
is elected from amongst the independent 
members.

The Audit and Ethics Committee meets 
six times a year. The Internal Auditor, 
Chief Executive Officer, or nominated 
representative, Chief Financial Officer and 
Strategic Advisor (Probity) attend all Audit 
and Ethics Committee meetings. Other 
management representatives attend as 
required to present reports. The external 
auditors attend twice a year to present the 
financial statements audit strategy and the 
financial statements.

Minutes from each Audit and Ethics 
Committee meeting are subsequently 
reported to, and considered by Council.

INTERNAL AUDIT 
Council’s internal audit function provides 
independent and objective assurance that 
the appropriate processes and controls 
are in place across Council.  Internal 
Audit services are provided by an external 
provider with extensive local government 
experience. A risk based three-year Internal 
Audit Plan is revised annually to ensure 
the audit resources remain focused on the 
appropriate areas. The review process 
considers Council’s risk framework, the 
Council Plan, the impact of any change 
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on operations, systems or the business 
environment, prior audit coverage and 
outcomes, and management input. The 
three-year and annual Audit Plans are 
reviewed and approved by the Audit 
Committee annually. 

The Internal Auditor attends each Audit and 
Ethics Committee meeting to report on the 
status of the annual audit plan, to provide 
an update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations and to present findings 
of completed reviews. The responsible 
Managers for each area reviewed are 
required to attend the Audit and Ethics 
Committee meeting to respond to questions 
in relation to the reviews.  

All audit issues identified are risk rated. 
Recommendations are assigned to 
the responsible Manager and tracked 
by Council in a management system. 
Managers provide regular status updates 
that are reviewed and reported to the 
Executive Management Team and the Audit 
and Ethics Committee. Quality assurance 
is measured through the annual Audit and 
Ethics Committee self-assessment and 
completion of the Internal Audit Plan.

EXTERNAL AUDIT 
Council is externally audited by the 
Victorian Auditor-General. For 2016-17, the 
annual external audit of Council’s Financial 
Statements and Performance Statement 
was conducted by the Victorian Auditor-
General’s Audit Service provider, RSM. 
The external auditors attend the February 
and August Audit and Ethics Committee 
meetings to present the financial 
statements audit strategy and the audit 
reviewed financial statements. The external 
audit management letter and management 
responses are also provided to the Audit 
and Ethics Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT 
Effective risk management, as a corner 
stone of good corporate governance, 
results in better service delivery, more 
efficient use of resources, and better 
project management. Risk management 
continues to be an integral part of service 

planning and daily operations at the City 
of Casey. Council has a comprehensive 
and mature risk management framework 
in place and consistently monitors all 
areas of the organisation to improve 
the management of risk to achieve best 
practice. 

The purpose of Council’s Business 
Continuity Plan is to build organisational 
capability to support the critical functions of 
Council in the event we have an interruption 
affecting our buildings, technology or 
resources. The plan is an internal-facing 
document and focuses on Council’s 
operations and its ability to continue 
to provide services or outcomes which 
affect the community. Council’s Business 
Continuity Plan is reviewed every two years.

A comprehensive prevention of fraud and 
corruption program has been in place since 
2008 with Council staff trained on how to 
recognise and report fraud and corruption. 

Council’s Audit and Ethics Committee 
through the internal audit process, 
audits the risk management framework, 
prevention of fraud program and business 
continuity plan in each three-year internal 
audit cycle.  In addition, the development 
of the three-year internal audit plan links to 
the operational and strategic risk registers.

MUNICIPAL MONITOR
The State Government appointed a 
Municipal Monitor following the State 
Ombudsman’s report in June 2016. The 
Council moved swiftly to complete the 
Ombudsman’s five recommendations 
within two weeks of the report being 
tabled at Parliament.  Council welcomed 
the opportunity to work with the Monitor 
throughout July and August to discuss 
Council’s decision making and governance. 
Some minor improvements were identified. 
The monitor confirmed the City of Casey 
as a highly functioning Council that was 
working to the highest standards of 
governance and transparency.
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Governance and Management Checklist   
The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment against the 
prescribed governance and management checklist.

Governance and Management Item YES  
or NO

Date if YES /  
Reason(s) if answer is NO

Community engagement policy  
(policy outlining Council’s commitment to 
engaging with the community on matters of 
public interest)

YES Date of operation of current policy/
strategy: Community Engagement 
Strategy 06/09/2016

Community engagement guidelines 
(guidelines to assist staff to determine when 
and how to engage with the community) 

YES Date of operation of current policy:  
Operating Community 
Consultation Policy 17/09/2013

Strategic Resource Plan  
(plan under section 126 of the Act outlining the 
financial and non-financial resources required 
for at least the next 4 financial years) 

YES Date of plan adopted in 
accordance with section 126 of 
the Act:   
Strategic Resource Plan 2017-21 
27/06/2017

Annual budget  
(plan under section 130 of the Act setting out 
the services to be provided and initiatives to 
be undertaken over the next 12 months and 
the funding and other resources required)

YES Budget adopted in accordance 
with section 130 of the Act:  
Budget 2017-18 27/06/2017

Asset management plans  
(plans that set out the asset maintenance and 
renewal needs for key infrastructure asset 
classes for at least the next 10 years)

YES Date of operation of current plans: 
»  Asset Service Levels and 

Financial Forecasts 18/11/2014
»  Roads Asset Management Plan 

21/05/2014
»  Bridges and Drainage Asset 

Management Plan 20/05/2014
»  Open Space Asset 

Management Plan 10/09/2014
»  Buildings Asset Management 

Plan 20/05/2014

Rating strategy  
(strategy setting out the rating structure of 
Council to levy rates and charges)

YES Date of operation of current 
strategy:  
Rating Strategy 27/06/2017

Risk policy  
(policy outlining Council’s commitment and 
approach to minimising the risks to Council’s 
operations)

YES Date of operation of current policy:  
Risk Management Policy 
22/09/2014

Fraud policy  
(policy outlining Council’s commitment and 
approach to minimising the risk of fraud)

YES Date of operation of current policy:  
Prevention of Fraud and 
Corruption Policy 19/05/2015

Municipal emergency management plan 
(plan under section 20 of the Emergency 
Management Act 1986 for emergency 
prevention, response and recovery)

YES Plan prepared and maintained in 
accordance with section 20 of the 
Emergency Management Act 1986 
Municipal Emergency 
Management Plan 01/04/2014 
Date of revision: 18/07/2017
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Governance and Management Item YES  
or NO

Date if YES /  
Reason(s) if answer is NO

Procurement policy  
(policy under section 186A of the Local 
Government Act 1989 outlining the matters, 
practices and procedures that will apply to all 
purchases of goods, services and works)  

YES Plan prepared and approved in 
accordance with section 186A of 
the Local Government Act:   
Procurement Policy 06/09/2016

Business continuity plan  
(plan setting out the actions that will be taken 
to ensure that key services continue to operate 
in the event of a disaster)

YES Date of operation of current plan:  
Business Continuity Plan 
11/07/2017

Disaster recovery plan  
(plan setting out the actions that will be 
undertaken to recover and restore business 
capability in the event of a disaster)

YES Date of operation of current plan: 
Disaster Recovery Plan 
11/07/2017 incorporated into the 
Business Continuity Plan

Risk management framework  
(framework outlining Council’s approach to 
managing risks to the Council’s operations)

YES Date of operation of current 
framework:  
Risk Management Plan 01/03/2016 
Risk Management Procedure 
Manual 01/03/2016

Audit Committee  
(advisory committee of Council under section 
139 of the Act whose role is to oversee the 
integrity of a Council’s financial reporting, 
processes to manage risks to the Council’s 
operations and for compliance with applicable 
legal, ethical, and regulatory requirements)  

YES Committee established in 
accordance with section 139 of 
the Act on 17/09/1996

Internal audit  
(independent accounting professionals 
engaged by the Council to provide analyses 
and recommendations aimed at improving 
Council’s governance, risk and management 
controls)

YES Internal Audit Charter in place. 
Internal auditor appointed on 
4-year contract.   
Date of engagement of current 
provider: 17/07/2015

Performance reporting framework  
(a set of indicators measuring financial and 
non-financial performance, including the 
performance indicators referred to in section 
131 of the Act)  

NO A Corporate Performance 
Reporting Framework is being 
currently developed and expected 
to be endorsed late 2017. 

Council Plan reporting  
(report reviewing the performance of the 
Council against the Council Plan, including the 
results in relation to the strategic indicators, for 
the first six months of the financial year)

YES Date of reports:  
Quarterly Report to the Community 
(Q1) 06/12/2016,  
Quarterly Report to the Community 
(Q2) 21/02/2017, Quarterly Report 
to the Community (Q3) 06/06/2017 
and Quarterly Report to the 
Community (Q4) 19/09/2017.
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Mike Tyler 
Chief Executive Officer  
Dated: 20 September 2017

Cr Sam Aziz  
Mayor 
Dated: 20 September 2017

Governance and Management Item YES  
or NO

Date if YES /  
Reason(s) if answer is NO

Financial reporting 
(quarterly statements to Council under section 
138 of the Act comparing budgeted revenue 
and expenditure with actual revenue and 
expenditure)

YES Date statements presented: 
Quarterly Finance Report (Q1) 
06/12/2015, 
Quarterly Finance Report (Q1) 
21/02/2017, 
Quarterly Finance Report (Q1) 
06/06/2017, 
Quarterly Finance Report (Q1) 
19/09/2017.

Risk reporting  
(six-monthly reports of strategic risks 
to Council’s operations, their likelihood 
and consequences of occurring and risk 
minimisation strategies)

YES Confidential Reports presented 
six-monthly to Council 
Date of reports: 
In Camera Report 13/10/2016
Due to the Organisational redesign 
and council elections, only 1 
report was submitted.

Performance reporting  
(six-monthly reports of indicators measuring 
the results against financial and non-financial 
performance, including performance indicators 
referred to in section 131 of the Act) 

YES Date of reports: 
Half year report 1: 14/03/2017 
Half year report 2: 05/09/2017

Annual report  
(annual report under sections 131, 132 and 
133 of the Act to the community containing 
a report of operations and audited financial 
performance statements)

YES Annual Report considered at a 
meeting of Council in accordance 
with section 134 of the Act  
Date presented: 18/10/2016

Councillor Code of Conduct  
(Code under section 76C of the Act setting 
out the conduct principles and the dispute 
resolution processes to be followed by 
Councillors)

YES Reviewed in accordance with 
section 76C of the Act   
Date Reviewed: 14/02/2017

Delegations  
(a document setting out the powers, duties 
and functions of Council and the Chief 
Executive Officer that have been delegated to 
members of staff)

YES Reviewed in accordance with 
section 98(6) of the Act   
Date of Review: 04/05/2017

Meeting procedures  
(a local law governing the conduct of meetings 
of Council and special committees)

YES Meeting procedures local law 
prepared in accordance with 
section 91(1) of the Act  
Date of Local Law preparation: 
01/01/2016

I certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and 
management arrangements.
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Statutory information
The following information is provided in accordance with legislative and other requirements 
applying to council.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC 
INSPECTION
In accordance with Part 12 of the Local 
Government (General) Regulations 2015 
the following is a list of the prescribed 
documents that are available for inspection 
or copies of the documents can be 
obtained for the purposes of section 222 of 
the Local Government Act 1989.  
»  Details of overseas and interstate travel 

(with the exception of interstate travel by 
land for less than three days) undertaken 
in an official capacity by Councillors or 
any member of Council staff in the 
previous 12 months.

»  Agendas for and minutes of ordinary and 
special meetings of Council held in the 
previous 12 months, except if the 
minutes relate to parts of meetings that 
have been closed to the public.

»  Minutes of meetings of special 
committees held in the previous 12 

months except if the minutes relate to 
parts of meetings that have been closed 
to members of the public.

»  Details of property, finance and 
operating leases involving land, 
buildings, plant, computer equipment or 
vehicles entered into by the Council as a 
lessor or lessee, including the name of 
the other party to the lease and the terms 
and value of the lease.

»  A register of delegations kept under 
sections 87(1) and 98(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1989, including the date 
of the last review.

»  A register of authorised officers 
appointed under section 224 of the Local 
Government Act 1989.

»  A list of donations and grants made by the 
Council during the financial year, 
including the names of persons or bodies 
which have received a donation or grant 
and the amount of each donation or grant.
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CONTRACTS 
During the year, Council did not enter into 
any contracts valued at $150,000 or more for 
services, or $200,000 or more for works or 
more of a specific kind specified in section 
186(5)(a) and (c) of the Act. It also did not 
enter into any contract valued at $150,000 
or more for goods or services or $200,000 
or more for goods and services or $200,000 
or more for works without engaging in a 
competitive process. 

ACCESSIBILITY ACTION PLAN 
»  Council is currently preparing the new City 

of Casey Accessibility Action Plan 2017-
2021, which provides a strategic approach 
in response to Council meeting its 
obligation to legislative requirements and 
specifically the Disability Discrimination 
Act 1992 and the Charter of Human Rights 
and Responsibilities Act 2006. It also 
ensures compliance with the Disability Act 
2006 Vic section 38.  

»  In partnership with Outlook Vic, Life 
Without Barriers and The Bridge 
disabilities services the International Day 
of People with Disability (IDPWD) Fete was 
held 2 December 2016, at the Cranbourne 
Shopping Centre. The IDPWD is a United 
Nations sanctioned day that is celebrated 
internationally. It aims to increase public 
awareness, understanding and 
acceptance of people with disability and 
celebrate the achievements and 
contributions of people with disability. The 
2016 Fete provided an opportunity for 
people with a disability to showcase and 
sell many items they had crafted, as well 
as deliver musical performances to an 
audience of 250 people. 

»  In conjunction with Outlook Employment 
and Vision Australia, Council delivered the 
Safe Travel on Metro Trains program on 3 
and 4 May 2017 to 30 people with 
disabilities. This program aimed to 
increase confidence of people with 
disabilities in using the Metro Train system, 
therefore improving employment 
prospects and independent travelling 
skills. 

»  In partnership with the Rotary Club of 
Casey the bi-annual Rotary Club of Casey 

Presentation Ball was delivered 20 August 
2016, involving 42 people with a disability 
attending 10 weeks of preparation dance 
classes, performing dances on the night of 
the ball and presented to the Mayor of 
Casey, the District Governor of Rotary and 
the President of the Rotary Club of Casey. 

»  Continued to support the Communities in 
Partnership Network which supports 
disability support providers to enhance 
their capacity to provide relevant and 
appropriate supports within the 
community.

CARERS RECOGNITION
In accordance with the Carers Recognition 
Act 2012, Council is required to report 
annually on its care measurement obligations 
under Section 11 of that Act. Council took 
all practical measures to comply with 
its responsibilities outlined in the Carers 
Recognition Act 2012. Council has promoted 
the principles of that Act to people in care 
relationships who receive council services, 
to people in care relationships and the wider 
community by:
»  Distributing printed material through 

relevant Council services.
»  Providing information to organisations 

represented in council and community 
networks.

Council took all practical measures to ensure 
staff, Council agents and volunteers working 
for council are informed about the principles 
and obligations of the Act by including 
information on the care relationship in:
»  Council induction and training programs 

for staff working in Community Care and 
disability services.

»  Council induction and training programs 
for staff working in front-line positions with 
the general community. 

»  Induction and training programs for 
volunteers working directly with the 
community. 

In partnership with Alfred Health, a week 
of free activities were delivered from 12 to 
16 September 2016 for 20 carers. The aim 
was to encourage carers to participate in 
community activities for improved health 
and wellbeing, as well as acknowledge their 
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contribution to the community. At the end 
of the week, carers came together for a 
luncheon at the Cranbourne Royal Botanic 
Gardens, where Cr Amanda Stapledon 
acknowledged their contributions, and were 
provided with information and resources to 
support their caring role.   

DOMESTIC ANIMAL MANAGEMENT 
PLAN 
In accordance with the Domestic Animals 
Act 1994, Council is required to prepare 
a Domestic Animal Management Plan 
at four yearly intervals and evaluate its 
implementation in the Annual Report. 

During 2016-17, Council continued to 
implement its existing Domestic Animal 
Management Plan 2013-2016 by collecting 
1,196 dogs and 1,171 cats; registering 
5,514 new pets; seizing 71 dogs pending 
court outcomes; offering discounted 
registration fees for micro-chipped and 
de-sexed animals in accordance with the 
Domestic Animals Act 1994; and publishing 
information about responsible pet 
ownership. Online renewal of registration 
for pets was successfully launched as part 
of the digital strategy in April 2017.

FOOD ACT MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS 
In accordance with section 7E of the Food 
Act 1984, Council is required to publish 
a summary of any Ministerial Directions 
received during the financial year in its 
Annual Report.

No such Ministerial Directions were 
received by Council during the financial 
year.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 
In accordance with section 7(4AA)(a) and 
7(4AA)(b) of the Freedom of Information 
Act 1982, Council is required to publish 
certain statements in their annual report 
or separately such as on its website, 
concerning its functions and information 
available. Council has chosen to publish 
the statements separately however 
provides the following summary of the 
application and operation of the Freedom 
of Information Act 1982.

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 
provides members of the community 
with a legally enforceable right of access 
to documents held by Council, unless 
exemptions apply.

Common exemptions include documents 
containing material obtained in confidence 
(such as the details of complaints about 
neighbourhood nuisances such as barking 
dogs), personal information where release 
would be unreasonable (including the 
details of an individual’s health or financial 
position) and material of a commercially 
sensitive nature.

Reasons are provided if requests are 
refused and the applicant is advised of 
the appeal rights that apply. Requests 
under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 
should be directed to:
Freedom of Information Officer 
City of Casey
PO Box 1000
Narre Warren 3805

All requests must be in writing giving 
sufficient information to enable Council to 
identify the document sought.

An application form is available from the 
Freedom of Information Officer who can also 
provide advice on the wording of the request, 
or downloaded from Council’s website.

The application fee is $28.40 from 1 July 
2017 and the charge for searching is 
$21.30 per hour.

There were 55 Freedom of Information 
requests lodged in 2016-17.

For more information contact the Freedom 
of Information Officer. 
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PRIVACY REPORT 
Council is required to comply with the 
Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and 
the Health Records Act 2001. Under these 
Acts, Council is required to be as open as 
possible in regard to how Council collects, 
uses, stores and protects the personal and 
health information it holds.

Council is committed to protecting people’s 
right to privacy and the responsible and fair 
handling of personal information, consistent 
with the Privacy and Data Protection 
Act 2014 and the Health Records Act 
2001. These Acts outline several privacy 
principles the Council must adhere to when 
undertaking its statutory functions and 
activities, so the privacy of individuals can 
be protected.

Council’s Privacy Policy is available from 
all Council offices and can be viewed on 
Council’s website at www.casey.vic.gov.au/
privacy.

Council has established a process 
for receiving, logging, actioning and 
management reporting of requests 
for information to ensure it meets the 
requirements of the Privacy and Data 
Protection Act 2014 or other legislation.

The Request for Information document 
can also be found and downloaded from 
Council’s website at www.casey.vic.gov.au. 

Further queries regarding privacy matters 
and the handling of personal information 
should be directed to:
Privacy Officer
City of Casey
PO Box 1000
Narre Warren 3805
Tel: 9705 5200
Email: caseycc@casey.vic.gov.au

PROTECTED DISCLOSURE 
PROCEDURES 
In accordance with section 70 of the 
Protected Disclosure Act 2012, Council must 
include in their Annual Report information 
about how to access the procedures 
established by the Council under Part 9 of 
that Act. We are also required to provide 
certain information about the number and 
types of protected disclosures complaints 
during the financial year.

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 aims 
to ensure openness and accountability 
in government by encouraging people to 
disclose improper conduct within the public 
sector and provide protection for people who 
make disclosures. Procedures on how to 
make a disclosure are publicly available on 
Council’s website.

During the 2016-17 financial year, no 
disclosures were notified to IBAC under 
section 21(2) of the Protected Disclosure Act 
2012.

ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT MINISTERIAL 
DIRECTION
In accordance with section 22 of the Road 
Management Act 2004, Council must 
publish a copy or summary of any Ministerial 
Direction in its Annual Report.

No such Ministerial Directions were received 
by Council during the 2016-17 financial year.
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Development Contributions Plan (DCP) 2016-17

City of Casey Year DCP 
Approved

DCPO# Levies 
Received $

Lyndhurst 2002 DCPO3  1,250,972 

Cranbourne East LSP3 2008 DCPO4  672,957 

Cranbourne (Thompsons Road) LSP6 1993 DCPO5  0 

Narre Warren South (Cell Q) 1997 DCPO6  50,952 

Fountain Gate/Narre Warren 2006 DCPO7  3,933 

Berwick South 1998 DCPO8  266,612 

Ti-Tree Creek 1998 DCPO9  1,064 

Cranbourne East 2010 DCPO10  3,759,390 

Cranbourne North 2011 DCPO11  6,991,571 

Cranbourne West 2010 DCPO12  3,071,312 

Clyde North 2011 DCPO13  10,224,460 

Botanic Ridge 2012 DCPO14  3,155,212 

Clyde 2014 DCPO15  16,852,737 

Berwick Waterways 2014 DCPO18  101,706 

Brompton Lodge 2016 DCPO19  0

Total  $46,402,876 

Table 1: Total Development Contribution Plan (DCP) levies

Name of 
Development 
Contribution Plan 

Total Levies 
Received ($)

Total Levies 
Expended ($)

Total Development 
Contribution Plan 
Contributions 
Received (levies 
and works-in-kind) 
($)

Brompton Lodge  $                            -    $                                       
-   

 $                                             
-   

Totals  NIL  NIL  NIL 

Table 2: Total Development Contribution Plan (DCP) contributions received and expended 
to date (for DCPs approved after 1 June 2016)
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Name of Development 
Contribution Plan

Project ID Project Description Item Purpose Project Value 
($)

Clyde (Thompsons PSP) RD53-01A Land for Thompsons Road Widening Road Network 798,781 
Clyde (Thompsons PSP) RD53-01B Land for Thompsons Road Widening Road Network 68,263 
Clyde (Thompsons PSP) IN53-02 Land for flaring Thompsons/Connector Road Network 14,180 
Clyde (Thompsons PSP) RD53-01B Thompsons Road construction Road Network 683,351 
Clyde (Thompsons PSP) IN53-01 Cons Thompsons roundabout connection Road Network 318,110 
Clyde (Thompsons PSP) IN53-02 Thompsons Road/Connector intersection Road Network 705,937 
Clyde (Thompsons PSP) RD53-01A Thompsons Road construction Road Network 155,230 
Clyde (Thompsons PSP) BR53-01 Thompsons Road culvert Road Network 27,510 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) IN53-12 Land for Berwick/cran Road/Hardys road intersection Road Network 186,225 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) RD54-01 Land for Hardys Road widening Road Network 783,816 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) IN54-05 Land for flaring Pattersons/Connector Road intersection Road Network 23,730 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) LS54-01 Land for Active Open Space Active Open Space Reserve 5,347,500 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) IN54-05 Cons of Pattersons/Connector road intersection Road Network 2,681,753 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) IN54-04 Cons of Berwick/Cran /Pattersons intersection Road Network 1,302,839 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) RD54-02 Cons of Pattersons Road Part 1 Road Network 1,869,416 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) RD54-02 Land for Pattersons Road widening Road Network 517,282 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) IN54-05 Land for flaring Pattersons/Connector Road intersection Road Network 77,379 
Clyde (Clyde Creek PSP) RD54-02 Land for Pattersons Road widening Road Network 436,218 
Cranbourne East none  0 
Cranbourne North RD02 Land for Glasscocks Rd widening Road Network 1,230,000 
Botanic Ridge none  0 
Cranbourne West RD04 Land for Evans Road widening Road Network 348,583 
Clyde North RD11 Soldiers Road intersection Road Network 3,488,936 
Clyde North RD04 Soldiers Road construction Road Network 925,528 
Brompton Lodge none 0 
Total  $ 21,990,566 

Table 3: Development Contribution Plan land, works, services or facilities accepted as works-in-kind in FYE 2017
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Project Description
Development 
Contribution 

Plan  
Project ID

Development 
Contribution 
Plan Name

Year  
Development 
Contribution 

Plan Ap-
proved

Development 
Contribution 

Plan Fund 
Expended ($)

Works-in-
kind  

accepted ($)
Council Con-
tribution ($)

Other Contri-
butions ($)

Total Project 
Expenditure 

($)

Percentage 
of item 

delivered

Land for Grices Road RD02 Clyde North 2011 630,000  130,651  760,651 5%

Constn Selandra 
Community Centre

CI06 Cranbourne 
East

2010 250,000   2,500,000 2,750,000 50%

Constn Grices Rd RD05b Clyde North 2011 1,049,796    1,049,796 100%

Constn Heather Grove RD04 Cranbourne 
East

2010 568,725    568,725 40%

Constn Selandra LTC 
with Community Centre

LTC-01 Cranbourne 
East

2010 1,573,200  224,510  1,797,710 50%

Constn Barton Rec 
Reserve

OS02a Cranbourne 
West

2010 63,481  0  63,481 10%

Constn Ballarto/Sth 
Gipps Hwy

RD14 Cranbourne 
East

2010 58,770    58,770 2%

Shared path network- Ti 
Tree creek

P1 Ti-Tree 
Creek

1998 446,222    446,222 50%

Constn Wheelers/
Thompsons Instn

RD20 Cranbourne 
North

2011 26,375 2,375,823   2,402,198 100%

Land for Thompsons/
Wheelers flaring

RD10 Cranbourne 
North

2011 155,000    155,000 100%

Land for NWC Rd/
Glasscocks

RD08 Cranbourne 
North

2011 25,780    25,780 100%

Totals 4,847,349 2,375,823 355,161 2,500,000 10,078,333 

Table 4: Land, works, services or facilities delivered in FYE 2017 from Development Contribution Plan Levies Collected 

INFRASTRUCTURE CONTRIBUTION PLANS
There were no Infrastructure Contribution Plan funds received, works accepted in kind, contributions received or expended, land works, services or 
facilities delivered in 2016-17.
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Customer Service  
Commitments 2016-17 
The following table outlines the organisation’s performance against its 
Customer Service Commitments for 2016-17. 

Area Commitment Calculation

Animal 
Management

We will audit every registered domestic animal 
business annually to ensure compliance with 
relevant codes of practice

120%

Animal 
Management

We will initiate investigation into complaints of dog 
attacks against people or animals within 2 - 24 
hours of a report being received

100%

Animal 
Management

We will process new dog and cat registration 
applications within five working days of an 
application and payment being received

77.42%

Arts and Events We will issue notification of all permits and other 
requirements necessary to hold a community 
event in the municipality within ten working days of 
receiving all information from applicant(s)

83.38%

Arts and Events We will provide the community a minimum of four 
weeks’ notice for all Council managed community 
training and events

77.27%

Building 
Management

We will commence investigation for urgent 
maintenance requests for council buildings within 
one working day of a request

97.50%

Building 
Management

We will commence investigation for non-urgent 
maintenance requests for council buildings within 
five working days of a request

98.39%

Building Services We will provide property information certificates 
within five working days of an application being 
received

99.96%

Building Services We will provide copies of building plans and 
permits within seven working days of an application 
being received. Copies may not be available for 
properties over 40 years old.

100%

Building Services We will process applications for dispensations to 
building regulations within 15 statutory days of a 
complete application being received

87.37%

Building Services We will commence investigations into complaints/
concerns relating to dangerous buildings and 
unfenced pools or spas within two working days of 
a complaint being received

100%
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Area Commitment Calculation

Building Services We will assess and initiate appropriate action for 
complaints/concerns relating to building works/
matters within ten working days

97.07%

Community Safety We will remove/obliterate graffiti within 24 hours 
of receiving consent from the property owner or 
occupier

88.30%

Construction 
Supervision

We will inspect and make safe dangerous footpaths 
within 20 working days of a report being received

93.73%

Construction 
Supervision

We will inspect and provide advice on vehicle 
crossing enquiries within five working days

49.04%

Drainage and 
Cleaning

We will remove roadside rubbish and litter within 10 
working days of a request being received

76.48%

Drainage and 
Cleaning

We will remove dead animals from Council roads 
and paths within one working day of a report being 
received

95.63%

Drainage and 
Cleaning

We will investigate blocked council owned drains 
and pits within five working days of a report being 
received

56.76%

Drainage and 
Cleaning

We will inspect and make safe missing or damaged 
pit lids within 24 hours of a report being received

80.29%

Early Parenting 
Support

All first-time parents will be invited to attend a first-
time parent group before their child reaches four 
months of age

97.61%

Early Parenting 
Support

We will contact you to discuss your referral to early 
parenting support within three working days of 
being received

94.87%

Early Parenting 
Support

We will follow up with you within 10 working days 
with a phone call after your first early parenting 
support home visit

95.80%

Environmental 
Health

We will investigate public health nuisance concerns 
within 48 hours of notification

100.00%

Environmental 
Health

We will complete new health business registration 
applications and issue certificates of registration, 
within five working days, following receipt of 
relevant documentation, payment of fees, and 
satisfactory inspection

72.84%

Environmental 
Health

We will collect discarded syringes in public places 
within two hours of notification

100%

Family Day Care We will schedule your Family Day Care appointment 
within five working days of a request

100%

Family Day Care We will provide you with contact details for up to three 
educators within five working days of your enrolment

90.77%
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Area Commitment Calculation

Fire Prevention We will assess permits to burn within ten working 
days of a request being received

97.55%

Fire Prevention We will undertake property inspections for fire 
hazard requests during the fire danger period 
within five working days of notification

48.44%

Fire Prevention We will undertake property inspections for long 
grass requests during non-fire danger period within 
ten working days of notification

85.29%

Governance Council minutes will be made available six working 
days after a Council meeting

100%

Governance We will process freedom of information requests 
within 45 calendar days from when all required 
information has been received

85.96%

Home and 
Community Care

We will advise you if you are eligible for 
Commonwealth Home Support Programme services 
within three working days and if eligible, an 
assessment will be arranged with you

90%

Home and 
Community Care

If we do not provide the Commonwealth Home 
Support Programme services you require, you will 
be referred to other service providers within three 
working days

100%

Home and 
Community Care

If we are informed your circumstances have 
changed, we will contact you to discuss your 
Commonwealth Home Support Programme services 
within five working days

94.87%

Home and 
Community Care

In exceptional circumstances, Commonwealth 
Home Support Programme services assessed as 
urgent will commence within 1-3 working days

89%

Home and 
Community Care

For Commonwealth Home Support Programme 
services assessed as non-urgent, we will contact 
you within five working days to discuss your service 
commencement

83.61%

Kindergarten We will provide written information about the 
kindergarten eligibility and enrolment process 
within ten working days of a complete kindergarten 
enrolment application form being received

86.40%

Local Laws We will initiate investigation into customer requests 
regarding unregistered or abandoned vehicles on 
public land within ten working days of a request 
being made

57.70%

Local Laws We will initiate investigations into parking related 
concerns within ten working days of a request 
being received

57.71%



PAGE 104       City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       

Area Commitment Calculation

Maternal and Child 
Health

We will provide you, during your home consultation, 
with a schedule of visits for your baby’s two, four 
and eight week old visits

89.42%

Maternal and Child 
Health

We will contact you within 1ten working days of your 
baby being born to make a time for a maternal and 
child health nurse to visit you in your home

91.35%

Park Services We will investigate and action general parks 
maintenance (non-urgent) requests within 10 
working days

97.24%

Park Services We will attend to emergency playground requests 
within 24 hours of a report being received

98%

Planning We will investigate all high-risk breaches of the 
planning controls within three working days of a 
request being received

None to 
report

Planning We will request further information on planning 
applications when required within 28 days of 
lodgement

85.11%

Rates We will process copies of rates notices within five 
working days of a request being made

98.19%

Rates We will process standard Land Information 
Certificates within three working days of an 
application being received

96.46%

Rates We will process urgent Land Information 
Certificates within one working day of an application 
being received

94.30%

Residential Waste 
Services Hard 
Waste

We will collect your hard waste within six days of 
the date provided to you at the time of booking

99.08%

Residential Waste 
Services Kerbside 
Bins

We will replace missing or unrepairable bins within 
three working days of a request being received

93.46%

Residential Waste 
Services Kerbside 
Bins

We will provide bins to new residential properties 
within three working days of occupation when 
notified by the resident or occupier

86.66%

Residential Waste 
Services Kerbside 
Bins

We will collect missed bin collections due to driver 
error within one working day of report being received

93.24%

Road Maintenance We will inspect and repair pot holes on Council 
sealed roads within ten working days of a report 
being received

96%
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Area Commitment Calculation

Stormwater 
Management

Land owners eligible for Shared Cost Fencing will 
receive confirmation of the amount Council will 
contribute within ten working days

82.76%

Stormwater 
Management

We will assess drainage plans and notify you of the 
outcome in writing within ten working days

48.35%

Stormwater 
Management

We will provide standard Legal points of discharge 
information within five working days of an 
application being received

93.77%

Subdivisions We will refer subdivision applications for 
certification to external referral authorities within 
seven days of lodgement

83.70%

Subdivisions We will certify compliant applications within the 49 
statutory days

85.92%

Traffic and Parking 
Management

We will allow 21 days for residents and property 
owners to submit a response when consulting with 
the community on changes to parking restrictions

100%

Traffic and Parking 
Management

We will allow 21 days for residents and property 
owners to submit a response when consulting 
with the community on proposed Local Traffic 
Management Schemes

100%

Traffic and Parking 
Management

We will issue parking permits within five working 
days of an application being received

97.65%

Trees and 
Horticulture

We will attend to emergency tree requests on 
Council land within 24 hours of a report being 
received

99.91%

Trees and 
Horticulture

We will investigate routine tree maintenance 
requests on Council land within 10 working days of 
a request being received

90.49%

Youth Support and 
Counselling

We will make contact within three working days 
upon receipt of a referral to Youth Counselling 
and Support to discuss service availability and 
commencement details

100%

Youth Support and 
Counselling

We will make referrals to another support service 
(as requested) within three working days of a 
request being received by Youth Counselling and 
Support services

100%
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Community Group/
organisation name

Grants

AWARE (Australian 
Wildlife Assistance, 
Rescue and Education) 
Inc.

$1,000.00

Action on Disabilities 
Within Ethnic 
Communities Inc. (ADEC)

$2,924.80

Al Emaan Women 
Organisation Inc.

$3,000.00

Anand Ishar $3,000.00
Australian Xinjiang Senior 
Citizens Association

$3,000.00

Balla Balla Community 
Centre Inc.

$3,000.00

Bayside Orchid Society 
Incorporated

$2,384.00

Berwick Anglican Church $2,000.00
Berwick Ayalkoottam Inc $1,000.00
Berwick Business Group 
incorporated

$2,000.00

Berwick Church of Christ $3,000.00
Berwick Mechanics' 
Institute and Free Library

$3,000.00

Berwick Toy Library Inc. $2,810.00
Beyond Disability Inc. $3,000.00
Bipolar Life Victoria $2,996.00
Blairlogie Living and 
Learning Inc.

$3,000.00

Brentwood Park 
Neighbourhood House 
Inc.

$3,000.00

Buddhist Vihara Victoria 
Inc

$3,000.00

Cannons Creek Residents 
Association

$3,000.00

Carrum Downs Samoan 
Seventh Day Adventist

$2,500.00

Community Group/
organisation name

Grants

Casey & District Multiple 
Birth Association Inc

$2,500.00

Casey Basketball 
Association

$3,000.00

Casey Cardinia 
Community Legal Service 
Inc.

$3,000.00

Casey Chinese Seniors 
Support Group Inc.

$3,000.00

Casey Choir $3,000.00
Casey Tamil Manram Inc $3,000.00
Christ Church Tooradin $3,000.00
Cranbourne Italian Senior 
Citizens Club Inc

$1,500.00

Cranbourne Lions Concert 
Band

$1,475.00

Cranbourne Presbyterian 
Church

$3,000.00

Croatian Senior Citizens 
Group Keysborough

$1,000.00

Devon Meadows Tennis 
Club

$1,330.00

El Hokamma Senior 
Citizens

$3,000.00

Federation of Indian 
Associations of Victoria

$3,000.00

Freedom Christian Church $3,000.00
Friends of Ermera $3,000.00
Girl Guides Association of 
Victoria Casey District

$2,750.00

Girl Guides Women of 
Note Mentor Breakfast

$1,000.00

Glendonald Association 
Inc.

$2,964.00

Hampton Park Community 
House

$3,000.00

2016-17 Grants to Community 
Groups and Organisations  
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Community Group/
organisation name

Grants

Hampton Park Tennis 
Club Inc.

$1,000.00

Hampton Park Turkish 
Seniors Group Inc

$3,000.00

Kaleidoscope Community 
Church

$3,000.00

Life! Central Ministries $3,000.00
Lupus Foundation $3,000.00
Multiple Sclerosis Limited $2,825.00
Narre Warren Mechanics 
Institue Hall Inc

$2,450.00

Narre Warren North 
Uniting Church

$3,000.00

National Seniors 
Australia- Berwick District 
Incorporated

$1,000.00

National Servicemen's 
Association of Australia- 
South East Vic Sub-Branch

$1,200.00

Neighbourhood Watch 
Casey

$3,000.00

Oakgrove Community 
Centre Inc.

$3,000.00

Overseas Indian Cultural 
Congress

$3,000.00

Pearcedale Netball Club 
Inc

$1,300.00

Peoples Playhouse 
Incorporated

$3,000.00

Provenance Artists Inc. $3,000.00
Pure Melodics Show Choir 
Inc.

$2,000.00

Ragas Events $2,500.00
Reading out of Poverty $1,000.00
Refitvaly Kids, Cultural 
and Language Training 
Program

$1,664.00

Community Group/
organisation name

Grants

Riding for the Disabled 
Inc - Doveton Branch

$2,000.00

Rotary Club of Casey $3,000.00
Satyam Shivam School of 
Music

$1,500.00

Serbian Community 
Association of Australia

$3,000.00

Shri Sanatan Dharam 
Society Of Victoria

$1,000.00

South East Oromo 
Children Language 
School

$2,500.00

South Eastern Christian 
Centre

$3,000.00

South Sudan Equatorians 
Association Inc.

$3,000.00

Southern Cross Kids' 
Camps - Casey

$3,000.00

Spirit of Cranbourne Inc. $3,000.00
St Vincent de Paul 
- Endeavour Hills 
Conference

$3,000.00

Talbingo Kindergarten $2,000.00
The Bridge Inc. $3,000.00
The Global Coalition for 
Change

$2,900.00

Valluvar Foundation 
(Australian Tamil 
Academy)

$1,200.00

Voices of Casey $2,820.00
Warneet Association Inc. $2,000.00
Women's Housing Limited $3,000.00
YMCA $3,000.00

 Total $197,992.80
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Performance  
Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2017 
R17(1)

DESCRIPTION OF MUNICIPALITY 

The City of Casey is 410 square kilometres in area and is located 35km to the south east of 
Melbourne’s central business district. Casey has five distinct geographic regions stretching from 
the foothills of the Dandenong Ranges to the coastal villages of Western Port Bay. 

Casey’s suburbs include Beaconsfield (part), Botanic Ridge, Berwick, Blind Bight, Cannons 
Creek, Clyde, Clyde North, Cranbourne, Cranbourne North, Cranbourne East, Cranbourne 
South, Cranbourne West, Devon Meadows, Doveton, Endeavour Hills, Eumemmerring, Five 
Ways, Hallam, Hampton Park, Junction Village, Lynbrook, Lyndhurst, Lysterfield South, Narre 
Warren, Narre Warren North, Narre Warren South, Pearcedale, Tooradin and Warneet.

The City of Casey is on the traditional land of the Bunurong and Wurundjeri people. The City of 
Casey established in 1994 following the amalgamation of almost all of the City of Berwick, much 
of the City of Cranbourne, and a small part of the City of Knox. The name ‘Casey’ was given to 
the municipality in recognition of the area’s links with Lord Richard and Lady Maie Casey. 

Casey’s population is growing. Population and housing forecasts indicate that the number of 
residents will increase to approximately 514,000 and the number of households will rise to 
171,000 by 2041.

Casey remains one of the fastest growing regions in Australia with approximately 314,000 
residents. Casey’s population currently grows by an average of 7,600 per year. The high rate of 
births is one of the contributing factors of population growth and in 2016-2017 Casey welcomed 
the birth of 5,114 babies. 
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Indicator/measure
Results

Material Variations
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

R15(3)
Sch3
R16(1)
R17(2)

Population
Animal management 
prosecutions 
 [Total expenses / 
Municipal population]

$849.46  $838.52 $813.02 No material variation

Infrastructure per head 
of municipal population 
[Value of infrastructure 
/ Municipal population]

$5,409.67 $6,067.61 $6,404.66 No material variation

Population density per 
length of road
[Municipal population 
/ Kilometres of local 
roads]

181.59 186.53 185.05 No material variation

Own-source revenue 
Own-source revenue 
per head of municipal 
population
[Own-source revenue / 
Municipal population]

$742.46  $782.27  $787.36 No material variation

Recurrent grants 
Recurrent grants per 
head of municipal 
population
[Recurrent grants / 
Municipal population]

$205.56  $144.01 $220.27 The increase is mainly due 
to the timing of disbursement 
of grants by the Victoria 
Grant Commission (which 
is driven by Commonwealth 
Government budget 
decisions), a portion of the 
2017/18 grant was paid 
in advance in the 2016/17 
year (so 1.5 years of grant), 
combined with the fact that a 
portion of the 2015/16 grant 
was paid in advance in the 
2014/15 year (so 0.5 year of 
grant in 15/16).  Kindergarten 
grants have also increased, 
due to the introduction of 
new child to teacher ratios 
in 2016, for which a back 
payment from 2015/16 was 
received in 2016/17.

Disadvantage 
Relative  
Socio-Economic 
Disadvantage
[Index of Relative 
Socio-Economic 
Disadvantage by 
decile]

7.00  7.00 7.00 No material variation

REFERENCES
REG     R
BETTER PRACTICE  BP
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Service Performance Indicators  
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Indicator/measure
Results

Material Variations
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

BP Definitions 

“adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than: 
(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and 
(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and 
(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to 

above “infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding 
land 

“local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road 
authority 
under the Road Management Act 2004 
“population” means the resident population estimated by council 
“own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not 
under the control of council (including government grants) 
“relative socio-economic disadvantage”, in relation to a municipality, means the relative 
socio-economic 
disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area in 
which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic 
Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA 
“SEIFA” means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the 
Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website 
“unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.

Indicator/measure
Results

Material Variations
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

R15(3)
Sch3
R16(1)
R17(2)

Aquatic Facilities
Utilisation
Utilisation of Aquatic 
Facilities
[Number of visits to 
aquatic facilities / 
Municipal population]

7.00 6.60 6.40  No material variation.

Animal Management
Health and Safety
Animal management 
prosecutions 
[Number of successful 
animal management 
prosecutions] 

21 31 21 The movement between 
2014/15 and 2015/16 were 
a result of a change to the 
Domestic Animals Act 1994 
relating to unregistered 
domestic animal businesses. 
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Indicator/measure
Results

Material Variations
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

R15(3)
Sch3
R16(1)
R17(2)

Food Safety
Health and Safety 
Critical and major 
non-compliance 
notifications 
[Number of critical 
non-compliance 
notifications and major 
non- compliance 
notifications about a 
food premises followed 
up / Number of critical 
non-compliance 
notifications and major 
non- compliance 
notifications about food 
premises] x100 

100% 100% 100% No material variation.

Governance
Satisfaction 
Satisfaction with 
council decisions
[Community 
satisfaction rating 
out of 100 with how 
council has performed 
in making decisions 
in the interest of the 
community]

60 58 57 No material variation

Libraries 
Participation
Active Library 
members
[Number of active 
library members / 
Municipal population] 
x100

16.00% 10.31% 9.70% The movement between 
2014/15 and 2015/16 was 
due to a change in the way 
data was measured. The 
result for 2014/15 was based 
on a range of activities, and 
2015/16 was strictly based 
on checkouts and renewals 
to measure active library 
members. 

Maternal and Child 
Health
Participation
Participation in the 
MCH Service
[Number of children 
who attend 
the MCH service at 
least once (in 
the year) / Number of 
children enrolled in the 
MCH service] x100 

75.00% 74.54%  73.28% No material variation
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Indicator/measure
Results

Material Variations
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

R15(3)
Sch3
R16(1)
R17(2)

Maternal and Child 
Health
Participation
Participation in the 
MCH Service by 
Aboriginal children
[Number of Aboriginal 
children who attend 
the MCH service at 
least once (in the year) 
/ Number of children 
enrolled in the MCH 
service] x100 

50.00%  51.53% 59.12%  This financial year the total 
number of new Aboriginal 
Families to the Maternal 
and Child Health Services 
was 54, up on 47 new from 
the previous financial year. 
In addition to new clients 
having a dedicated Maternal 
and Child Health nurse able 
to provide Home visiting 
to Aboriginal Families has 
improved accessibility to the 
service

Roads
Satisfaction
Satisfaction with sealed 
local roads
[Community 
satisfaction rating out 
Of 100 with how 
council has performed 
on the condition of 
sealed local roads] 

61 61 64  No material variation

Statutory Planning
Decision Making
Council planning 
decisions upheld at 
VCAT
[Number of VCAT 
decisions that did not 
set aside council’s 
decision in relation to 
a planning application 
/ Number of VCAT 
decisions in relation to 
planning applications] 
x100

76.00% 71.43% 55.56%  5 out of 9 decisions upheld 
by VCAT. Casey continues 
to adopt a collaborative 
approach with applicants 
to settle disputes. Casey 
has thereby reduced the 
number of VCAT appeals 
by 35% compared to last 
year (2015/16 - 14 appeals) 
despite significant increases 
in number of applications, 
and remains lower than many 
other equivalent councils.

Waste Collection
Waste Diversion 
Kerbside collection 
waste diverted from 
landfill
[Weight of recyclables 
and green 
organics collected 
from kerbside bins / 
Weight of garbage, 
recyclables and green 
organics collected from 
kerbside bins] x100

53.00% 51.40% 52.28% No material variation



PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 113

Indicator/measure
Results

Material Variations
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

BP Definitions 
“Aboriginal child” means a child who is an Aboriginal person 
“Aboriginal person” has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006 
“active library member” means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the 
library 
“annual report” means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 
and 133 of the Act 
 “class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, 
that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C of that Act 
“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, 
that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of that Act 
“critical non-compliance outcome notification” means a notification received by council 
under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an 
authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to 
public health 
“food premises” has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984 
“local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road 
authority under the Road Management Act 2004 
“major non-compliance outcome notification” means a notification received by a council 
under section 
19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized officer 
under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public 
health but may do so if no remedial action is taken 
“MCH” means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the 
health and development of children within the municipality from birth until school age 
“population” means the resident population estimated by council 
“target population” has the same meaning as in the Agreement entered into for the 
purposes of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth 
“WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident” means an incident relating to a 
council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover Authority 
under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004. 
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Dimension/Indicator/
Measure

Results Forecasts Material Variations and Comments

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Efficiency

Revenue Level
Average residential 
rate per residential 
property assessment
[Residential rate 
revenue / Number of 
residential property 
assessments]

$1,613.65 $1,672.68 $1,694.47  $1,731.57  $1,792.52 $1,855.62 $1,920.38 No material variation

Expenditure Level
Expenses per 
property assessment
[Total expenses / 
Number of property 
assessments]

$2,358.22 $2,336.97 $2,166.54 $2,555.79 $2,607.21 $2,666.57 $2,724.54 No material variation. In 2016/17, a lower 
outcome for this measure has occurred due to 
higher than expected assessment growth, as 
well as a lower level of non-capitalised Capital 
Works, that then become operating expenses.  
Across the SRP forecast period, there are 
additional service levels due to population 
growth – some of which are offset by non-
rates funded sources, as well as increasing 
depreciation from the high level of capital 
works investment in recent years – including 
from DCP and Government Grant funded 
projects, as well as Bunjil Place.

Workforce Turnover
Resignations and 
terminations compared 
to average staff 
[Number of permanent 
staff resignations and 
terminations / Average 
number of permanent 
staff for the financial 
year] x100 

9.61% 8.80% 9.30% 7.0% 6.98% 6.99% 7.0% No material variation. Across the SRP forecast 
period, Council’s target is a staff turnover rate 
of 7%.  In recent years this has been slightly 
higher, due to a combination of number of 
retirements of long serving staff, Casey staff 
being attractive to other organisations, some 
Council services that are affected by State 
and Federal Government service model 
changes, as well as an Org Redesign that 
was undertaken during 2016/17.

Financial Performance Indicators For the year ended 30 June 2017
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Liquidity

Working Capital
Current assets 
compared to current 
liabilities
[Current assets / 
Current Liabilities] 
x100

417.56% 411.16% 441.59% 481.11% 475.07% 473.61% 522.24% No material variation. This measure will 
increase during the SRP forecast period due 
to cash and financial assets increasing, as 
DCP reserve balances increase, whilst current 
liabilities, including payables and trusts and 
deposits are forecast to be lower.

Unrestricted Cash
Unrestricted cash 
compared to current 
liabilities
[Unrestricted cash 
/ Current Liabilities] 
x100

269.65% 255.44% 280.90% 384.82% 383.72% 385.03% 428.57% No material variation. This measure will 
increase during the SRP forecast period 
due to cash and financial assets increasing, 
as DCP reserve balances increase and 
(restricted) carry-over capital works decrease, 
whilst current liabilities, including payables 
and trusts and deposits are forecast to be 
lower.

Obligations

Asset Renewal
Asset renewal 
compared to 
depreciation
[Asset renewal 
expense / Asset 
depreciation x100]

 58.95%  70.32%  59.95% 80.49%   78.98% 79.04% 81.84% The asset renewal expense is less than 
depreciation, however, this reflects the 
average age of Council’s infrastructure, 
much of which is less than half way through 
its life cycle. Renewal works, as identified in 
Council’s Asset Management Plan, are a high 
priority in the allocation of funding in Council’s 
Capital Works Program.  This ratio has 
decreased in 2016/17, which is mainly due 
to higher depreciation expense in 2016/17 
as a result of asset revaluations at the end of 
the 2015/16 financial year - with depreciation 
expense increasing from $34m to $39m, 
noting expenditure was similar in both years - 
although there were a number of projects that 
were not completed in 2016/17, that will now 
occur in 2017/18.
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Dimension/Indicator/
Measure

Results Forecasts Material Variations and Comments

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Obligations (continued)

Loans and 
Borrowings
Loans and borrowings 
compared to rates
[Interest bearing loans 
and borrowings / Rate 
revenue] x100

14.24% 6.06% 25.22% 32.42% 27.01% 22.25% 18.02% This ratio has increased in 2016/17, consistent with 
Council's budgets for the 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial 
years as part of the funding plan for the Bunjil Place 
project, incorporated in Council's adopted 2016-20 
Strategic Resource Plan. Noting the extended growth 
phase that Council has and will be in, borrowings have 
been kept at a minimum for the last 8 to 10 years, with 
Capital projects funded from the Capital Works program 
without any additional borrowings for this purpose.

Loans and borrowings 
repayments 
compared to rates
[Interest and principal 
repayments on 
interest bearing loans 
and borrowings / Rate 
revenue] x100

2.06% 7.61% 1.20% 3.17% 4.28% 4.01% 3.80% Consistent with the current low level of borrowings held by 
Council, only a small portion of Council’s rates is utilised 
for debt servicing purposes.  The decrease in this ratio 
in 2016/17 was consistent with its budget, whereas the 
higher level is 2015/16 was due to a previous loan being 
fully paid off, with external contributions received in past 
years.

Indebtedness
Non-current liabilities 
compared to own 
source revenue
[Non-current liabilities 
/ Own source 
revenue] x100

30.89% 19.75% 29.19% 40.28% 34.31% 29.02% 24.53% This ratio has increased in 2016/17, due to Council's 
borrowings increasing in the 2016/17 (and 2017/18) 
financial years, as part of Council's funding plan for 
the Bunjil Place project, as incorporated in Council's 
adopted 2016-20 Strategic Resource Plan. Offsetting, the 
increased borrowings, the 2016/17 outcome has been 
positively impacted by the landfill provision being lower 
than expected, which due to timing is not reflected in the 
calculation of the SRP forecasts, which would reduce by 
close to 5% if this was applied.

Operating Position

Adjusted Underlying 
Result
Adjusted underlying 
surplus (or deficit)

19.57% 10.26% 19.90%  3.68%  5.32%  6.47%  7.11% Under the VAGO sustainability indicators, a low risk result 
for this indicator is 20%. A positive outcome is required 
for this measure to allow Council to fund its capital works 
program, which needs to meet the infrastructure demands
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[Adjusted underlying 
surplus (deficit) / 
Adjusted underlying 
revenue] x100

of its growing community, as well as maintaining and 
renewing Council’s existing asset base.  The increase 
in 2016/17, which exceeded the 16/17 budget estimate 
of 6.60%, is due to 50% of the 2017/18 VGC grant 
being received in 2016/17 (2.5%), a lower level of non-
capitalised capital works (2.4%), favourable discount rate 
movements within the employee entitlement and landfill 
provisions (3.8%), as well as higher rates and other fees 
due to development activity, and some underspends in 
expenditure.  Council expects an average outcome of 5 
to 6% for this item when preparing its future budgets, with 
2017/18 slightly lower than this due to someone off items 
that are funded from unexpended funding from previous 
years.

Stability

Rates Concentration
Rates compared to 
adjusted underlying 
revenue
[Rate revenue / 
Adjusted underlying 
revenue] x100

59.34% 69.74% 65.51% 69.38% 69.94% 70.13% 70.16% No material variation

Rates Effort

Rates compared to 
property values

[Rate revenue / 
Capital improved 
value of rateable 
properties in the 
municipality] x100 

0.40% 0.42% 0.36% 0.38% 0.40% 0.41% 0.42% This reflects Council’s “rate in the dollar” for rating 
purposes. This will vary by Council, depending on the 
overall valuation of each Council’s rate base and the level 
of rates to be raised. The use of differential rates and 
other charges by individual Council’s may vary and so this 
figure may not be directly comparable between Councils. 
This measure has decreased in 2016/17, compared 
to 2015/16, due to the application of the 2016 general 
revaluation for rating purposes in the 2016/17 financial 
year.  The CIV rate in the $ that applied for rating purposes 
decreased (which is not captured in this measure), due 
to the increase in overall property valuations across the 
municipality, so that the same amount of overall rates 
would be raised, but with a different relative distribution. 
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Other Information  
For the year ended 30 June 2017

BP 1. Basis of preparation 
Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. 
The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, 
service performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a 
description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. 
This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 
1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 
Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on 
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other 
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third 
parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics). 
The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the 
prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the 
council’s strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) 
Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained 
in the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each 
indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the 
materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature. 
The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council 
in its strategic resource plan on 27 June 2017 and which forms part of the Council Plan. The 
Strategic Resource Plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that 
were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long 
term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose 
Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting Council.
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R18(1)

R18(2)

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance 
with the
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) 
Regulations 2014.
 

                      
Andrew Davis (B.Bus(Accounting))
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated: 05-September-2017
Narre Warren

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the City of Casey for the year 
ended 30 June 2017 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) 
Regulations 2014.
The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and 
results in relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any 
particulars in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.
We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and 
Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Cr Sam Aziz     Cr Wayne Smith JP
Mayor      Councillor
Dated: 05-September-2017   Dated: 05-September-2017
Narre Warren     Narre Warren

Mike Tyler
Chief Executive Officer 
Dated: 05-September-2017
Narre Warren 

Certification of the Performance Statement
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Councillors of Casey City Council 

Opinion I have audited the accompanying performance statement of Casey City Council 
(the council) which comprises the:  

 description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 other information and 
 the certification of the performance statement. 

In my opinion, the performance statement of Casey City Council in respect of 
the year ended 30 June 2017 presents fairly, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the 
Local Government Act 1989. 

Basis for Opinion I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which 
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. My 
responsibilities under the Act are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the performance statement section of my 
report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. I and my staff 
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of 
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of 
the performance statement in Australia and have also fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for my opinion. 

Councillors' 
responsibilities for the 
performance 
statement  

The Councillors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting 
requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and for such internal control 
as the Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of the statement of performance that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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2 

Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the 
audit of the 
performance 
statement 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit 
are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance 
statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance 
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial 
report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance 
Engagements, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of performance 
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the council’s internal control 

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
statement of performance, including the disclosures, and whether the 
statement of performance represents the underlying events and results 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 
 
 

 

 
MELBOURNE 
8 September 2017 

Tim Loughnan 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Income
Rates and charges 3 203,381 192,033
Statutory fees and fines 4 9,765 7,942
User fees 5 16,269 20,485
Grants - operating 6 62,380 39,778
Grants - capital 6 18,492 15,806
Contributions - monetary 7 54,022 54,032
Contributions - non-monetary 7 57,609 75,456
Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant 
and equipment

8 1,164 -

Fair value adjustments for investment property 23 - 3,540
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures 16 4 327
Other income 9 8,423 8,034
Total income 431,509 417,433

Expenses
Employee costs 10 98,868 94,258
Materials and services 11 113,035 104,743
Bad and doubtful debts 12 38 137
Depreciation and amortisation 13 39,313 34,053
Borrowing costs 14 486 770
Net Loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant 
and equipment

8 - 3,396

Share of loss of associates and joint ventures 16 33 -
Other expenses 15 (4,523) 11,712
Total expenses 247,250 249,069

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 184,259 168,364

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 28 441 407,053
Total comprehensive result 184,700 575,417

 
The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the  
accompanying notes. 



PAGE 124       City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2017

Note 2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17 16,471 38,658
Trade and other receivables 19 21,785 21,564
Other financial assets 18 311,989 208,731
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 20 8,590 24,050
Other assets 21 4,124 2,714
Total current assets 362,959 295,717

Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 21 13 48
Investments in associates and joint ventures 16 4,794 4,823
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 22 2,767,835 2,615,371
Total non-current assets 2,772,643 2,620,242
Total assets 3,135,601 2,915,959

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 34,378 30,840
Trust funds and deposits 25 20,584 15,954
Provisions 26 23,190 23,843
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 27 4,042 1,286
Total current liabilities 82,194 71,923

Non-current liabilities
Provisions 26 22,940 34,939
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 27 46,952 10,281
Total non-current liabilities 69,892 45,220
Total liabilities 152,086 117,143

Net assets 2,983,516 2,798,816

Equity
Accumulated surplus 1,693,933 1,578,108
Reserves 28 1,289,583 1,220,708
Total Equity 2,983,516 2,798,816

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 30 June 2017

Note Total Accumulated 
Surplus

Revaluation 
Reserve

Other 
Reserves

2017 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Balance at beginning of 
the financial year

2,798,816 1,578,108 1,014,294 206,414

Surplus/(deficit) for the 
year

184,259 184,259 - -

Net asset revaluation 
increment/(decrement)

28(a) 441 - 441 -

Transfers to other reserves 28(b) - (134,872) - 134,872
Transfers from other 
reserves

28(b) 66,438 - (66,438)

Balance at end of the 
financial year

2,983,516 1,693,933 1,014,735 274,848

Note Total Accumulated 
Surplus

Revaluation 
Reserve

Other 
Reserves

2016 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Balance at beginning of 
the financial year

2,223,399 1,449,469 607,241 166,689

Surplus/(deficit) for the 
year

168,364 168,364 - -

Net asset revaluation 
increment/(decrement)

28(a) 407,053 - 407,053 -

Transfers to other reserves 28(b) - (120,144) - 120,144
Transfers from other 
reserves

28(b) - 80,419 - (80,419)

Balance at end of the 
financial year

2,798,816 1,578,108 1,014,294 206,414

 
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
As at 30 June 2017

2017 2016
Inflows/ Inflows/

(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $’000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 202,456 191,447
Statutory fees and fines 9,768 7,140
User fees 17,093 22,734
Grants - operating 62,380 39,621
Grants - capital 18,527 15,804
Contributions - monetary 53,968 53,846
Interest received 6,498 7,650
Trust funds and deposits taken 52,858 35,604
Net GST refund/payment 13,670 8,658
Employee costs (98,440) (89,987)
Materials and services (129,125) (128,391)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (48,228) (28,129)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 29 161,425 135,997

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and 
equipment

22 (140,472) (86,587)

Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant 
and equipment

21,788 4,303

Proceeds from /(Payments for acquisition) of other 
financial assets

(103,259) (42,129)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (221,943) (124,413)

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs (1,096) (817)
Proceeds from borrowings 40,763 -
Repayment of borrowings (1,336) (13,718)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 38,331 (14,535)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

(22,187) (2,951)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
financial year

38,658 41,609

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year

16,471 38,658

Financing arrangements 30
Restrictions on cash assets 17

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works
As at 30 June 2017

Note 2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Property
Land  1,893  12,709 
Total land  1,893  12,709 

Buildings  359  177 
Building improvements  205  1,156 
Total buildings  564  1,333 
Total property  2,457  14,042 
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment  3,135  3,383 
Fixtures, fittings and furniture  92  4 
Computers and telecommunications  2,515  1,542 
Total plant and equipment  5,742  4,929 

Infrastructure
Roads  17,532  13,683 
Bridges  16  214 
Footpaths and cycleways  3,316  3,266 
Drainage  465  121 
Recreational, leisure and community facilities  109,465  48,420 
Waste management  25  37 
Parks, open space and streetscapes  1,608  1,825 
Off street car parks  356  25 
Other infrastructure  97  25 
Total infrastructure  132,880  67,616 
Total capital works expenditure  141,079  86,587 

Represented by:
New asset expenditure  93,283  56,904 
Asset renewal expenditure  23,569  17,683 
Asset expansion expenditure  12,687  4,297 
Asset upgrade expenditure  11,540  7,703 
Total capital works expenditure  141,079  86,587

    
The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

Introduction
The City of Casey was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 14 October 1994 and is a 
body corporate. The Council’s main office is located at Magid Drive Narre Warren

Statement of compliance
These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive 
Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement 
of Capital Works and Notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial 
report complies with the Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989, and the Local Government 
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Note 1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, 
whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which 
they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are 
based on professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in 
future periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the 
application of AAS’s that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:
»  the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 1 (l) )
»  the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 1 (m) )
»  the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 1 (s) )
»  the determination of landfill provisions (refer to Note 1 (t) )
Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. 
Where appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and 
disclosure has been made of any material changes to comparatives.

(b) Changes in accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies from the previous period.

(c) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of Council incorporate all entities controlled by Council as at 30 
June 2017, and their income and expenses for that part of the reporting period in which control existed.
Subsidiaries are all entities over which Council has control. Council controls an entity when it is exposed 
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the 
date on which control is transferred to the Council. They are deconsolidated from the date that control 
ceases.



FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 129

Where dissimilar accounting policies are adopted by entities and their effect is considered material, 
adjustments are made to ensure consistent policies are adopted in these financial statements.
In the process of preparing consolidated financial statements all material transactions and balances 
between consolidated entities are eliminated.
No entities are consolidated into Council in this financial report

(d) Committees of management
Council’s policy is to seek all Committees of Management to incorporate pursuant to the Associations 
Incorporation Reform Act 2012. The adopted incorporated Committee of Management structure 
provides committees with the power and autonomy to effectively manage and plan for the long term 
future of the facility they utilise.
The operations of the Committees of Management are not material to the overall operations of the 
Council and their revenues and expenses are excluded from this Financial report. However, all 
land and buildings managed by Committees of Management are owned by Council and have been 
brought to account as assets of Council

(e) Accounting for investments in associates and joint arrangements
Associates
Associates are all entities over which Council has significant influence but not control or joint control. 
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially 
being recognised at cost.
Joint arrangements
Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending 
on the contractual rights and obligations each investor has, rather than the legal structure of the joint 
arrangement.
(i) Joint operations
Council recognises its direct right to, and its share of jointly held assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses of joint operations. These have been incorporated in the financial statements under the 
appropriate headings.
(ii) Joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under this method, the 
interests are initially recognised in the consolidated Balance Sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter 
to recognise Council’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other 
comprehensive income in profit or loss and other comprehensive income respectively.

(f) Revenue recognition
Income is recognised when the Council obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the 
contribution, it is probable that the economic benefits comprising the contribution will flow to the 
Council and the amount of the contribution can be measured reliably.
Rates and Charges
Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. 
Supplementary rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a 
supplementary rates notice issued.
Statutory fees and fines
Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the 
service has been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, 
whichever first occurs.
User fees
User fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or the payment is 
received, whichever first occurs.

Notes to the Financial Report
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Grants
Grant income is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution. This is normally obtained 
upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured, and are valued 
at their fair value at the date of transfer.
Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on 
condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period and those 
conditions were undischarged at balance date, the unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note 6. 
The note also discloses the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was expended 
on Council’s operations during the current year.
Contributions
Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over 
the contributed asset.
Sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to 
the buyer.
Interest
Interest is recognised as it is earned.
Dividends
Dividend revenue is recognised when the Council’s right to receive payment is established.
Other Income
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised 
when Council gains control over the right to receive the income.

(g) Fair value measurement
Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian 
Accounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce 
complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and 
disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.
AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under 
AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within a fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above.
In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Report Note 1 Significant accounting policies continued
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(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(i) Trade and other receivables
Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount as amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method would not impact the carrying value. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when 
there is objective evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

(j) Other financial assets
Other financial assets are valued at fair value, being market value, at balance date. Term deposits 
are measured at amortised cost. Any unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are 
recognised as either a revenue or expense.

(k) Non-current assets classified as held for sale
A non-current asset classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) is measured at the lower of 
its carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-
current assets, disposal groups and related liabilities and assets are treated as current and classified 
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and 
the asset’s sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date 
of classification.

(l) Recognition and measurement of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment and 
intangibles
Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of 
assets provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to 
the acquisition.  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a 
liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, 
direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly 
attributable variable and fixed  overheads.
In accordance with Council’s policy, the threshold limits detailed in Note 1(n) have applied when 
recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with 
the prior year.
Revaluation
Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and 
equipment, are measured at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an 
asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes 
of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair value. 
Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of asset 
was revalued.
Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the 
valuation hierarchy will only occur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an 
asset result in changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. Further 
details regarding the fair value hierarchy are disclosed at Note 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and 
equipment.

Notes to the Financial Report
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In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on 
a regular basis ranging from 1 to 5 years. The valuation is performed either by experienced Council 
officers or independent experts.
Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation 
reserve except to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset 
that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up 
to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where 
prior increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the 
decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of 
assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.
Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value.

(m) Depreciation and amortisation of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment and intangibles 
Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited 
useful lives are systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which 
reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful 
lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually. 
Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.
Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these 
components are assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is 
determined for each component.
Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful 
life. Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year. 
Depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods Depreciation 
Period (Years)

Threshold Limit

$’000
Property
land - Nil
land improvements 20 5
Buildings
buildings 30-100 5
building improvements 30-100 5
Plant and Equipment
plant, machinery and equipment 2-20 2
fixtures, fittings and furniture 2-10 2
computers and telecommunications 2-10 2
Infrastructure
road pavements 40-80 10
road seals 10-80 10
road formation and earthworks - Nil
road kerb, channel and minor culverts, traffic management 
devices

15-60 10

bridges deck 50-100 5
bridges substructure 50-100 5
footpaths and cycleways 10-60 5

Note 1 Significant accounting policies continued
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Notes to the Financial Report

drainage 50-100 5
outdoor sports facilities 9-100 5
waste management 20 5
open space and landscaping community facilities 10-100 5
off street car parks 30-50 5

 
Included in the computers and telecommunications asset class are computer assets which despite 
some of the individual assets being below the recognition threshold of $2,000, are recognised as 
assets as they form part of Councils Information Technology (IT) network.

(n) Repairs and maintenance
Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the 
repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation 
threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is 
expensed.

(o) Investment property
Investment property is held to generate long-term rental yields. Investment property is measured 
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are 
capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefit in excess of the originally assessed 
performance of the asset will flow to the Council. Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment 
property is carried at fair value, determined annually by independent valuers. Changes to fair value 
are recorded in the comprehensive income statement in the period that they arise. Rental income 
from the leasing of investment properties is recognised in the comprehensive income statement on a 
straight line basis over the lease term.

(p) Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and 
value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over 
its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the asset is 
carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the 
revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does 
not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.

(q) Trust funds and deposits
Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust 
funds until they are returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited 
(refer to Note 25).

(r) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of 
transaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the 
Council has categorised its interest-bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair 
value through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the 
initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net result over the period of the 
borrowing using the effective interest method.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council 
determines the classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.
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Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where 
they are capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council. Except where specific 
borrowings are obtained for the purpose of specific asset acquisition, the weighted average interest 
rate applicable to borrowings at balance date, excluding borrowings associated with superannuation, is 
used to determine the borrowing costs to be capitalised.
Borrowing costs include interest on bank overdrafts, interest on borrowings, and finance lease charges.

(s) Employee costs and benefits
The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as 
follows at reporting date.
Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated 
sick leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the 
provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as 
current liabilities and measured at their nominal values.
Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are 
recognised in the provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the present value of 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to 
apply at the time of settlement.
Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Current liability - unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability even when the council does not 
expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current liability are measured at :
»  present value - component that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months.
»  nominal value - component that is expected to be wholly settled within 12 months.
Classification of employee costs
Non-current liability - conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a 
qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non - current liability. There is an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value.

(t) Landfill rehabilitation provision
A provision is made for restoration costs on landfill sites and is measured at the present value of 
expected future cash flows of the expected costs of the works to be undertaken. The expected cost of 
works has been estimated based on current understanding of work required to reinstate the site to a 
suitable standard. Accordingly, the estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of 
the forecast timing of the works required and related costs.
Assumptions have been made on calculating the cash flow for a period of 17 years, based on the 
anticipated remediation on cost with average indexation of 3.0% and the application of Department 
of Treasury and Finance discount rates. The provision will be reviewed each year with the progress of 
restoration.

(u) Leases 
Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard to be recognised on a 
straight line basis, rather than expensed in the years in which they are incurred.

Note 1 Significant accounting policies continued
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(v) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount 
of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST 
is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. 
Receivables and payables in the Balance Sheet are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST 
component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

(w) Financial guarantees
Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the Balance Sheet unless the lender 
has exercised their right to call on the guarantee or Council has other reasons to believe that it is 
probable that the right will be exercised. Details of guarantees that Council has provided, that are not 
recognised in the Balance Sheet, are disclosed at Note 36 contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

(x) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are 
disclosed by way of a note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets 
and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.
Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal 
value by way of note and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

(y) Pending accounting standards
The following new AAS’s have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2017 reporting 
period. Council has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential 
impacts will flow from the application of these standards in future reporting periods.
Revenue from contracts with customers (AASB 15) (applies 2019/20),
The standard shifts the focus from the transaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition 
is determined based on what the customer expects to be entitled to (rights and obligations), while 
measurement encompasses estimation by the entity of the amount expected to be entitled for 
performing under the contract. The full impact of this standard is not known however it is most likely 
to impact where contracts extend over time, where there are rights and obligations that may vary the 
timing or amount of the consideration, or where there are multiple performance elements. This has 
the potential to impact on the recognition of certain grant income.
Leases (AASB 16) (applies 2019/20)
The classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases is eliminated for lessees. Leases 
will be recognised in the Balance Sheet by capitalising the present value of the minimum lease payments 
and showing a ‘right-of-use’ asset, while future lease payments will be recognised as a financial liability. 
The nature of the expense recognised in the profit or loss will change. Rather than being shown as rent, 
or as leasing costs, it will be recognised as depreciation on the ‘right-of-use’ asset, and an interest charge 
on the lease liability. The interest charge will be calculated using the effective interest method, which will 
result in a gradual reduction of interest expense over the lease term.
Council has a significant number of operating leases that will be impacted as a result of this change.
AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (applies 2019/20)
This standard replaces AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue recognition principles for 
transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable 
the not-for-profit entity to further its objectives. Revenue from capital grants that are provided under an 
enforceable agreement that have sufficiently specific obligations, will now be deferred and recognised 
as performance obligations are satisfied. As a result, the timing recognition of revenue will change.

(z) Rounding
Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand 
dollars. Figures in the financial statement may not equate due to rounding
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Note 2 Budget comparison
The budget comparison notes compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, 
with actual performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires 
explanation of any material variances. Council has adopted a materiality threshold of the higher of 10 
percent or $500K where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for 
variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its 
nature.
The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 28 June 2016. The Budget was 
based on assumptions that were relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines 
and parameters for income and expense targets in this budget in order to meet Council’s planning and 
financial performance targets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any changes 
to equity resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.
These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local 
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

(a) Income and Expenditure     

Budget Actual Variance
2017 2017 2017
$’000 $’000 $’000 Ref

Income
Rates and charges  201,199  203,381  2,182 1
Statutory fees and fines  7,305  9,765  2,460 2
User fees  15,918  16,269  351 
Grants - operating  51,655  62,380  10,725 3
Grants - capital  11,128  18,492  7,364 4
Contributions - monetary  15,660  54,022  38,362 5
Contributions - non monetary  40,000  57,609  17,609 6
Interest Received  5,425  7,229  1,804 7
Share of net profits of associates and joint 
ventures 

 4  4 

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, 
infrastructure, plant and equipment

 50  1,164  1,114 8

Other Income  1,609  1,194  (415) 9
Total income  349,949  431,509  81,560 

Expenses
Employee costs  102,047  98,868  3,179 10
Materials and services  115,625  107,486  8,139 11
Utilities  7,070  5,549  1,521 12
Bad and doubtful debts  15  38  (23)
Depreciation and amortisation  33,200  39,313  (6,113) 13
Borrowing costs  2,788  486  2,302 14
Other expenses  6,179  (4,523)  10,702 15
Total expenses  266,925  247,218  19,708 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year  83,025  184,291  101,266 
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(i) Explanation of material variations  

Variance 
Ref

Item Explanation

1 Rates and 
Charges

RRates and charges are higher than budget due to an increased 
level of supplementary rates, as a result of the level of development 
of new blocks and land, housing and other development activity 
being higher than expected when the 2016/17 budget was prepared.

2 Statutory fees 
and fines

Statutory fees are higher than budget due to increased  levels of 
development activity, which has resulted in higher than budget fees 
in town planning, building services and certification of subdivisions 
during the 2016/17 financial year.

3 Grants - 
operating

The largest contributor to the positive variance for Grants - Operating 
was the receipt of half of the 2017/18 Victorian Grants Commission 
in advance at the end of the 2016/17 financial year ($8.229m).  
Higher than budget grants were also received in the Community 
Care ($0.749m), Aboriginal Engagement ($0.168m), Maternal and 
Child Heath ($0.586m), Kindergarten Programs ($0.460m) and 
Environmental Programs ($0.120m) areas of Council.

4 Grants - capital Capital grants are higher than budget due to Council being in 
receipt of additional grants announced by the State Government 
from the Growing Suburbs Fund ($7.231m), as well as other funding 
programs (including Black Spot, SRV, Childrens Services and Public 
Safety).

5 Contributions - 
monetary

Due to high levels of development activity, across numerous growth 
fronts, developer contributions were far in excess of budget.  These 
contributions are placed in reserve, and are used to fund approved 
development contribution plan capital works projects in future years.

6 Contributions - 
non monetary

Higher than forecast levels of development activity resulted in a 
larger numbers of assets from new estates and sub-divisions being 
transferred to Council’s control than allowed for in the 2016/17 
Budget.

7 Interest 
Received

Interest on investments is higher than budget due consistently higher 
than expected financial assets balances during the year, as a result 
of capital works being below budget and the the much higher levels 
of developer contributions that were received during the year.

8 Net gain on 
disposal of 
property, 
infrastructure, 
plant and 
equipment

The net gain on disposals of assets is above budget due to 
higher levels of proceeds than anticipated for plant trade-ins and 
changeovers, as well as the sale of 2 properties for $20.1m that were 
only approved for sale by Council after the adoption of the 2016/17 
budget, and for which higher than book value proceeds were 
received during their disposal.

9 Other income Other income is below budget due to a reduction in rental income 
after the sale of the Casey Lifestyle Centre.

10 Employee costs Employees costs have been lower than budget due to a higher than 
expected number of staff vacancies, which are generally offset 
by agency staff costs in materials and services, lower WorkCover 
premium costs and favourable movements in discount impacts for 
employee entitlement provisions.
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Variance 
Ref

Item Explanation

11 Materials and 
services

Materials and services are lower than budget due to lower than 
expected expenditure in waste management, insurance and some 
services contracts, as a result of lower volumes and other savings, 
as well as a much lower level of non-capitalised expenditure from the 
capital works program.

12 Utilities Utilities are mainly below budget due to lower electricity costs for 
street lighting.

13 Depreciation Depreciation is higher than Budget due to the impact of revaluations 
of infrastructure assets at the end of the 2015/16 financial year, that 
resulted in higher depreciation for the revised asset values.  These 
revaluations occurred after the development of the 2016/17 Budget 
and exceeded the movements that had been forecast.

14 Borrowing costs Borrowing costs are lower than budget due to a lower amount that 
was progressively borrowed during the year, a favourable interest 
rate achieved with the loan tender, and the capitalisation of interest 
costs for the Bunjil Place construction loan.

15 Other expenses Other expenses are below budget due to lower than budget 
expenses for contributions in the capital works program towards 
assets that benefit the Casey community which are controlled by 
other entities, as well as the reduction in the provision for landfill 
rehabilitation, due to expectations of reduced future costs and 
favourable discount impacts.

Note 2 Budget comparison continued
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(b) Capital Works

Current 
Year 

Budget

Carry-
forwards 

Budget
Total 

Budget Actual Variance
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 Ref

Property
Land 1,100  2,529  3,629  2,101  (1,528) 1
Total Land 1,100  2,529  3,629  2,101  (1,528)
Buildings  743 96  839  374  (465)
Building improvements 132  132  205  73 
Total Buildings 743  228  971  579  (392)
Total Property 1,843  2,757  4,600  2,680  (1,920)

Plant and Equipment
Heritage plant and equipment - - - - -
Plant, machinery and equipment  3,305  120  3,425  3,142  (283)
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 35  28  63  8  (55)
Computers and 
telecommunications

 4,317  2,793  7,110  3,989  (3,121) 2

Total Plant and Equipment  7,657  2,941  10,598  7,139  (3,459)

Infrastructure
Roads  17,934  5,958  23,892  18,340  (5,552) 3
Bridges 95  23  118  16  (102)
Footpaths and cycleways 3,265  422  3,687  3,696  9 
Drainage 1,064  221  1,285  468  (817) 4
Recreational, leisure and 
community facilities

116,152  20,294  136,447  109,995  (26,452) 5

Waste management 43  -    43  25  (18)
Parks, open space and 
streetscapes

3,520  939  4,459  3,693  (766) 6

Off street car parks -    120  120  381  261 
Other infrastructure -    37  37  37  -   
Total Infrastructure  142,073  28,014  170,088  136,651  (33,437)

Total Capital Works Expenditure 151,574  33,713  185,287  146,470  (38,816)

Represented by:
New asset expenditure 106,845 14,672  119,848  95,182  (24,666)
Asset renewal expenditure 28,406 3,797  33,872  25,764  (8,108)
Asset expansion expenditure 7,114 8,398  15,512  12,859  (2,653)
Asset upgrade expenditure 9,208 6,846  16,054  12,665  (3,389)
Total Capital Works Expenditure 151,574  33,714  185,287  146,470  (38,816)
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(i) Explanation of material variations 

Variance 
Ref

Item Explanation

1 Land Land Purchases were lower than expected as they can be 
dependent upon negotiations with land owners.  Some of the 
unfinished land purchases will be completed in the 2017/18 financial 
year and one proposed purchase has been cancelled and removed 
from the program, which is the majority of the variance.

2 Computers and 
telecommunica-
tions

A number of information technology projects are under budget due 
to delays with initial scoping and assessment of optimal procurement 
approaches, completion of milestones and finalisation of projects. 
Other projects that are behind budget are related to the installation 
of equipment for Bunjil Place operations, which will now be 
completed in the early months of the 2017/18 financial year.

3 Roads The lower than budget expenditure is for a number of large 
budgeted projects which are delayed due the projects being 
contingent upon works and approvals from other authorities, which 
have taken longer than anticipated to be approved or agreed.  
Other projects are multi year and are yet to commence or complete 
construction. These projects will continue into the 2017/18 financial 
year.

4 Drainage The variance is a result of several projects being delivered in 
conjunction with another authority for which project scopes have 
been changed or delayed.  Other projects have experienced 
tendering delays or have required additional design work.  It is 
expected that the projects will be completed in 2017/18

5 Recreational, 
Leisure and 
community 
facilities

The current  variance is a result of various projects which are 
currently under budget due to delays with the tendering process 
and negotiations with external stakeholders, adverse weather 
impacts, changes in scope and projects having multi year budgets 
where initial stages have been delayed.  Other major projects are 
contingent upon external funding and consultation.  Several major 
projects will be completed in the 2017/18 financial year.

6 Parks, open 
space and 
streetscapes

Several projects are currently under their financial year’s budgets 
due to delays in construction and changes in scope of works after 
external consultation.  A project has been cancelled, some were 
completed for less than their estimated budget, and various other 
projects are near completion stage.

          

Note 2 Budget comparison continued
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Note 3 Rates and charges

Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the 
municipal district.  The CIV of a property is the total value of the land plus buildings and other 
improvements. 
The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2016/17 was $53.66 billion (2015/16 $45.252 
billion) based on a revaluation as at 1 January 2016 and adjusted by supplementary property 
valuation and applied from July 2016. The 2016/17 rate in the CIV dollar was 0.003113245 (2015/16  
$ 0.003467863).     

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Residential  148,808  138,680 
Commercial  12,945  11,721 
Industrial  3,721  5,246 
Farm/ Rural  1,389  1,571 
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments  3,922  3,723 
Interest on rates and charges  1,193  1,115 
Garbage Charge  31,403  29,977 
Total rates and charges  203,381  192,033 

The next general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district will be 
undertaken as at 1/1/2018 and the resulting valuations will be first applied in the rating year 
commencing 1/7/2018     

Note 4 Statutory fees and fines
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Infringements and costs  678  525 
Town planning fees  1,333  755 
Building  242  193 
Land information certificates  271  240 
Sub-division fees  3,865  3,727 
Animal registration fees and fines  1,942  1,683 
Health registration fees and fines  882  800 
Election fines  534  -   
Fire management  20  20 
Total statutory fees and fines  9,765  7,942
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Note 5 User fees
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Client fees - community care  1,290  1,164 
Client fees - family day care  1,725  1,684 
Leisure centre and recreation  1,672  2,720 
Kindergarten fees  2,824  4,300 
Hire fees - Council facilities  1,072  414 
Pound release fees  259  124 
Building services  786  659 
Re-instatement/road opening fees  1,189  439 
Recoveries  2,586  6,238 
Reimbursements  2,518  2,357 
Other fees and charges  347  386 
Total user fees  16,269  20,484

Note 6 Grants
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Grants were received in respect of the following :
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants  46,523  17,707 
State funded grants  34,349  37,877 
Total grants received  80,872  55,584 

Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Victoria Grants Commission  23,440  7,472 
Connected communities  7,397  - 
Child youth & family  5,746  5,569 
Other  15  15 

Recurrent - State Government
Child youth & family  18,663  13,315 
Connected communities  4,942  11,348 
Safer communities  839  810 
Other  11  27 

Total recurrent operating grants  61,053  38,556 
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2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government  -  - 
Non-recurrent - State Government

Arts & cultural development  50  5 
Child youth & family  168  215 
City planning  322  263 
Connected communities  500  579 
Safer communities  129  36 
Finance & rates  88  94 
Organisational performance  64  - 
Other  6  30 

Total non-recurrent operating grants  1,327  1,222 
Total operating grants  62,380  39,778 

Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Roads to recovery  2,572  3,121 
Victoria Grants Commission - Local Roads Funding  3,353  1,099 

Recurrent - State Government  -  - 
Total recurrent capital grants  5,925  4,220 
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Roads  -  431 
Buildings  4,000  - 

Non-recurrent - State Government
Buildings  5,080  8,247 
Open space & landscaping, community facilities  440  73 
Outdoor sports facilities  2,750  2,082 
Roads  297  753 

Total non-recurrent capital grants  12,567  11,586 
Total capital grants  18,492  15,806 

Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a 
specific manner

Balance at start of year  4,301  13,330 
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at 
balance date

 17,577  1,067 

Received in prior years and spent during the financial year  (471)  (10,096)
Balance at year end  21,407  4,301
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Note 7 Contributions     
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Monetary  915  786 
Monetary - Developer/ Capital Works  53,107  53,246 
Non-monetary  57,609  75,457 
Total contributions  111,631  129,489 

Contributions of non monetary assets were received in relation to 
the following asset classes.
Land  5,950  6,212 
Buildings  391  602 
Roads  25,408  24,426 
Other infrastructure  25,861  44,217 
Total non-monetary contributions  57,609  75,457

Note 8 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant 
and equipment

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Proceeds of sale  21,788  4,363 
Written down value  of assets disposed  (20,624)  (7,759)
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, 
plant and equipment

 1,164  (3,396)

     

Note 9 Other income          
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Interest  7,229  6,233 
Investment property rental  326  684 
Other rent  868  1,117 
Total other income  8,423  8,034
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Note 10 (a) Employee costs     
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Wages and salaries  86,495  80,788 
WorkCover  2,008  1,799 
Superannuation  7,943  7,337 
Fringe benefits tax  468  432 
Other  1,955  3,902 
Total employee costs  98,868  94,258 

     

Note 10 (b) Superannuation     
2017 2016

$’000 $’000
Council made contributions to the following funds:

Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund 
(Vision Super)

 559  597 

Employer contributions payable at reporting date  559  597 

Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund 
(Vision Super)

 5,162  4,991 

Employer contributions -  other funds  2,222  1,749 
 7,384  6,740 

Employer contributions payable at reporting date  598  547 

Refer to note 35 for further information relating to Council’s superannuation obligations. 

Note 11 Materials and services 
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Contract payments  62,039  59,951 
Building maintenance  756  672 
General maintenance  7,978  9,610 
Utilities  5,549  6,127 
Office administration  24,145  19,832 
Information technology  3,475  2,344 
Insurance  1,677  1,772 
Consultants  7,416  4,436 
Total materials and services  113,035  104,743 
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Note 12 Bad and doubtful debts     
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Other debtors  38  137 
Total bad and doubtful debts  38  137

      

Note 13 Depreciation          
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Property  10,527  8,410 
Plant and equipment  3,802  3,575 
Infrastructure  24,984  22,068 
Total depreciation  39,313  34,053 

Refer to note 22 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation     
     

Note 14 Borrowing costs
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Interest - Borrowings  1,093  770 
Less capitalised borrowing costs on qualifying assets  607  - 
Total borrowing costs  486  770 

Rate used to capitalise borrowing costs 3.42%  Nil % 
     

Note 15 Other expenses         
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Auditors’ remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, 
performance statement and grant acquittals

 72  65 

Auditors’ remuneration - Internal  87  72 
Councillors’ allowances  401  414 
Operating lease rentals  754  742 
Grants & contributions  4,034  15,314 
Decrease in landfill provision  (9,870)  (4,894)
Total other expenses  (4,523)  11,713
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Note 16 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and 
subsidiaries     

2017 2016
(a) Investments in associates $’000 $’000
 
Investments in associates accounted for by the equity method are:
Casey Cardinia Library Corporation  4,449  4,482 
Narre Warren User Group  345  341 

 4,794  4,823
(i) Casey Cardinia Library Corporation
Background
The Casey Cardinia Library Corporation (the Corporation) is owned by the City of Casey and 
Cardinia Shire Council. The City of Casey owns the properties where the Corporation operates the 
libraries and is entitled to 73.6% of its net financial result (2016 73.8%)

Fair value of Council’s investment in Casey Cardinia Library  4,449  4,482 

Council’s share of accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Council’s share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at start of year  4,482  4,161 
Reported surplus(deficit) for year  (33)  321 
Council’s share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at end of year  4,449  4,482 

Council’s share of reserves
Council’s share of expenditure commitments

Operating commitments  214  299 
Council’s share of expenditure commitments  214  299 

Significant restrictions     
The Casey Cardinia Library Corporation (CCLC) operates under a Regional Library Agreement 
that has been prepared in accordance with s.196 of the Local Government Act, approved by the 
Minister for Local Government and executed by Casey and Cardinia Councils. The CCLC exists as 
an independent Local Government entity, subject to most of the same requirements of a Council 
under the Local Government Act. The CCLC is governed by a Board of Councillors and Officers 
from member Councils, and is managed by a board appointed Chief Executive Officer. The 
Regional Library Agreement does not allow for the payment of dividends to the Member Councils 
and only considers the transfer of assets (and liabilities) in the case of the dissolution of the 
agreement or exit of one of the parties.
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2017 2016
$’000 $’000

(ii) Narre Warren User Group    
Background
The City of Casey holds 17.96% in Narre Warren User Group 
(NWUG). The principal activity of NWUG is to monitor the closed 
landfill that was previously used by Council at Narre Warren. The 
contributions by the Council to NWUG during the period totalled 
Nil ( 2015/2016 NIL). The Whitehorse City Council holds the cash 
investment for NWUG and the surplus is generated from interest 
income less monitoring costs. The cash investment is managed by 
Whitehorse City Council who holds a 48.88% interest in NWUG.

Fair value of Council’s investment in Narre Warren User Group 345 341 

Council’s share of accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Council’s share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at start of year 341 335 
Reported surplus(deficit) for year 4  6
Councils Share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) at end of year 345 341

Movement in carrying value of specific
Carrying Value of investment at start of year 341 335 
Share of surplus for year 4 6 
Carrying Value of investment at end of year 345 341

Significant restrictions
The NWUG operates under a User Group Agreement, that has been agreed by all of the 
participating Councils. There is no clause in the agreement that allows for the return of funds to 
the participating Councils. The current funds are held to meet commitments for the site contained 
within the EPA issued Pollution Abatement Notice (PAN). There is no current agreement between 
the participating Councils on the distribution of assets or liabilities of the User Group when the 
commitments of the PAN have been satisfied. 

Note 16 Investments in associates, joint 
arrangements and subsidiaries continued
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Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Cash on hand  33  39 
Cash at bank  1,384  1,309 
Money market  call account  15,054  12,840 
Term deposits  -  24,470 

 16,471  38,658 

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to external 
restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary use.  
These include:
- Trust funds and deposits (Note 25)  20,584  15,954 
- Government grants received in advance for future services and 
capital works (Note 6)

 21,407  4,301 

Total restricted funds  41,991  20,255 
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents  (25,520)  18,403 

Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have 
been allocated for specific future purposes by Council:
 - Cash held to fund carried forward capital works  41,315  33,713 
Total funds subject to intended allocations  41,315  33,713 

Refer also to Note 18 for details of other financial assets held by Council.     
     

Note 18 Other financial assets       
 

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Term deposits  311,989  208,731 
Total other financial assets  311,989  208,731 
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Note 19 Trade and other receivables     
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors  14,170  13,356 
Special rate assessment  562  416 
Infringement debtors  614  666 
Provision for doubtful debts -  infringements  (215)  (242)
GST Receivable  3,628  3,231 
Non statutory receivables
Other debtors  3,026  4,137 
Total trade and other receivables  21,785  21,564 

(a) Ageing of Receivables     
At balance date other debtors representing financial assets were 
past due but not impaired.   
The ageing of the Council’s trade & other receivables (excluding 
statutory receivables) was: 
Current (not yet due)  1,879  2,928 
Past due by up to 30 days  388  457 
Past due between 31 and 180 days  258  343 
Past due between 181 and 365 days  258  116 
Past due by more than 1 year  243  294 
Total trade & other receivables  3,026  4,138 

(b) Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year  242  329 
New Provisions recognised during the year  4  23 
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible  (13)  (68)
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year  (18)  (42)
Balance at end of year  215  242
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2017 2016
$’000 $’000

(c) Ageing of individually impaired Receivables 
At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets 
with a nominal value of $38k (2016: $7k) were impaired.  The 
amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $38k 
(2016: $7k).  They individually have been impaired as a result of 
their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due 
amounts have been lodged with Council’s debt collectors or are 
on payment arrangements. 
The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined 
as impaired at reporting date was:
Current (not yet due)  -  - 
Past due by up to 30 days  -  - 
Past due between 31 and 180 days  -  - 
Past due between 181 and 365 days  -  1 
Past due by more than 1 year  38  6 
Total trade & other receivables  38  7

   

Note 20 Non current assets classified as held for sale   
 

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Fair value of  non-current asset - held for sale  8,590  24,050 
Total non current assets classified as held for sale  8,590  24,050 

     

Note 21 Other assets     
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Current
Prepayments  1,196  902 
Other  2,927  1,812 
Total other assets  4,124  2,714 

Non current
Prepayments  13  48 

 13  48
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Note 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Summary 
of property, 
infrastructure, 
plant and 
equipment

At Fair 
Value 30 

June 2016
Acquisitions Contributions Depreciation Disposal Transfers Transfers to 

Current
Transfers to 

Assets
At Fair 

Value 30 
June 2017

Land  813,256  5,950  (6)  (82)  1,245  820,363 
Buildings  272,449  391  (10,527)  (436)  2  (15)  23,956  285,820 
Plant and 
Equipment 

 15,301  -    (3,802)  (1,194)  5,944  16,249 

Infrastructure  1,455,763  51,269  (24,985)  (2,992)  (2)  41,084  1,520,137 
Work in progress  58,603  141,079  (2,187)  (72,228)  125,266 

 2,615,371  141,079  57,609  (39,313)  (6,815)  -    (97)  -    2,767,835 
          
          

Summary of Work 
in Progress

 Opening 
WIP 

 Additions  Transfers 
to Assets 

 Transfers  Write Offs  Closing 
WIP 

Property  41,516  101,297  (22,593)  (3,138)  (451)  116,630 
Plant and 
Equipment 

 34  6,051  (5,723)  (34)  328 

Infrastructure  17,053  33,732  (43,912)  3,173  (1,737)  8,308 
Total  58,603  141,079  (72,228)  -    (2,187)  125,267 
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Land and Buildings  Note Land - 

specialised 
 Total Land  Buildings - 

specialised 
 Buildings 

- non 
specialised 

 Total 
Buildings 

 Work In 
Progress 

 Total 
Property 

At fair value 1 July 2016  813,256  813,256  452,054  26,978  479,032  41,515  1,333,803 
Accumulated depreciation at  
1 July 2016 

 -    (183,035)  (23,552)  (206,587)  (206,587)

 813,256  813,256  269,019  3,426  272,446  41,515  1,127,217 
Movements in fair value 
Acquisition of assets at fair value  1,245  1,245  23,185  770  23,955  (22,593)  2,606 
Contributed assets  5,950  5,950  391  391  6,341 
Fair value of assets disposed  (6)  (6)  (834)  (834)  (840)
Acquisition of WIP assets at cost  -    -    101,297  101,297 
Non Capitalisation of prior year WIP  -    -    (451)  (451)
Transfers  -    (15)  (15)  (3,138)  (3,153)
Transfers to Current  (82)  (82)  (201)  (201)  (283)

 7,107  7,107  22,525  770  23,295  75,115  105,517 
Movements in accumulated 
depreciation 
Depreciation and amortisation  -    (9,584)  (942)  (10,527)  (10,527)
Accumulated depreciation of 
disposals 

 -    402  402  402 

Transfers  -    17  17  17 
Transfers to Current  -    186  186  186 

 -    (8,979)  (942)  (9,921)  (9,921)

At fair value 30 June 2017  820,363  820,363  474,579  27,749  502,328  116,630  1,439,320 
Accumulated depreciation at  
30 June 2017 

 -    -    (192,013)  (24,494)  (216,508)  (216,508)

 820,363  820,363  282,566  3,254  285,820  116,630  1,222,813
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Plant and Equipment Note  Plant machinery 

and equipment 
 Fixtures fittings 

and furniture 
 Computers and 

telecomms 
 Work in 

Progress 
 Total plant and 

equipment 
At fair value 1 July 2016  15,456  9,500  6,388  34  31,378 
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2016  (7,298)  (4,522)  (4,222)  (16,042)

 8,158  4,978  2,166  34  15,336 
Movements in fair value 
Acquisition of assets at fair value  3,095  583  2,266  (5,723)  221 
Fair value of assets disposed  (3,071)  (353)  (407)  (3,831)
Acquisition of WIP assets at cost  6,051  6,051 
Transfers  (34)  (34)

 24  229  1,859  293  2,406 
Movements in accumulated depreciation 
Depreciation and amortisation  (2,347)  (559)  (896)  (3,802)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals  2,004  276  357  2,636 

 (343)  (283)  (539)  -    (1,166)

At fair value 30 June 2017  15,480  9,729  8,247  328  33,785 
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2017  (7,641)  (4,805)  (4,761)  (17,208)

 7,839  4,924  3,486  328  16,577

             
Infrastructure

Note Roads Bridges 
Footpaths 

and  
cycleways 

 Drainage 
Outdoor 

Sports  
Facilities 

Waste  
Manage-

ment 

Open-
space & 

Landscap-
ings  at  

Community 
Facilities 

Off street 
car parks 

Other  
Infrastruc-

ture 
Total  Work In 

Progress 

 Total  
Infrastruc-

ture 

At fair value 1 July 2016  929,465  42,820  132,741  512,754  54,201  28,963  73,011  28,074  43,536 1,845,566  17,053 1,862,619 
Accumulated depreciation 
at 1 July 2016 

(165,263)  (8,714)  (31,045)  (98,391)  (23,343)  (9,348)  (36,137)  (3,705)  (13,857) (389,803)  -   (389,803)

 764,202  34,106  101,697  414,363  30,858  19,615  36,874  24,369  29,679 1,455,763  17,053 1,472,816 

N
ote 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipm

ent continued
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Infrastructure 
continued

Note Roads Bridges 
Footpaths 

and  
cycleways 

 Drainage 
Outdoor 

Sports  
Facilities 

Waste  
Manage-

ment 

Open-
space & 

Landscap-
ings  at  

Community 
Facilities 

Off street 
car parks 

Other  
Infrastruc-

ture 
Total  Work In 

Progress 

 Total  
Infrastruc-

ture 

Movements in fair value 
Acquisition of 
assets at fair value 

 14,404  201  7,614  3,958  4,407  7,378  770  2,353  41,084  (43,912)  (2,828)

Contributed assets  25,408  923  6,020  15,848  240  291  907  1,631  51,269  51,269 
Fair value of assets 
disposed 

 (4,957)  (50)  (535)  (101)  (199)  (1,364)  (94)  (25)  (7,326)  (7,326)

Acquisition of WIP 
assets at cost 

 33,732  33,732 

Non Capitalisation 
of prior year WIP 

 (1,737)  (1,737)

Transfers  47,494  -    15  (47,494)  15  3,173  3,188 
 82,349  1,074  13,099  19,705  4,448  -    6,320  1,583 (43,536)  85,042  (8,744)  76,298 

Movements in accumulated depreciation 
Depreciation and 
amortisation 

 (9,042)  (602)  (2,327)  (5,665)  (1,680)  (1,443)  (2,740)  (529)  (959)  (24,987)  (24,987)

Accumulated 
depreciation of 
disposals 

 3,037  12  188  14  100  937  31  16  4,336  4,336 

Transfers  (14,800)  (17)  14,800  (17)  (17)
(20,805)  (591)  (2,139)  (5,651)  (1,579)  (1,443)  (1,819)  (498)  13,857 (20,668)  -   (20,668)

At fair value 30 June 2017 1,011,814  43,894  145,840  532,459  58,649  28,963  79,331  29,657  0 1,930,608  8,308 1,938,917 
Accumulated depreciation 
at 30 June 2017 

(186,068)  (9,305)  (33,184) (104,042)  (24,922)  (10,791)  (37,957)  (4,203)  (0) (410,471) (410,471)

 825,746  34,590  112,657  428,417  33,727  18,172  41,375  25,453  0 1,520,137  8,308 1,528,446 

Note: Other Infrastructure Assets include Miscellaneous Road Assets and Traffic Management Devices. These Assets have been transferred to the 
Road Asset Class in line with the recommended asset classification for Local Government Reporting.        
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Valuation of land and buildings 
Valuation of land and buildings were undertaken by Peter Gillieron (Principal Property Advisor - AAPI 
Certified Practicing Valuer).  The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market value 
based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions.  Where land use 
is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation.  
This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation.  The adjustment has no impact on the 
comprehensive income statement.  
Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or 
unserviced) characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of 
infrastructure assets and services.  This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation.   
The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.
Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable 
inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Replacement cost is 
sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the 
valuation.  Useful lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either 
shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings. Where  building use is restricted through existing provisions 
the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation.  This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation.  
The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.  
Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a 
significant impact on the fair value of these assets.
Details of the Council’s  land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as  at 30 June 
2017 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 DoV
Land      -      -  
Specialised land      -      - 820,363  Jun16 
Buildings      -      - 285,820 Jun16
Total      -      -                  1,106,183

Valuation of infrastructure
Valuation of infrastructure assets has been determined in accordance with an valuation under the 
direction of Eric Van Toor, Team Leader Asset Management, whose professional qualifications are 
Bachelor of Engineering (BE).  
The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of 
valuation.
Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as  at 30 June 2017 
are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 DoV
Roads      -      -  825,746 Jun16
Bridges      -      -    34,590 Jun16
Footpaths and cycleways      -      -  112,657 Jun16
Drainage      -      -  428,417 Jun16
Outdoor Sports  Facilities      -      -    33,727 Jun16
Waste management        -      -    18,172 Jun16
Openspace & Landscapings      -      -                        41,375 Jun16
Off street car parks                -      -                          25,453 Jun16
Total  -      - 1,520,137

Note 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment continued
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Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations   
Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison 
technique.  Significant unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the 
market cost of land per square metre.  The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results 
in a reduction to surrounding land values between 0% and 95%.  The market value of land varies 
significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market conditions.  Currently land 
values range between $5.02 and $100.33 per square metre.       
Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique.  Significant 
unobservable inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings.  
Current replacement costs is calculated on a square metre basis and ranges from $300 to $6,637 
per square metre.  The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on the basis of the current 
condition of buildings and vary from 30 years to 100 years.  Replacement cost is sensitive to changes 
in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation.  Useful 
lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or 
extend the useful lives of buildings.    
Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost.   Significant 
unobservable inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure.  
The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets varies based on current condition and asset type, 
and can be up to 100 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with 
any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation.  Useful lives of infrastructure are 
sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the 
useful lives of infrastructure assets.    

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Reconciliation of specialised land
Land under roads  157,671  153,413 
Parks and reserves  638,926  635,905 
Community facilities  20,431  20,432 
Corporate  2,442  2,613 
Waste  893  893 
Total specialised land  820,363  813,256

Note 23 Investment property 
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Balance at beginning of financial year  -  12,460 
Additions  -  - 
Disposals  -  (16,000)
Fair value adjustments  -  3,540 
Balance at end of financial year  -  - 

          
Valuation of investment property
Valuation of investment property has been determined in accordance with a valuation by  Peter 
Gillieron (Principal Property Advisor - AAPI Certified Practising Valuer), who has recent experience in 
the location and category of the property being valued.  The valuation is at fair value, based on the 
current market value for the property.         
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Note 24 Trade and other payables       
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Trade payables  30,531  27,538 
Net GST payable  147  208 
Accrued expenses  3,700  3,094 
Total trade and other payables  34,378  30,840

 
          

Note 25 Trust funds and deposits
2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Refundable deposits  108  135 
Fire services levy  686  646 
Retention amounts  19,443  14,945 
Other refundable deposits  347  228 
Total trust funds and deposits  20,584  15,954 

Purpose and nature of items          
Refundable deposits - Deposits taken by Council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, 
including in relation to building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.
Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for the fire services levy on behalf of the State 
Government.  Council remits amounts received on a quarterly basis.  Amounts disclosed here will be 
remitted to the state government in line with that process.     
Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has 
met certain requirements or a related warrant or defect period has elapsed.  Subject to the satisfactory 
completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the 
relevant contractor in line with Council’s contractual obligations. 

Note 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment continued
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Note 26 Provisions
Landfill 

restoration
Employee Total

$ ‘000 $ ‘000 $ ‘000
2017
Balance at beginning of the financial year  34,722  24,060  58,782 
Additional provisions  (9,043)  2,623 (6,420) 
Amounts used  (2,682)  (2,264) (4,946) 
Change in the discounted amount arising 
because of time and the effect of any change 
in the discount rate

 (827)  (459) (1,286) 

Balance at the end of the financial year  22,170  23,960  46,130 

2016
Balance at beginning of the financial year  42,805  20,620  63,425 
Additional provisions  (6,019)  4,793  (1,226)
Amounts used  (3,189)  (1,755)  (4,944)
Change in the discounted amount arising 
because of time and the effect of any change 
in the discount rate

 1,125  402  1,527 

Balance at the end of the financial year  34,722  24,060  58,782 

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Total Provision
Provision - current  23,190  23,843 
Provision - non current  22,940  34,939 

 46,130  58,782 
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(a) Employee provisions          

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave  6,115  5,860 
Long service leave  1,695  1,669 
Retirement gratuity  260  266 

 8,070  7,795 
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 1,442 1,209 
Long service leave 11,668 11,338 

13,110 12,547 
Total current employee provisions 21,180 20,342 

Non-current 
Long service leave 2,749 3,684 
Retirement gratuity 31 35 
Total non-current employee provisions 2,780 3,718 
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current 8,070 20,342 
Non-current 2,780 3,718 
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions 10,850 24,060

(b) Land fill restoration          

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Current  2,010  3,501 
Non-current  20,160  31,221 

 22,170  34,722
 

(c) Restoration of Landfills
The City of Casey currently has responsibility for 3 former landfill sites.
Stevenson’s Road Landfill          
The City of Casey is liable for remediation of the Stevenson’s Road Closed Landfill (SRCL) site. The total 
estimated present value of the remaining cost of rehabilitation and on-going site management is over 
$22.170 million, inclusive of ongoing operational costs of up to $2.010 million per annum for up to 17 
years          
A provision of $22.170 million ( 2015/16 $34.722 million) is provided, based on the net present value of 
the estimated ongoing site management and monitoring costs over 17 years   

Note 26 Provisions continued
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Cemetery Road Landfill       
Rehabilitation of this site is complete. The Council has minor ongoing monitoring and maintenance 
expenses.
Narre Warren Landfill          
The landfill rehabilitation is complete and the site has been handed back to Council for ongoing 
management as a reserve. The Council also manages ongoing monitoring of ground water on behalf 
of the Narre Warren User Group(NWUG). These expenses are reimbursed to the Council via a fund 
managed by the City of Whitehorse         
 

Note 27 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings     
     

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Current
Borrowings - secured (1)  4,042  1,286 

 4,042  1,286 
Non-current
Borrowings - secured (1)  46,952  10,282 

 46,952  10,282

Total  50,994 11,568

(1) Borrowings are secured by the rates of the Council
(a) The maturity profile for Council’s borrowings is:
Not later than one year  4,042  1,286 
Later than one year and not later than five years  29,707  4,346 
Later than five years  17,245  5,936 

 50,994  11,568 
(b) Aggregate carrying amount of interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings
Current  4,042  1,286 
Non-current  46,952  10,282 

 50,994  11,568
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Note 28 Reserves

(a) Asset revaluation Reserves     

Balance at 
beginning of 

reporting period

Increment 
(decrement)

Share of 
increment 

(decrement) on 
revaluation of 

by an associate

Balance at  
end of  

reporting  
period

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2017
Property
Land  436,711  -    -    436,711 
Buildings  171,776  441  -    172,217 

 608,487  441  -    608,928 
Infrastructure
Roads  177,991  -    -    177,991 
Bridges  17,328  -    -    17,328 
Footpaths and cycleways  4,569  -    -    4,569 
Drainage  173,366  -    -    173,366 
Outdoor sports facilities  16,512  -    -    16,512 
Waste management  481  -    -    481 
Open space landscaping and 
community facilities

 8,630  -    -    8,630 

Other infrastructure  6,930  -    -    6,930 
 405,807  -    -    405,807 

Total asset revaluation Reserves  1,014,294  441  -    1,014,735 

2016
Property
Land  200,883  235,828  -    436,711 
Buildings  158,296  13,480  -    171,776 

 359,179  249,308  -    608,487 
Infrastructure
Roads  83,481  94,510  -    177,991 
Bridges  17,301  27  -    17,328 
Footpaths and cycleways  2,743  1,827  -    4,570 
Drainage  118,914  54,452  -    173,366 
Recreational, leisure and 
community facilities

 16,512  -    -    16,512 

Waste management  481  -    -    481 
Open space landscaping and 
community facilities

 8,630  -    -    8,630 

Other infrastructure  -    6,930  -    6,930 
 248,062  157,746  -    405,808 

Total asset revaluation Reserves  607,241  407,054  -    1,014,295 

The asset revaluation Reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council’s assets over time. 



FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 163

Notes to the Financial Report

(b) Other reserves    

Balance at 
beginning 

of reporting 
period

Transfer from 
accumulated 

surplus

Transfer to 
accumulated 

surplus

Balance 
at end of 
reporting 

period
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2017
Asset Reserve  54,137  (58,661)  55,626  51,102 
Developer Reserve  134,323  (5,778)  55,944  184,489 
General Reserve  17,954  (1,999)  23,302  39,257 
Total Other reserves  206,414  (66,438)  134,872  274,848 

2016
Asset Reserve  47,224  (43,797)  50,710  54,137 
Developer Reserve  99,184  (25,682)  60,821  134,323 
General Reserve  20,281  (10,940)  8,613  17,954 
Total Other reserves  166,689  (80,419)  120,144  206,414 

Asset Reserves is held to replace major plant items and for the funding of property acquisition
Developer reserve is contributed from developers to fund public open space, infrastructure, and 
community facilities as detailed in the approved development contribution plans.
General reserve is retained for projects that are identified to be completed in a future period, and for 
grants received in advance or that are not fully acquited.
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Note 29 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to 
surplus/(deficit)    

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Surplus/(deficit) for the year  184,700  575,417 

Depreciation/amortisation  39,313  34,053 
Profit/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant 
and equipment

 (1,164)  3,396 

Finance costs  489  817 
Fair value adjustments for property for sale  -    (3,540)
Contributions - Non-monetary assets  (57,609)  (75,457)
Share of net (profits) of associates and joint ventures 
accounted by equity method

 29  (327)

Prior year capital works expensed  2,187  -   
Net asset revaluation increment/decrement  (441)  (407,053)
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  (220)  (1,523)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets  (1,374)  242 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  3,538  7,141 
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities  4,630  7,475 
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions  (12,652)  (4,644)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  161,425  135,997 

    

Note 30 Financing arrangements       

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Credit card facilities  100  100 
Other facilities  72,740  12,357 
Total facilities  72,840  12,457 

Credit Cards  29  30 
Interest bearing facilities  50,994  11,568 
Used facilities  51,023  11,598 

Credit Cards  71  70 
Interest bearing facilities  21,746  789 
Unused facilities  21,817  859
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Note 31 Commitments     
The Council has entered into the following commitments     

Not later 
than 1 

year

Later than 
1 year and 

not later 
than 2 
years

Later than 
2 years 
and not 

later than 
5 years

Later than 
5 years

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2017

Operating
Animal Pound Services  650  209  -    -    859 
Asset Management  949  -    -    -    949 
Auditing Services  101  74  -    -    175 
Building Cleansing  1,009  107  -    -    1,116 
Environmental Health Services  1,137  -    -    -    1,137 
Facilities Management  364  223  -    -    587 
Graffiti Removal  462  -    -    -    462 
Home Care Services  56  -    -    -    56 
Information Technology  2,759  1,777  4,363  190  9,089 
Landfill  814  816  817  2,447 
Leisure Centre Management  1,295  701  718  736  3,450 
Open Space Management  12,917  10,674  10,678  -    34,269 
Professional Services  884  155  153  -    1,192 
Property Valuation  667  462  -    1,870  2,999 
Street Cleansing  72  -    -    -    72 
Waste Management  22,361  5,360  5,091  -    32,812 
Total  46,497  20,558  21,820  2,796  91,671 

Capital
Buildings  41,897  -    -    -    41,897 
Roads footpaths, kerb & channel  4,899  1,769  1,813  -    8,481 
Other capital works  810  -    -    -    810 
Total  47,606  1,769  1,813  -    51,188 
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Not later 
than 1 

year

Later than 
1 year and 

not later 
than 2 
years

Later than 
2 years 
and not 

later than 
5 years

Later than 
5 years

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2016

Operating
Animal Pound Services  627  224 - -  851 
Asset Management  1,227  737 - -  1,964 
Auditing Services  105  209  418  -    732 
Building Cleansing  1,056  148 - -  1,204 
Energy Supply  2,310  2,379 - -  4,689 
Environmental Health Services  2,230  1,148 - -  3,378 
Equipment  413  139 - -  552 
Facilities Management  465  473  28  -    966 
Graffiti Removal  438  419  1  -    858 
Home Care Services  595  94 - -  689 
Landfill  2,233  -   - -  2,233 
Leisure Centre Management  (48)  343 - -  295 
Open Space Management  13,021  11,794  22,312  -    47,127 
Professional Services  298  111 - -  409 
Property Valuation  227  -   - -  227 
Records Management  109  182 - -  291 
Street Cleansing  1,078  292 - -  1,370 
Waste Management  21,314  13,226  (3,768)  -    30,772 
Total  47,698  31,918  18,991  -    98,607 

Capital
Buildings  99,252  17,075 - -  116,327 
Roads footpaths, kerb & channel  9,825  -   - -  9,825 
Other capital works  2,195  161 - -  2,356 
Total  111,272  17,236  -    -    128,508

Note 31 Commitments continued
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Note 32 Operating leases    

(a) Operating lease commitments    
At the reporting date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating 
leases for the lease of equipment and land and buildings for use within Council’s activities (these 
obligations are not recognised as liabilities):    

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Not later than one year  676  996 
Later than one year and not later than five years  403  1,321 
Later than five years  4  10 

 1,083  2,327 
    

(b) Operating lease receivables    
The Council has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property, consisting of 
surplus freehold office complexes. These properties held under operating leases have remaining 
non-cancellable lease terms of between 1 and 10 years. All leases include a CPI based revision of 
the rental charge annually.    
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

2017 2016
$’000 $’000

Not later than one year  783  1,478 
Later than one year and not later than five years  2,018  4,815 
Later than five years  2,328  12,408 

 5,129  18,701 
    

Note 33 Superannuation    
Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees 
to the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of 
membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of which is funded differently. Obligations for 
contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement 
when they are made or due.    
Accumulation    
The Fund’s accumulation categories, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receive both employer and 
employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed 
percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2017, this was 9.5% as required under 
Superannuation Guarantee legislation).       
Defined Benefit    
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund’s 
Defined Benefit category. This is because the Fund’s Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-
employer sponsored plan. 
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There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating 
employers as the defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers 
and the only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is 
made.  As a result, the level of participation of Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage 
compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable to allocate benefit 
liabilities, assets and costs between employers for the purposes of AASB 119.     
      
Funding arrangements    
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined 
by the Trustee on the advice of the Fund Actuary.  
As at 30 June 2017, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions 
in the Defined Benefit category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which 
Council is a contributing employer was 103.1% (2016, 102.0%).  To determine the VBI, the Fund Actuary 
used the following long-term assumptions:    
» Net investment returns 6.5%pa   (2016, 7.0% pa)    
» Salary information 3.5% pa (2016, 4.25% pa)    
» Price inflation (CPI) 2.5% pa. (2016, 2.5% pa) 
Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2017 was 103.1% (2016, 102.0%).  
The VBI is to be used as the primary funding indicator.  Because the VBI was above 100%, the 2017 
interim  actuarial investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial 
position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements 
from prior years.    
Employer contributions    
Regular contributions    
On the basis of the results of the 2016 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary,  
Council makes employer contributions to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by 
the Fund’s Trustee.  For the year ended 30 June 2017, this rate was 9.5% of members’ salaries (9.5% in 
2015/2016).  This rate will increase in line with any increase to the contribution rate. In addition, Council 
reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment above 
the funded resignation or retirement benefit.    
Funding calls    
If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the 
Defined Benefit category‘s VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial 
investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund 
is required to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall 
occurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%. 
In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, 
the Fund’s participating employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution 
to cover the shortfall.  Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between 
the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities 
of the Fund’s Defined Benefit category, together with the employer’s payroll at 30 June 1993 and at 
the date the shortfall has been calculated. Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between 
the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes lifetime pensioners and their 
reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up. If there is a surplus in the Fund, 
the surplus cannot be returned to the participating employers. In the event that a participating employer 
is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to that employer’s 
successor.    

Note 33 Superannuation continued
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2016 Interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts    
The Fund’s interim actuarial investigation as at 30 June 2016 identified the following in the defined 
benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer:    
» A VBI surplus of $40.3 million; and    
» A total service liability surplus of $156 million.     
The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit 
obligations exceed the vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to 
if they had all exited on 30 June 2016. The total service liability surplus means that the current value 
of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus expected future contributions exceeds the 
value of expected future benefits and expenses. Council was notified of the 30 June 2016 VBI during 
August 2016.     
2017 Full triennial actuarial investigation    
A full actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2017. It is 
anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be completed in December 2017.  
Future superannuation contributions    
The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year 
ending 30 June 2018 are $560k.    

Note 34 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets   
 
Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need 
to make additional contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are 
outlined in Note 33.   As a result of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of making such 
contributions in future periods exists.  At this point in time it is not known if additional contributions will 
be required, their timing or potential amount.    
Guarantees for loans to other entities    
The City of Casey has guaranteed a loan of up to $150k for the Narre Warren Football Netball Club
Contingent assets    
Land and infrastructure assets to be transferred to Council in respect of subdivisions under 
development have an estimated value of $29,524,210 ( 2016 $70,460,464) and the amount 
receivable in cash $Nil (2016 $Nil).       

Note 35 Financial instruments     

(a)  Objectives and policies     
The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables 
(excluding statutory receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings.  
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for 
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, 
in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in Note 
1 of the financial statements.  Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies 
approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to 
Council and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.     
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(b) Market risk     
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of council financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices.  The Council’s exposure to market risk is primarily through interest 
rate risk with only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk. 
Interest rate risk     
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with 
the instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council’s  interest rate liability risk 
arises primarily from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes council to fair value 
interest rate risk / Council does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at 
fair value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk.  Cash flow interest rate risk is 
the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits 
that are at floating rates.      
Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 
1989. Council manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures: 
»  diversification of investment product;     
»  monitoring of return on investment; and     
»  benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.     
There has been no significant change in the Council’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and 
processes for managing interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous 
reporting period.     
Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the 
Council’s year end result.     

(c) Credit risk     
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument 
and cause Council to make a financial loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial 
assets included in the Balance Sheet. To help manage this risk:    
»  council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities Council deal with;   
»  council may require collateral where appropriate; and     
» council only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating 

specified in council’s investment policy.     
Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and 
government sectors. Credit risk associated with the Council’s financial assets is minimal because the 
main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable property.      
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired. 
Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the Balance Sheet, 
such as when Council provide a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are 
disclosed in Note 34.     
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying 
amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the Balance Sheet and 
notes to the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.   

Note 35 Financial instruments continued
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(d) Liquidity risk     
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of Council’s operational liquidity requirements it will not 
have sufficient funds to settle a transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at 
below value or may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset.   
To help reduce these risks Council:     
»  have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to 

be maintained;     
»  have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;  
»  have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands 

of liquid instruments;     
»  monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and     
»  set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan 

principal repayments to rate revenue.     
The Council’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as 
disclosed on the face of the Balance Sheet and the amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed 
in Note 35, and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk
There has been no significant change in Council’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes 
for managing liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting 
period.     
With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms 
of trade.  Details of the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 27.   
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.

(e) Fair value     
Fair value hierarchy     
Council’s financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , 
Council’s financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.    

(f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis     
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management’s 
knowledge and experience of the financial markets,  Council believes the following movements are 
‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12 months:     
»  A parallel shift of +1.0% and -1.0% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 1.30% to 

4.98%     
These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council’s financial assets and 
liabilities, nor will they have a material impact on the results of Council’s operations.   
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Note 36 Related party disclosures    

(i) Related Parties    
Parent Entity    
City of Casey    
Subsidiaries and Associates    
Interests in subsidiaries and associates are detailed in note 16.    

(ii) Key Management Personnel    
Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel  
at any time during the year are:    
Councillors Cr Geoff Ablett  ( to 22 October 2016 and from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Sam Aziz  ( Mayor)  ( to 22 October 2016 and from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Steve Beardon  ( from 10 November to 10 March 2017)  
  Cr Louise Berkelmans  ( to 22 October 2016)  
  Cr Rosalie Crestani   ( to 22 October 2016 and from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Rex Flannery  ( from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Milla Gilic  (from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Tim Jackson  (from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Rafal Kaplon  ( to 22 October 2016)  
  Cr Mick Morland  ( to 22 October 2016)  
  Cr Damien Rosario  ( to 22 October 2016 and from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Gary Rowe ( to 22 October 2016 and from 3 April 2017)  
  Cr Susan Serey  ( to 22 October 2016 and from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Wayne Smith JP  ( to 22 October 2016 and from 10 November 2016)  
  Cr Amanda Stapledon   ( to 22 October 2016 and from 10 November 2016)  

2017
No.

Total Number of Councillors*  15 
Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel  11 
Total Key Management Personnel  26 

* - Council elections were conducted on 22 October 2016 and new Councillors were sworn in on 10 
November 2016.    
As at 30 June 2017, there were 11 Councillors.    
** -  Other Key Management Personnel (KMP) includes Strategic Directors and Directors of the City of 
Casey, including staff acting in these roles for greater than 5 weeks.  As at 30 June 2017, there are 6 
ongoing KMP roles, including the CEO.    
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(iii) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel    

2017
 $000

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term benefits (salary and annual leave)  2,062 
Post-employment benefits (superannuation)  177 
Long-term benefits (long service leave)  42 
Termination benefits  296 
Total  2,577

 
The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any related 
entities, fall within the following bands:    

2017
No.

$1 - $9,999  3 
$10,000 - $19,999  2 
$20,000 - $29,999  4 
$30,000 - $39,999  6 
$40,000 - $49,999  2 
$90,000 - $99,999  1 
$110,000 - $119,999  1 
$180,000 - $189,999  1 
$190,000 - $199,999  1 
$260,000 - $269,999  1 
$270,000 - $279,999  1 
$290,000 - $299,999  1 
$320,000 - $329,999  1 
$400,000 - $409,999  1 

 26 

(iv) Transactions with related parties     
During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties:  

2017
 $000

Provision of Library Services by the Casey Cardinia Library Corporation, in 
accordance with the Regional Library Agreement

5,819

Funding Agreement with Casey Radio - purchase of equipment 83
Provision of a bi-lingual worker for social support activities by a Community 
Services organisation, in accordance with their standard terms and conditions

3

Provision of financial services to the Casey Cardinia Library Corporation  (30)
Provision of seconded staff to the Casey Cardinia Library Corporation  (48)
Rental of a Council building by the Casey Cardinia Library Corporation  (74)

5,753
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(v) Outstanding balances with related parties   
There were no outstanding balances with related parties that required disclosure during the 2016-17 or 
2015-16 reporting years.  

(vi) Loans to/from related parties  
No loans have been made, guaranteed, or secured by Council to related parties during the 2016-17 or 
2015-16 reporting years.  

(vii) Commitments to/from related parties  
No commitments have been made, guaranteed, or secured by Council to related parties during the 
2016-17 or 2015-16 reporting years.  

Note 37 Senior Officer Remuneration
A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:   
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or  
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $142,000  
The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their relevant income bands: 

2017 2016
Income Range: No. No.
<$142,000  4  2 
$142,000 - $149,999  8  2 
$150,000 - $159,999  4  3 
$160,000 - $169,999  3  2 
$170,000 - $179,999  8  7 
$180,000 - $189,999  3  7 
$190,000 - $199,999  5  4 
$200,000 - $209,999  2  1 
$210,000 - $219,999  2  2 
$220,000 - $229,999  -    1 
$230,000 - $239,999  -    1 
$240,000 - $249,999  2  -   

 41  32 

Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior 
Officers included above, amounted to

 6,888  5,731 

During the 2016/17 financial year, the City of Casey undertook an Organisation Redesign.  Included 
within the Senior Officers reported in 2016/17 are 3 roles that were impacted by redundancy as a result 
of the Organisation Redesign, and some officers who were acting in Senior Officer roles prior to or after 
the Organisational Redesign. 

Note 38 Events occurring after balance date   
No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.

Note 36 Related party disclosures



FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

City Of Casey Annual Report 2016-17       PAGE 175

Notes to the Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 1989, the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 
2014, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements.          

Andrew Davis (B.Bus(Accounting)) 
Principal Accounting Officer         
Date: 05-September-2017 
Narre Warren          
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of City 
of Casey for the year ended 30 June 2017 and the financial position of the Council as at that date.
As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars 
in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.     
We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) 
Regulations 2014 to certify the financial statements in their final form.     
     

Cr Sam Aziz  
Mayor
Date : 05-September-2017 
Narre Warren          

Cr Wayne Smith JP 
Councillor          
Date : 05-September-2017 
Narre Warren          

Mike Tyler 
Chief Executive Officer         
Date : 05-September-2017 
Narre Warren           
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Contact City of Casey 

03 9705 5200

NRS: 133 677 (for the deaf,  
hearing or speech impaired) 
TIS: 131 450 (Translating  and  
Interpreting Service)
caseycc@casey.vic.gov.au

casey.vic.gov.au

facebook.com/CityOfCasey 
@CityOfCasey

PO Box 1000
Narre Warren VIC 3805

Customer Service Centres

Cranbourne 
Cranbourne Park Shopping Centre

Narre Warren  
Magid Drive

Narre Warren South 
Amberly Park Shopping Centre
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